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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Best Pacific International Holdings Limited
(the “Company” or “Best Pacific”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group” or “We”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.

During the year under review, it turned out to be a
tumultuous and challenging year for the global apparel
market, in which opportunities and growth came with risks
and challenges. Under the shadow of political instability
in the United States of America (“U.S.”) and Europe, as
well as the provocations from North Korea and its nuclear
ambitions, the Volatility Index of the Chicago Board
Options Exchange recorded spikes in April and August
2017. For a while, the public seemed to be uncertain
on the sustainability of the growth of the economy and
some of our key customers reacted conservatively, which
inevitably affected Best Pacific’s performance in 2017.

In spite of the twists and turns, Best Pacific continued
to leverage on the advantages of our unique position as
a one-stop solutions supplier, along with our profound
relationship with our customers and business partners.
Besides, we had been exploring more opportunities with
our existing customers and potential clients by utilising
the innovative and technical support from our research
and development team. As a result, Best Pacific recorded
revenue of approximately HK$2,794.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017, hitting a record high since its
listing on 23 May 2014 (the “Listing Date”). However,
the increasing manufacturing costs, growing operating
expenses and unfavourable changes in exchange rates
put pressure on our margins. Accordingly, we executed
certain measures to strengthen our internal management,
including cost control and efficiency enhancement, and
had sped up our international expansion plan.
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Despite the uncertainty in the global market, the Consumer
Confidence Index of December 2017 announced by
The Conference Board stood at 122.1, representing a
year-on-year increase of 8.8 index points. Simultaneously,
the Global Manufacturing Purchasing Managers’ Index
issued by IHS Markit reached its near-seven-year high
of 54.5 in December 2017. Both indices suggested the
resumption of market confidence in the global economic
prospects and we expect Best Pacific would be able to
seize the respective opportunities in 2018, alongside with
its existing expansion plans in Vietnam and Sri Lanka.

In particular, being the first overseas expansion project of
Best Pacific, the operation in Vietham have been launched
and progressed as our management expected. After
completion of the trial production, the official production
has already kicked off in the third quarter of 2017. The
relatively smooth operation in Vietham has boosted our
spirit and encouraged us to speed up the progress.
We will continue to improve the production efficiency in
Vietnam to allow the Group to further enjoy the respective
benefit of the lower manufacturing costs in Vietnam.
Looking forward, the production capacity in Vietnam will
be gradually increased to meet the upsurge in market
demand for high quality products.

Apart from the operation in Vietnam, Sri Lanka will be the
next stop of Best Pacific’s strategic expansion plan. On
6 November 2017 and 4 December 2017, we separately
entered into two joint venture agreements with Brandix
Lanka Limited (“Brandix”) and MAS Capital (Private)
Limited (“MAS Capital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MAS Holdings (Pvt) Ltd (“MAS”). Brandix and MAS are our
existing major customers and both of them are reputable
industry leaders in the realm of apparel and textile
manufacturing with robust international production layouts.
We believe that the strategic partnerships with our joint
venture partners will allow the Group to leverage on their
well-established presence in the global apparel market and
to facilitate the development of the joint ventures and the
Group in the long run.

BRERERZRERAT « —F—LFFR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

TEHE

Summing up the year of 2017, despite various difficulties sk —F—F - REHEOELA RN
and challenges from increasing costs and unpredictable PATE R By & L 17 35 25 3k N [B) B IR 35 EE Pk 8 -
currency market, the Group had been managing various REBKARETIREH L ZELL - A
difficulties and operated cautiously. Nevertheless, we will R ESEBIERTEIEE R ANXN
continue to deploy resources to our strategic expansion EEKRKNERERER - R ABIEFT L
plan for the future development of the Group. Under TTAERE | WEsT  NEBREEZHMEGR
our vision “build on innovation and technology”, the 2RI ETENKE - LHEE
Group firmly believes that we will be able to grasp further BIRETMYE - IWAHIRE AL KRB ELE
opportunities arising from the global apparel market, [B] 3R o

especially in the sportswear space, and to deliver a
promising return to its investors in the longer run.

Lu Yuguang EE*x
Chairman Ey
Hong Kong, 20 March 2018 BB - N\F=ZHAZTH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the global textile and apparel
industry was generally in a difficult situation, as numerous
retail brands reported diminished revenue and profits, and
the impact was, to a certain extent, spread to the upstream.
While facing the same challenges as the whole industry
did, Best Pacific managed to seize some opportunities in
the market. On one hand, the intense global demand for
apparel and sportswear products with high standards on
appearance, comfort and functionality continued to be
our key driver of business expansion. Our sales orders
correspondingly increased in both volume and amount
during the year ended 31 December 2017. Revenue
of the Group for the reporting year hit a record high of
approximately HK$2,794.8 million since Best Pacific’s listing,
representing a growth of approximately 13.2% as compared
to the year ended 31 December 2016. However, due to
lower lingerie sales to our customers during the period of
industry downturn and with which more competitive prices
being requested, the growth was still below our expectation
for the whole year 2017.

Thanks to the growing health consciousness of the
public, the manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
continued to be benefited from the keen demand for
comfortable and highly functional sports-related products.
With our strong research and development capabilities,
we further penetrated the markets of both existing and
new customers. The revenue of elastic fabric for the
year ended 31 December 2017 recorded approximately
HK$1,767.7 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 15.8%. In particular, the revenue of elastic
fabric for sportswear use increased by approximately 74.9%
to approximately HK$796.6 million during the reporting year.

With the effort of cross-selling of our team and our
dedication in expanding our market share, the revenue of
elastic webbing also reported an increase by approximately
13.1% to approximately HK$941.6 milion during the year
under review. Yet, due to the market demand for simpler
and thinner lace, which commanded a lower unit selling
price, the revenue of lace amounted to approximately
HK$85.6 million during the reporting year, implying a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 22.3%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

On the other hand, in order to meet the growing demands
from the market and, at the same time, satisfy their
requirements for shorter production lead time and better
product quality, extra manufacturing costs were inevitably
incurred. The increased investments in property, plant and
equipment, the more stringent environmental protection
regulations, the increases in our number of staff as well as
their overall wages, all put pressure on our profit margins.
In addition, more resources were devoted to our research
and development team to improve our product quality
and enhance the variety of our products to meet the
customers’ demands.

Furthermore, Renminbi (“RMB”) had appreciated by
approximately 6% against U.S. Dollars (“US$”) in the year
ended 31 December 2017. The exchange rate of RMB
against US$ reached the year's peak in early September
2017 and maintained at a relatively high level till the year
end. As the majority of our products were produced in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and exported
to overseas customers billing in US$, the appreciation of
RMB against US$ further eroded our profit margins.

As a result of the above, our gross profit margin and net
profit margin declined to approximately 27.6% and 10.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2017, respectively, as
compared to approximately 33.5% and 18.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Measures pinpointing efficiency improvement and cost
control were in place with a view to ease the pressure on
our profit margins. At the same time, in order to minimise
the impact from both the increases in costs and expenses
as well as the fluctuations in exchange rates, strategic
plans have been put in place to expand the Group’s
production capacities into Vietnam and Sri Lanka, in which
the manufacturing costs are lower and the respective
currencies are considered to be relatively stable.

As of the year ended 31 December 2017, our annual
designed production capacities of elastic fabric, elastic
webbing and lace were approximately 110.3 million
meters, 1,669.4 milion meters and 24.6 milion meters,
respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 30.4%, 40.2% and 7.8%, respectively. The
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

increases were mainly due to addition of capacities built
in the PRC and the commencement of production of our
manufacturing facility in Vietham during the year. While
we strive to control the manufacturing costs, in order to
maintain our leading position as one of the world’s largest
lingerie fabric suppliers and to cope with the increasing
demand should the market sentiment rebound, we will
continue to closely monitor and assess the need and pace
to increase our production capacities.

For our operation in Vietham, the construction period
subsisted until the beginning of the second half of the
year 2017, in which period no revenue was generated but
expenses were incurred. The expenses mainly included
amortisation and depreciation, professional fees, staff
benefits, training costs and utilities, etc., which put the
Vietnam operations into a loss-making financial position.
Nevertheless, we considered this ramp-up period
necessary as it has enabled us to build a solid foundation
in Vietham. We started the official production and product
delivery in the second half of the year. By improving the
productivity and production scale of the operation in
Vietnam step by step, we are expecting the contribution
from Vietnam and its significance to the Group continue to
rise in the near future.

In addition to the operations in Vietnam, our investment
plan in Sri Lanka was another highlight of the year 2017.
We entered into two joint venture agreements with Brandix
and MAS (via its wholly-owned subsidiary, MAS Capital)
on 6 November 2017 and 4 December 2017, respectively.
Brandix and MAS are our current major customers with
long-term business relationships, and both of them are
reputable leaders in the industry of apparel and textile
manufacturing with mature international operation systems.
These joint ventures will follow our methodology in the
production of elastic fabric and elastic webbing and
leverage on the well-established distribution networks
of Brandix and MAS. Through these co-operation, not
only can we be benefited from the revenue generated by
these joint ventures, but also allow Best Pacific to gain the
opportunities with our joint venture partners in exchanging
the experience in managing a multinational corporation,
thereby facilitating the growth and development of the
Group. Nevertheless, we expect net start-up costs to be
incurred during the construction period in 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the sales
of its major products, elastic fabric, elastic webbing and
lace. For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue
amounted to approximately HK$2.79 billion, representing
an increase of approximately HK$325.7 million, or
approximately 13.2%, from approximately HK$2.47 billion
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase
in revenue during the year under review was mainly
attributable to the increase in the volume of products sold
as a result of the Group’s continual expansion into the new
sportswear and apparel materials segments.

A comparison of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2017 by product categories is as
follows:

Bt 755 [0 B
A

AEENRATEREHEEEFTETERE N
Byme - BESTEERES HE_T—+t
F+_A=+—HIFE ' WAL ER27.9E
BT BEHE_ZT—XR"F+_A=+—HIt
FEMURAL24. 7B T INA325.7TE S
BT 4913.2% - BIEFARRAENEEZ
AR AEESEERENEDNRELRED
K 5B E R EH 2 NFTEL »

AEEHE T —R"F_ZT—+F+_-A
=t HIEFEZWAKRERERZ DAL
BN

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1t—HLHFE

2017 2016 Change
—E—tfF AN 4
Revenue % of Revenue % of
(HK$’000) Revenue (HK$'000) Revenue (HK$'000) %
WA EBAR WA (HIRAR
(F#&x) Baotk  (FET Bolk  (FET) Bk
Elastic fabric S AR Y E R 1,767,693 63.2 1,526,439 61.8 241,254 15.8
Elastic webbing 3B {44445 941,562 33.7 832,509 33.7 109,053 13.1
Lace E 4 85,556 31 110,158 45 (24,602) (22.3)
Total st 2,794,811 100.0 2,469,106 100.0 325,705 13.2

10

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from
sales of elastic fabric amounted to approximately
HK$1.77 billion, representing an increase of approximately
HK$241.3 million, or approximately 15.8%, as compared
to the year ended 31 December 2016. The growth in
revenue was mainly driven by the Group’s continued
expansion into the sportswear and apparel materials
market, by leveraging on its high product quality, strong
innovation research and development capabilities, and by
fostering relationships with different sportswear brands,
which were represented by a year-on-year growth of
approximately 74.9% to approximately HK$796.6 million in
sales revenue of sportswear fabric materials.

Revenue from sales of elastic webbing amounted to
approximately HK$941.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$109.1 million, or approximately
13.1%, as compared to the year ended 31 December
2016. The growth in revenue was mainly due to the
Group’s dedication in cross-selling its different primary
products.

Revenue from sales of lace decreased from approximately
HK$110.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 to approximately HK$85.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The year-on-year decline of
approximately 22.3% was mainly due to the simpler and
thinner lace, which commanded a lower unit selling price,
sold by the Group in the year ended 31 December 2017,
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprises costs of raw
materials, manufacturing overheads, and direct labour
costs.

Cost of sales - by nature of expense

$HE M A
AEBENHEXNARTEBRBRMBAAL - &£
ERXMERATRA

HERAE - REAXMEE S

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2017 2016 Change
—E—tF i 23

(HK$°000) %  (HK$'000) %  (HK$'000) %

(F#&x) Bk (F%&1T) Batkk  (F%T) A7k

Raw materials RAR 1,036,568 51.3 886,264 54.0 150,304 17.0

Manufacturing

overheads FERY 733,542 36.3 555,414 33.8 178,128 32.1
Direct labour BEAL 241,563 11.9 188,645 11.5 52,918 28.1
Others Hitp 10,466 0.5 10,805 0.7 (339 (3.1)
Total “Et 2,022,139 100.0 1,641,128 100.0 381,011 23.2

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately HK$2.02 billion,
representing an increase of approximately HK$381.0
million, or approximately 23.2%, as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2016. The increase in our
cost of sales was primarily due to (1) the increase in total
sales volume; (2) the increase in overall manufacturing
overheads driven by the Group’s continued business
expansion as well as higher production costs to cope with
the more stringent environmental rules and regulations;
(8) the increase in direct labour costs as a result of an
increase in number of staff as well as overall wages; and
(4) the increase in costs due to RMB appreciation.

AEBEE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HLF
B2 HEERARN B0 2B L BEHE-Z
—RNE+-A=+—HItFEEMNL381.0
BEBIITHLI23.2% o FAPIHY # & A AL hn
FERHANNAHELMN : QAKEFEE
IR FEEAERIEN  UARRER
AR A AR BEE SN EERAE ; (3)
BTHENEETERMERERE A TKRA
B R (4) AREEFHEE B ALE DT o
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Cost of sales - by product category

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N WM

HERK - RERERE D

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=T—HLHFE

2017 2016 Change
—E—tfF it S 23

(HK$’000) %  (HK$'000) %  (HK$'000) %

(F#&x) Bokk  (FE&rT) Batk (F%T) Anth

Elastic fabric S A ER 1,314,743 65.0 1,019,727 622 295,016 28.9
Elastic webbing 3144575 660,174 326 563,635 34.3 96,539 17.1
Lace Bk 47,222 2.4 57,766 3.5  (10,544) (18.3)
Total et 2,022,139 100.0 1,641,128 100.0 381,011 23.2

The cost of sales by product category as a percentage of
the total cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2017 remained relatively stable as compared to the year

ended 31 December 2016.

Gross profit, gross profit margin and net profit margin

AEEREMBREDHHEXNNEERE
TEFT A=t HIEFENEHEE
RANBDLAELEE T RF+ A=
T RLFEEEFHEERE

EFN > ERNRRFEANBR
For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
Gross profit Gross profit

Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin

EX EFZE EAH ER=

(HK$’000) (%) (HK$’000) (%)

(F#&x) (Bz k) (F%7T) (Bntk)

Elastic fabric S84 A TR 452,950 25.6 506,712 33.2
Elastic webbing SRR 281,388 29.9 268,874 32.3
Lace S 38,334 448 52,392 47.6
Total st 772,672 27.6 827,978 33.5

BEBERERERAT « —T—tFFR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

The overall gross profit decreased from approximately
HK$828.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to approximately HK$772.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. The Group’s overall gross profit
margin for the year ended 31 December 2017 decreased
by approximately 5.9 percentage points to 27.6%, as
compared to 33.5% for the year ended 31 December
2016. The decline in gross profit margin was mainly due
to (i) a lower-than-expected revenue from sales of elastic
fabric, elastic webbing and lace to lingerie customers;
(i) the higher direct labour costs and manufacturing
overheads; and (jiij the increase in costs due to RMB
appreciation.

Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately HK$303.6 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 33.5% as compared to
approximately HK$456.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2016. The Group recorded a lower net profit
margin of approximately 10.9% for the year ended 31
December 2017, representing a decline of 7.6 percentage
points, as compared to the year ended 31 December
2016. The decrease in net profit margin for the reporting
year was mainly due to (i) a lower gross profit margin
attained; (ii) the increased overall costs spent on human
resources; (iiij the start-up costs of the operation in
Vietnam; and (iv) the increase in costs or losses due to
RMB appreciation.

REBERENRHEE -_T—XRF+_-_A=
+—HILFEH8280EEEATRLEEHE
—E—+F+ - A=1+—HILEFELHTT2.7
BEBT  AEEREBREFNEXHEE ST —
NE+T A=+ —BIEFEM33.5%mH
S59EANEEEE_E—+F+ A=+
—HIEFERN27.6% - ENXRTHREIELH
ROEFRERKEFPHBEEEDER - 8
M N E RIS WA INTER : () EEA
IRANEERYES  UEii)AAREH
BB EUKAIEMETEL °

BHE - T—+tHE+-_A=+—HILEENF
FE4 A3036EER T REEZ T — X
F+-—A=Z+—HIEFELX456.3BE BT
AL #33.5%  c REBE-_ZT—+F+_-A=
+—BUEFEAEEESFFAHEETREL
10.9% BEHE_ZT—XR"F+_-_A=+—H
FFETRIETD I - RBREFE - F
FMEERTEEIEZHNO)EMNEEZE ()&
BANERKA L ()L ENRBIK
Ko RiVEARB A BB KA EEL
e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other income

The Group’s other income mainly consists of government
grants, net proceeds from sales of scrap materials, bank
interest income, dividend income and others. The following
table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s other income
for the years indicated:

BEE N WM

Ht A

AEENEMKRATEBRBRFMHE - HE
FEFPTIS SRIBFRR ~ |RITH B WA - BB
AREA - TREIIAEERARFEHNHE
b A BRAR

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=T—-HLHFE

2017 2016

—E—+tF TE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET AT

Government grants BT B 24,105 9,962
Net proceeds from sales of scrap materials $5%& EER TS I8 =58 10,309 6,499
Bank interest income HRITH EMA 4,040 18,708
Dividend income % B A 1,316 -
Others Hib 10,887 9,766
Total Bt 50,657 44,935

The increase in other income by approximately 12.7%,
from approximately HK$44.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately HK$50.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017, was mainly the result of
the aggregate net effect of the increases in government
grants received, net proceeds from sales of scrap
materials, dividend income received and the decrease in
bank interest income.

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses mainly consist of net foreign
exchange gain/loss and change in fair value in derivative
financial instruments. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the net foreign exchange loss was approximately
HK$14.2 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
net foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$19.7
million) and the change in fair value in derivative financial
instruments was approximately HK$0.5 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2016: approximately HK$7.3 million).
Details of the derivative financial instruments are disclosed
in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEBERERERAT « —T—tFFR

B ABEE—_T—X"F+_A=+—H
IFFER44.9B BB TIEMN12.7%EE,
E-E—+E+-_A=T—HILEFEEDHY
50.7E&BIL TERARMERSFHE -
HERBBAGHIAFHE - MESHRERA
HANA K SR1T R B UM AR D B FER ZEFTER -

Hito s R 518

HiE R EEESaEE R KRS EiRF
ERITESMTEMATEES HE-Z
—tHE+-A=1+—HIFE EBHLEEF
BAMI42BBET (HEZE—R"F+=
A=+—HB1EFE : EXWEFEN10.780
BAET) MOTESRIANAFEESHD
05EBETL (BE_Z—XR"F+_A=1+—
BIEFE 473888 - A@TEE R
TEMNFHBREETERERM T2 HE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of
employee benefit expenses, transportation, marketing
and promotional expenses and other selling and
distribution expenses. For the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017, the Group’s selling and distribution
expenses represented approximately 4.9% and 5.3%
of its total revenue, respectively. The increase in selling
and distribution expenses was mainly due to the shorter
production and delivery lead time as well as the Group’s
dedication in developing new businesses during the
reporting year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of employee
benefit expenses, depreciation and amortisation, motor
vehicle expenses, bank charges and other administrative
expenses. The Group’s administrative expenses remained
relatively stable at approximately 6.6% of its total revenue for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017. The equity-
settled share-based compensation included in employee
benefit expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$1.7 milion (for the year ended 31
December 2016: approximately HK$6.0 million).

Research and development costs

The Group is dedicated to catering to the changing market
preferences by introducing innovative lingerie, apparel and
sportswear materials. For the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017, the Group’s research and development
costs represented approximately 2.2% and 3.0% of its
total revenue, respectively.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly represent interest
expenses for bank borrowings. The finance costs
increased by approximately 22.9% from approximately
HK$28.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to approximately HK$35.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. The increase in finance costs was
primarily due to the increase in average balance in bank
borrowings as a result of continuous expansion in the
Group’s production scale and the general increase in
market interest rate.

HERDHMEX
HEERDHEAYETERERERBAMAY - 8
- MBHEEREERIULREMEERD
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FTEL ©

ITHRX

TEREAYXFEZERFERERERIAY - TELE
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AEEREBEZE_ZE—RNFA_ZT—tF+=
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B A ERERERAEBUIRTTERN AL
BRIGIN R TG F) R B _EFFTE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income tax expense

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for 2016 and 2017.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, unless there is
any preferential tax treatment applicable.

Dongguan Best Pacific Textile Company Limited
(“Dongguan BPT”), a subsidiary of the Company, has
obtained the qualification as a high and new technology
enterprise since 2010, which has been renewed for an
additional three years from the financial year ended 31
December 2016. Hence, Dongguan BPT is subject to
the preferential tax treatment and the applicable tax
rate for both years was 15%. During the year ended 31
December 2016, Dongguan New Horizon Elastic Fabric
Company Limited (“Dongguan NHE”), another subsidiary
of the Company, was also qualified as a high and new
technology enterprise for three years from the financial
year ended 31 December 2016. Dongguan NHE is
therefore also subject to the preferential tax treatment and
the applicable tax rate for both years was 15%.

Pursuant to the relevant Vietham Enterprises Income
Tax rules and regulations, the applicable tax rates for the
subsidiary operating in Vietnam is 20%. The subsidiary
in Vietnam is eligible for tax holidays for two financial
years since the first financial year of taxable profit and
tax concession at a tax rate of 10% for the following
four financial years. No provision for Vietnam Enterprises
Income Tax has been made as the subsidiary in Vietnam
has no assessable profit for both years.

Taxation arising in any other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

BEEEERERAT « —B— +FER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, net working capital
(calculated as current assets less current liabilities) was
approximately HK$744.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$102.9 million as compared with 31
December 2016. The current ratio (calculated as current
assets/current liabilities) is at 1.8 times as at 31 December
2017 as compared to 2.1 times as at 31 December 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash
generated from operating activities decreased from
approximately HK$376.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately HK$234.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to
approximately HK$1,009.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, as compared to net cash used in
investing activities amounting to approximately HK$369.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The main
investing activities of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 were the investments spent on purchase
of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$1,010.3 million, in order to cope with the business
expansion of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash from
financing activities amounted to approximately HK$516.0
million, as compared to net cash used in financing
activities of approximately HK$182.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The cash from the Group’s
financing activities for the year ended 31 December 2017
was mainly due to the drawdown of syndicated loan and
bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio
was 53.9% (as at 31 December 2016: 31.2%), which
was calculated on the basis of the amount of total bank
borrowings as a percentage of total equity. Details of bank
borrowings are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group was in a net debt position
(sum of bank deposits and bank balances and cash, less
total bank borrowings) of approximately HK$997.2 million
as at 31 December 2017, as compared to a net debt
position of HK$94.0 million as at 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Working capital management

BEE N WM

CELESER

As at 31 December

R+t=-B=+—H
2017 2016 Change
—E—t& —E—RE k)

(days) (%)

(R&) (Pt
Trade and bills receivables B F WA M

turnover days EWNEIREE X 79.0 75.8 3.2 4.2
Trade and bills payables BHRNFIAR

turnover days ANESEEIITN 81.5 91.1 (9.6) (10.5)

Inventory turnover days FEREBRE 108.2 97.0 11.2 11.5

The trade and bills receivables turnover days remained
relatively stable for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The decrease in trade and bills payables turnover days
for the year ended 31 December 2017 by 9.6 days was
primarily due to the increase in use of cash to settle
transactions for the benefits of better prices.

The increase in inventory turnover days from 97.0 days for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to 108.2 days for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was primarily attributable to the
fact that more raw materials were purchased by the Group to
cope with the rising raw material prices as well as the shorter
production time as demanded by customers, resulting in
more work-in-progress inventories being prepared.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2017, total addition to
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$992.7 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately HK$494.6 million), which was mainly
attributed to the increase in investment in machinery of
approximately HK$653.8 million (for the year ended 31
December 2016: approximately HK$222.4 million) as
well as the construction in progress of approximately
HK$297.2 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately HK$242.1 million) to cope with the Group’s
overall business expansion.

BEBERERERAT « —T—tFFR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged certain
bank deposits and equipment to secure the bills payables
issued by and the obligations under the finance leases of
the Group.

The carrying amounts of the assets pledged are as
follows:

BEEEH

RZZE—tHF+A=+—HB xEEDE
HETRITERRREESANRE TR L E
R E N R B T E AR IR

EEFEEMNKREENT

As at 31 December

R+=ZB=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+E ZE—RF
(HK$000) (HK$'000)
(F#&x) (F%7T)
Pledged bank deposits EEIPRITER 54,623 61,610
Equipment B 34,019 37,105
Total Azt 88,642 98,715

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

Events after the reporting period

The Group has no significant events after the reporting
period and up to the date of this report.

HAREE
RZEB—+F+_A=+—HB AEELE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign exchange risk

A substantial portion of the Group’s revenue is denominated
in US$ and HK$ and a portion of its purchases and
expenses are denominated in RMB, the Group manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews
and monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. Our finance
department monitors our foreign exchange risk on a
continuous basis by analysing our domestic and overseas
sales orders on hand, expected domestic and overseas
orders from customers and estimated foreign currency
payment for our purchases. We intend to manage our
foreign exchange risks by (i) managing our sales, purchases
and expenses denominated in HK$ and US$ through
our Hong Kong subsidiaries and managing our sales,
purchases and expenses denominated in RMB through our
PRC subsidiaries; and (i) holding cash and bank deposits
denominated in RMB primarily by our PRC subsidiaries and
cash and bank deposits denominated in HK$ and US$
primarily by the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total
of 6,409 full-time employees (as at 31 December 2016:
5,725). The increase in the number of employees was
mainly due to the increase in the scale of the Group’s
business, in particular, the new operation in Vietnam. There
was no significant change in the Group’s remuneration
policy during the year and the Group will continue to
provide regular training and competitive remuneration
packages to its staff. The Group’s remuneration packages
include salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement
benefits based on employee’s performance, skills and
knowledge. The Group also provides additional benefits
to its employees that include subsidised accommodation,
meals, accident and medical insurance and share options
granted to eligible employees under the share option
schemes of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable
dividend payout ratio of not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit for the year, providing shareholders with
an equitable return.

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of
HK5.9 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 (the “Final Dividend”) (for the
year ended 31 December 2016: HKO.5 cents). The Final
Dividend is expected to be paid on or about 13 June 2018
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 31 May 2018, subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company on 21 May 2018 (the
“AGM”).

The Board had resolved not to declare any interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2017 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2016: HK7.3 cents per
ordinary share).

FUTURE STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS

Best Pacific has archived certain milestones in 2017,
including the significant growth of approximately 74.9%
in sales of elastic fabric for sportswear use, the kick-
off of production in Vietnam in the third quarter, and the
initial establishment of strategic partnerships with our joint
venture partners in Sri Lanka in the fourth quarter. All these
have laid a solid foundation for the sustainable growth of
Best Pacific in the future. However, at the same time, the
Group has encountered various challenges in 2017, which
are also perceived to continue for some time in 2018.
While we strive to continue to control our manufacturing
costs and further enhance our production efficiencies in
the PRC, various overseas projects are expected to come
into play in the near future, with which the Group would be
able to benefit from the lower local manufacturing costs
and soothe the pressure on our margins.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Although we emphasise on the importance of cost control
and efficiency control, it does not imply that the high
quality of our products and services can be neglected
or sacrificed. Through our dedication in research and
development, the Group has developed and will continue
putting resources in developing a diversified portfolio
of high-performance lingerie, apparel and sportswear
materials. As always, “build on innovation and technology”
has been the Group’s vision in business management and
new product development. Recognition from customers
as well as being qualified as high and new technology
enterprises in the PRC (with a preferential profits tax
rate of 15% awarded) reinforce the Group’s belief that
product innovation is the key to Best Pacific’s success.
The management also expects that its determination to
provide high quality products and services as well as its
continuous enhancement in its research and development
capabilities will attract more long-term quality customers
and business partners.

Looking at the latest economic data of the U.S., the
unemployment rate went down to approximately 4.1%
by the end of 2017, indicating a year-on-year drop of
approximately 0.7 percentage point. Meanwhile, the
gross domestic product increased by an annual rate of
approximately 3% in the second half of 2017. In general,
the U.S. economy had been growing at a solid pace over
the second half of 2017. If such momentum continues in
2018, the relatively stronger economic outlook and a more
robust job market should result in growth in household
incomes and consumer spending, which should bring
about slight improvement in the retail market sentiment in
2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB MO

Meanwhile, the improvement in the U.S. economy also
implies more room allowing the U.S. Federal Reserve
to raise the federal funds rate as well as to execute
the balance sheet normalisation program. In fact, the
target range of the federal funds rate has already been
raised by 0.25 percentage point in December 2017 and,
simultaneously, the One-Month London Interbank Offered
Rate, based on US$, has reached approximately 1.6%.
As stated in the Federal Reserve’s semi-annual Monetary
Policy Report issued in March 2018, the Federal Open
Market Committee is in view of further gradual increases
in the federal funds rate. With our current reliance on debt
financing, the Group expects the overall borrowing costs
to increase in 2018. Our management will continue to
closely monitor the interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging strategies should the need arise.

Apart from the increase in interest rate, the unfavourable
movements in foreign exchange rates may also bring a
negative financial impact to the Group, with the majority
of our sales currently denominated in US$ while the
major production costs are still in RMB. In 2017, RMB
had appreciated by approximately 6% against US$ and
induced a net foreign exchange loss of approximately
HK$14.2 million to the Group. In the first two months of
2018, RMB had further appreciated by approximately 3%
against US$. In addition to monitoring the volatility in the
currency market, our management expects the launch of
production plant in Vietham will help reduce the overall
currency risk to the Group.

Looking forward, under the Group’s internationalisation
plan, we will further ramp up our facilities in Vietnam and
we target to complete the investment in joint ventures
in Sri Lanka in 2018. In the future, this international
production layout will also save us delivery time to
customers as well as manufacturing costs and operating
expenses. It will also bring us more opportunities in the
lingerie, apparel as well as sportswear materials markets
and allow us to further consolidate our leading market
position. Best Pacific is committed to and confident
in delivering a satisfactory growth and return to its
shareholders in the long run.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
trading of elastic fabric, elastic webbing and lace. Details
of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s turnover and results by operating segment are
set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
and Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual
report.

There is no change in the principal activities of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 110.

The Board recommends the payment of the Final Dividend
of HK5.9 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2017. Subject to approval by shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming AGM, the Final
Dividend will be distributed on or about 13 June 2018
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 31 May 2018.

The Board had resolved not to declare any interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2017 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2016: HK7.3 cents per
ordinary share).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 16 May 2018 to 21 May 2018, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged not later than
4:30 p.m. on 15 May 2018 with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM, the proposed Final Dividend will be payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 31 May 2018 and the register
of members of the Company will be closed from 29 May
2018 to 31 May 2018, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to qualify for the proposed Final Dividend, all share
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates shall be lodged not later than 4:30 p.m. on 28
May 2018 with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a
discussion on the Group’s future business development as
well as the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 6
and pages 7 to 24 of this annual report. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year
Financial Information Summary on page 240 of this annual
report. The Group has no significant events after the end of
the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this annual report.
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FORMATION OF A JOINT VENTURE WITH
BRANDIX IN SRI LANKA

On 6 November 2017, () Best Pacific International Sri
Lanka (Pannala) Limited (“BPSL (Pannala)’), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, (i) Brandix,
and (jij Best Pacific Textiles Lanka (Pvt) Ltd (“BPTL”),
(collectively referred to as the “Parties”), entered into
a shareholders’ agreement (the “BPTL Shareholders’
Agreement”) in relation to the establishment of BPTL
for the purpose of, amongst other things, regulating the
ownership, funding and management in BPTL. Prior to the
execution of the BPTL Shareholders’ Agreement, BPTL
was owned as to 100% by Brandix. Since completion of
the initial subscription in November 2017, BPTL has been
held as to 75% by BPSL (Pannala) and as to 25% by
Brandix. The principal business of BPTL is manufacture
and sales of synthetic textiles and textile related products.

As part of the contribution of Brandix to BPTLs total
capital of US$50,000,000, Brandix will procure Brandix
Textiles Limited (“BTL”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of Brandix, to transfer the ownership of certain assets
(including the main factory building structure and the store
building structure) having a total value of US$1,500,000 to
BPTL.
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Besides, pursuant to the BPTL Shareholders’ Agreement,
Brandix shall also procure the sale of certain equipment
by BTL to BPTL for a consideration of US$94,001. The
equipment comprises a wheel loader and an aeration tank.

Simultaneous with the execution of the BPTL
Shareholders’ Agreement, BTL (as lessor) and BPTL
(as lessee) entered into a lease agreement, in relation to
the lease of a parcel of freehold land with a site area of
approximately 6.075 hectares in Sri Lanka for a term of
99 vyears at a total consideration of US$2,200,000. BPTL
shall have the option to renew the lease agreement after
expiration for a further term of 99 years on the same terms
and conditions at a consideration of US$1 by giving six
months’ prior notice in writing to BTL.

In addition, pursuant to the BPTL Shareholders’
Agreement, subject to approval from the relevant
governmental authorities in Sri Lanka, BTL and BPTL
shall enter into a deed of assignment in relation to
the assignment by BTL of its leasehold rights to a
parcel of leasehold land in Sri Lanka with a site area of
approximately 2.023 hectares to BPTL at a consideration
of US$300,000.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 6 November 2017.
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ACQUISITION OF 51% OF THE ENTIRE
ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL OF TRISCHEL
FABRIC (PRIVATE) LIMITED

On 4 December 2017, () Best Pacific International Sri
Lanka (Thulhiriya) Limited (“BPSL (Thulhiriya)”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, (i) MAS
Capital, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of MAS, and (iii)
Trischel Fabric (Private) Limited (“Trischel”) entered into
a joint venture agreement (the “MAS JV Agreement”) in
relation to the acquisition of 51% of the total issued share
capital of Trischel by BPSL (Thulhiriya) from MAS Capital,
and regulating the ownership, funding and management of
Trischel on the terms and conditions as set out in the MAS
JV Agreement.

Pursuant to the MAS JV Agreement, the consideration for
the acquisition shall equal to 51% of the net asset value
of Trischel as at the completion date and, in any event,
shall be no more than US$50,000,000. Pursuant to the
MAS JV Agreement, the completion of the acquisition
shall take place on or before 1 August 2018 or any other
date as BPSL (Thulhiriya) and MAS Capital may agree in
writing. After completion, Trischel will continue its existing
businesses including, among others, the manufacture of
warp and weft knitted fabric, and the importation of yarn
and greige fabric and complementary accessories for
dyeing and finishing for export.

Up to the date of this annual report, completion has not
yet taken place and Trischel is still owned as to 100% by

MAS Capital.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 December 2017.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 4 to 6 of this annual report. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been committed to operating in
compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations and has taken steps to ensure that any waste
and by-products produced as a result of its operations
are properly treated and discharged so as to minimise the
adverse effects to the environment. At present, the Group
has an on-site sewage treatment plant that treats sewage
generated from its production process, in particular,
dyeing and printing processes, by chemical and biological
treatments. Processed sewage is required to meet certain
chemical standards prescribed by the environmental
protection department before it is discharged to the
municipal sewage treatment network. The environmental
protection department has also set up monitoring
equipment at the Group’s sewage treatment plant to
ensure the processed sewage meets the prescribed
standard before discharge.

For further details on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
68 to 86 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in Note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on
pages 113 and 114.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$596.2 million, of
which approximately HK$61.2 million has been proposed
as the Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
amended and restated articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$762,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, sales
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 35.5% of the Group’s total sales for the
year (of which sales to the Group’s largest customers
accounted for approximately 13.0%). Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
36.4% of the Group’s total purchases for the year (of
which purchases attributable to the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 9.1%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities for the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lu Yuguang
Mr. Zhang Haitao
Mr. Wu Shaolun
Ms. Zheng Tingting

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming
Mr. Ding Baoshan
Mr. Sai Chun Yu
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According to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Besides, Article 84(1) of the Articles stipulates that at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.

Mr. Wu Shaolun (“Mr. Wu”), Ms. Zheng Tingting (“Ms.
Zheng”) and Mr. Cheung Yat Ming will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM. All the above Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 60 to 67 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors (except for Ms. Zheng) had
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an
extended term of three years commencing from 23 May
2017. Ms. Zheng had entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from her appointment date on 23 November
2015. Each service agreement will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party by giving to the other party
at least three months’ prior notice in writing. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors had been appointed
for an extended term of three years with effect from 23
May 2017.
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles and Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). None of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY - DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” below and “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors of the Company had any interest in any
competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Mr. Lu Yuguang (“Mr. Lu”) and Grandview Capital
Investment Limited (“Grandview”), being the controlling
shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have each provided a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he/it has
complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have also
reviewed the status of compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders and confirmed that, as far as they
can ascertain, each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the
case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required to be entered into
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were set out below:
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()] The Company () &nH
Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
Long/short underlying shareholding
Name of Director  position Capacity shares  Notes (%)
FREA
. K19,/ 188 B
EENE /KA 514 ROBE W (%)
Mr. Lu Yuguang Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 1
EEtEE Sy BRBEAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 2
e BRBEAA
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 637,500,000 3
e HX B AN#ER
640,500,000 61.79
Mr. Zhang Heitao Long position Interest held by his spouse 2,794,000 4
RERLE av=y HEBRANES
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 75,000,000 5
e HX B ANER
77,794,000 7.50
Ms. Zheng Tingting  Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 1
Lljeyty e 59) BEaBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,794,000 6
i) BaEAA
Long position Interest held by her spouse 75,000,000 7
e HEBRHA0ER
77,794,000 7.50
Mr. Wu Shaolun Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 8
ROmEE 55) BERfAA
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 37,500,000 9
5Y) EXEBRAN#ER
40,500,000 3.90
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Notes:

These shares represented the underlying shares under the
outstanding options granted by the Company on 19 May
2014 pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) of the Company, details
of which are set out in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES” in this report.

These 1,500,000 ordinary shares were issued by the
Company to Mr. Lu upon exercise of his share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

These 637,500,000 ordinary shares were held by Grandview,
which was wholly owned by Mr. Lu. Under the SFO, Mr.
Lu was deemed to be interested in such shares held by
Grandview.

These shares represented 1,794,000 ordinary shares held
by Ms. Zheng, an executive Director and the spouse of Mr.
Zhang Haitao (“Mr. Zhang”), and 1,000,000 underlying
shares under the outstanding options granted by the
Company to Ms. Zheng pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhang was deemed to
be interested in such shares and underlying shares held by
Ms. Zheng.

These 75,000,000 ordinary shares were held by Sunbrilliant
Capital Investment Limited (“Sunbrilliant”), which was
wholly owned by Mr. Zhang. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhang was
deemed to be interested in such shares held by Sunbrilliant.

These 1,794,000 ordinary shares were held by Ms. Zheng
upon exercise of her 1,000,000 share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and acquisitions of
794,000 shares from the market during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Ms. Zheng is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, an executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Under
the SFO, Ms. Zheng was deemed to be interested in the
75,000,000 ordinary shares held by Sunbrilliant as mentioned
in Note 5 above.

These 3,000,000 ordinary shares were issued by the
Company to Mr. Wu upon exercise of his share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. 600,000
share options, 900,000 share options and 1,500,000 share
options were exercised during the years ended 31 December
2015, 2016 and 2017 respectively.

These 37,500,000 ordinary shares were held by Lakefront
Capital Investment Limited (“Lakefront”), which was wholly
owned by Mr. Wu. Under the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to
be interested in such shares held by Lakefront.
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({])] Associated Corporation (within the meaning of
the SFO)

Grandview Capital Investment Limited

m HEZE(ERRIZRHMEMRDH)

Grandview Capital Investment Limited

Approximate
percentage of

Long/short Number of shareholding

Name of Director position Capacity shares (%)

R

BO

EEpnE KB &4 I & E (%)

Mr. Lu Yuguang Long position Beneficial owner 10,001 100
EYSS bivas S5 BEREAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to
the Directors of the Company, the following persons/
entities (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
Name of substantial Long/short underlying shareholding
shareholder position Capacity shares Notes (%)
R
B, HEEE Aot
TERRHE BB F KR 4 RHOBE  HE (%)
Grandview Capital Long position Beneficial owner 637,500,000 1 61.50
Investment Limited 5= EnEBA
Sunbrilliant Capital Long position Beneficial owner 75,000,000 2 7.23
Investment Limited S EnEBA
FMR LLC Long position Interest held by its 103,782,606 3 10.01
S controlled
corporations
HEEERAEN
i dad
FIL Limited Long position Interest held by its 51,894,800 4 5.00
5= controlled
corporations
HEPRERA
- d
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Notes:

Grandview was wholly owned by Mr. Lu, an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Lu was
deemed to be interested in the 637,500,000 ordinary shares
of the Company held by Grandview pursuant to the SFO.
Mr. Lu’s interests in shares are disclosed in this annual report
in the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND/OR DEBENTURES”.

Sunbrilliant was wholly owned by Mr. Zhang, an executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the 75,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company held by Sunbrilliant pursuant
to the SFO. Ms. Zheng, an executive Director, is the spouse
of Mr. Zhang and was accordingly deemed to be interested
in the 75,000,000 ordinary shares which Mr. Zhang was
deemed to be interested in for the purposes of the SFO.
Mr. Zhang'’s and Ms. Zheng’s interests in shares are disclosed
in this annual report in the section headed “DISCLOSURE
OF INTERESTS — DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES”.

FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in the 103,782,606
ordinary shares of the Company through its controlled
corporations.

FIL Limited was deemed to be interested in the 51,894,800
ordinary shares of the Company through its controlled
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017,
the Directors were not aware of any other persons/
entities (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

40

BEE -

1, GrandviewFA A R RIITES R ERFE £ &
2EME RBREBEESFRBEKR - EXE
1% AR Grandview FT #5452 §1637,500,000
T BRPEAER - EXERRKROMNER
TIRAARER [ HEEE -ESREBTHA
BRAKG - BERG K& SEHR RS NK
Bl —HEE -

2. Sunbrilliantfl 4N A & 1T % H 3] 17T 42
REEZ2EHRE RBBEEHFRPEIER
1 - ?Eﬁ'ﬁE%ﬁ%ﬂﬁBASunbnlllantFﬂ—rK’A El
75,000,000/ 8 LB A HEBERS - HITE
%Eﬁézi#ﬁ%‘aimmﬁ A MR EH K
B EARREEWRBAEEREZEN
75 000,000/% EimAT R AR A xS ° REER
L ZaRROMER IR ANFR [
WE -EERETBTRABRKS - HEK

DR BIEHFNERSFAR | — 8T E

/LVKB_Sf

\

3. FMR LLC@iEEZ I EE MR AR AR A

103,782,606% L @AY A A RS o

4. FIL Limitedif i@ & 215 A B R AR AR

7)51,894,8000% L @Ak P A o

B EXFTHRBEEN  R_ZE—+F+=-A=
+—8 %%ﬂummEﬂAmAi/E%
(BEERARREZITHRABRIN RARQ
km&ﬁﬁh%¢%ﬁﬁﬁm%&%ﬁmw
EXVEBFE2 K37 ERIESUBRI AN A 7] KB R B
BENRZIOAE - NREFE SR AE KRG
FEIHRALAARLRGBFIFES LM ERE
SORE ©

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes on
8 May 2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which is governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally approved and adopted
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme pursuant to a
resolution of the shareholders passed on 8 May
2014. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is to recognise and reward the contribution
that certain Directors and employees of the Group
who made or may have made to the growth and
development of the Group and the Company’s IPO.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are substantially the same as the terms
of the Share Option Scheme which has also been
conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to
the aforesaid resolution, except that:

(@ The subscription price is, subject to certain
adjustments set out in the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, equivalent to 50% discount
to the offer price under the IPO.

(b) The maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is 30,000,000
shares, representing approximately 2.89%
of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this annual report (i.e.
1,036,628,000 shares).

(©) Eligible participants under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are the Directors and
employees of the Group who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Group.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under
the Listing Rules, and notwithstanding the
terms of grant thereof, all options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
subject to the following vesting period:

(i) as to 20% of the aggregate number
of shares underlying the option on
the date of the first anniversary of the
date of grant;

(ii) as to 30% of the aggregate number
of shares underlying the option on the
date of the second anniversary of the
date of grant; and

(iii) as to 50% of the aggregate number
of shares underlying the option on the
date of the third anniversary of the
date of grant.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme will lapse upon the
expiry of the option period of 5 years.

No further options will be offered or granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on
or after the Listing Date of the Company on
23 May 2014.

On 19 May 2014, the Company has conditionally
granted options to subscribe for a total of
26,470,000 shares of the Company to certain
directors and employees of the Group under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Details of movements of the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:
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Number of shares issuable under the share options

BERRET FUARTHRGHE

Lapsed/ As at
Exercise As at Granted  Exercised  cancelled 3
price per 1January duringthe  duringthe duringthe December
Grantee Date of grant share Exercise period 2017 year year year 2017
IS
R R ZB-tF
Bk “E-tE R ER BRM/ t=A
ERA RLAH TRE {76 -A-H B B1T#E #¥  =1-A
Directors
Bz
Mr. Lu Yuguang 19 May 2014 1075 19/05/2015- 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
19/05/2019
(Note 1)
Yy ik “E-mE (FitzH1)
LATHE
Mr. Wu Shaolun 19 May 2014 1075 19/05/2015- 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - -
19/05/2019
(Note 1) (Note 2)
RORAE —E-ME (FitsE1) (FitzE2)
BAthA
Ms. Zheng Tingting 19 May 2014 1075 19/05/2015- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
19/05/2019
(Note 1)
i “E-mF (Fitt1)
LATHE
Employees of
the Group
rEEES
in aggregate 19 May 2014 1075 19/05/2015- 7,027,000 - (6,227,000) - 800,000
19/05/2019
(Note 1) (Note 3)
it —2-mF (Brzt1) (FtzE3)
LATHE
Grand Total: 11,027,000 - (7,727,000) - 3,300,000
it
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Notes:

All share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are subject to the following vesting
period:

(a) 20% of the share options are exercisable
from the date of the first anniversary of the
date of grant (i.e. on or after 19 May 2015);

(b) 30% of the share options are exercisable
from the date of the second anniversary of
the date of grant (i.e. on or after 19 May
2016); and

(c) 50% of the share options are exercisable
from the date of the third anniversary of the
date of grant (i.e. on or after 19 May 2017).

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date on which 1,500,000
share options were exercised was HK$5.80 per
share.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the dates on which these
share options were exercised was approximately
HK$6.22 per share.

Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme,
which shall be valid and effective for 10 years from
its adoption date, are summarised below:

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to reward the eligible participants who have
contributed to the Group and to encourage them to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shareholders.

(b)

B EE -
1) RIEE X AFREESERETZIRE
RIFTEBIESZ AT SRBERE
(a) 20%ERER B H BESE
—BAFEAR (B -Z—AF
HA+LB=SZ%E) 171E
(o) S0%ERERT G HBHE
TEFERR (A= —XF
HA+HhB=HZ%E) 17 &
(c) 50%EREA AR HEBEE
ZHEFERR (I =Z2—+F
AA+ABSZE) 17F -
@) 224£1,500,00017 B AR 7T 5 B Al
AR R A7 1 Ye (B & 5 15.8078
5T o
(3) EEZEERRETFEEAARR
B (7 B NAE FH W T E A E R 4)6.22
BT °
R ESTE

WS B A RMA B HEI0F A
M HEXEGRFBORMT

B

AR S/ B R0 BB R B B R AR
B{EL BRI A ER2EE NEREK
FRNREAARRR REBRHEE ©
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Eligible participants

The Board may at its discretion make offers inviting
the Directors and employees of the Group and any
advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners,
joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group, to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company,
subject to such conditions as the Board may think fit.

Total number of shares available for issue

under the Share Option Scheme

(@) 10% limit
Subject to the following paragraph, the
maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the number of shares of
the Company in issue on the Listing Date
(not taking into account any shares which
may be allotted and issued pursuant to the
over-allotment option under the IPO) (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and (as the case may be)
such other share option schemes of the
Company will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The Company may, from time to time,
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by
obtaining the approval of the shareholders
in general meeting, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
under the limit as refreshed must not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval
of the refreshed limit.
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The Company may also seek separate
approval of the shareholders in general
meeting for granting options beyond the
Scheme Mandate Limit or the refreshed limit,
provided that the options in excess of such
limit are granted only to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Company before
such approval is sought.

b)  30% limit

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. Where any further grant
of options to a grantee would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in general
meeting with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Performance target

The Share Option Scheme allows the Board,
when offering the grant of any option, to impose
any condition including any performance target,
which must be met before the option shall vest and
become exercisable.

ARRINAIE R R K& RIS
RATHAER L BB S RE
BR B8 2 4T 5B 3 IR BB A IR AR
WL B RERENEREER
B Y AR RECRA BRI &
RISRIMENEER2EE -
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TR E930% °
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E12E A MERITES 2 BEMRE
RBRE (BRETERERITED
) ME BT REETHRNDE
BN SHBARAR N ETRMOE
1% o JLIRIER A RRIMR H (] 8 AL A2
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MRl (BRER) M12EARER
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Minimum period for which an option must be
held

The Board may at its discretion, when offering the
grant of any option, impose any minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event
shall be not less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and

(©) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

Amount payable upon acceptance of option

HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to
the Company on acceptance of an offer of option.

The Company has not granted any share options
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption
on 8 May 2014.

The total number of shares currently available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
73,630,000 shares, representing approximately
7.09% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report (i.e.
1,036,628,000 shares).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 40
to the consolidated financial statements also constitute
continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which are required to be disclosed in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following
transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have
been entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant
disclosure had been made by the Company in the
prospectus of the Company dated 13 May 2014 (the
“Prospectus”) or disclosed by way of announcement
in compliance with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FEXZ

AR RNFAIFRENETHREAR
SIVER EMRAUBEBTHFERERS A
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

a.

Lease of certain premises for the use of
production plant and dormitories in Humen Town

As disclosed in the Prospectus, on 1 January 2014,
the Humen branch of Dongguan NHE, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as lessee
and Mr. Lu, as lessor, the Chairman and controlling
shareholder of the Company, entered into a lease
contract in relation to the lease of certain buildings
with a gross floor area of approximately 5,835 square
meters in Humen Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong
Province, China, for the use as a production plant
and dormitories for the staff of the Group for a term
of three years from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016.
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To ensure the continuous use of those buildings, on
31 March 2017, Dongguan NHE and Mr. Lu entered
into a lease contract (the “Renewed Humen Lease
Contract”) for renewal of the above lease contract
for a term of three years commencing from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2020. The terms under the
Renewed Humen Lease Contract are substantially
the same as those under the above lease contract,
save that the monthly rental payable under the
Renewed Humen Lease Contract for the financial
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB87,525
and the maximum monthly rental payable for the
financial years ending 31 December 2018, 2019
and 2020 shall be RMB96,278, RMB105,905 and
RMB116,525 respectively. The rental so charged by
Mr. Lu is determined by reference to the historical
rents of those buildings, the prevailing market rents
for similar premises in the same or nearby areas or
similar locations in China, the terms and conditions of
the Renewed Humen Lease Contract, the historical
trend and the expected increase in the rents in the
PRC property market and inflation. Further details of
the Renewed Humen Lease Contract were disclosed
by the Company in its announcement dated 31
March 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
rental paid to Mr. Lu by the Group amounted
to RMB787,725 (equivalent to approximately
HK$918,305).
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b. Lease of certain premises for the use of b. HEETYXAREHENEERE

production plant and dormitories in Houjie kES

Town

As disclosed in the Prospectus, on 1 January 2014, WOBRERAEE  R_T—MF
Dongguan NHE as lessee and Mr. Lu as lessor —A—H ®ZEBE (EAEMEA) &
entered into two lease contracts in relation to the EiaAE (EAHEA) REEFREHER
lease of certain buildings with a total gross floor ER=METEMAZEREMEL17,370
area of approximately 17,370 square meters in FHAMETEFILMOHBEES
Houjie Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, B BEREASENITHEHRAE
China, for the use as administrative offices, a SERERETIES - MHHELH E
production plant and dormitories for the staff of RE-_Z—WNF—H—HEZ-ZFT—RX
the Group for a term of three years from 1 January F+—_A=+—HILAH=F-

2014 to 31 December 2016.
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To ensure the continuous use of those buildings,
on 31 March 2017, Dongguan NHE and Mr. Lu
entered into another two lease contracts (the
“Renewed Houjie Lease Contracts”) for renewal
of the above lease contracts for a term of three
years commencing from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2020. The respective terms under the Renewed
Houjie Lease Contracts are substantially the same
as those under the above two lease contracts,
save that the aggregated monthly rental under the
Renewed Houjie Lease Contracts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB260,550
and the maximum aggregated monthly rental
payable for the financial years ending 31 December
2018, 2019 and 2020 shall be RMB286,605,
RMB315,266 and RMB346,879 respectively. The
rental so charged by Mr. Lu is determined by
reference to the historical rents of those buildings,
the prevailing market rents for similar premises in
the same or nearby areas or similar locations in
China, the terms and conditions of the Renewed
Houijie Lease Contracts, the historical trend and the
expected increase in the rents in the PRC property
market and inflation. Further details of the Renewed
Houjie Lease Contracts were disclosed by the
Company in its announcement dated 31 March
2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
rental paid to Mr. Lu by the Group amounted
to RMB2,344,950 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,733,668).

RERZEEFHREER RZZ
—+F=ZA=+—H8 EBHEHEE
EEFVYSMHBEESR ([KLERT
EHHEEEE]) UWET LA E
AR BZE—t+tHFNA—HEEC
E_EF-A=+—HILAH=F-
KEBFIEEHEESR T A MR
A ESRAERERER - R
HE _ZT—+tF+_-_A=+—81tH
BEERBELETEHEHESREN
/48 A A A R¥260,5500T ¢ A
HE2 T\ - —_ZE—NEFER_ZF
TEFF+ A=+ —HLEMERFE
BN &Ee@ ARSI AARE
286,6057C + AR¥315,2667t K AR
#346,8797C © B EWEKHEE T)
PEZEEFNELHEE - PR —
Hb [ ok 40 3T Hb [ 2k FR (U 1 Bh AR L BE BT
mIETmEEe  KEFTEHHEES
BB R MG - PEEHEMSE
CHRELBARTEHERIARBER
IRETE KETEHHESRNE—
THBERARAHPA-ZT—+F=
A=+—HMRAERHE -

REZ-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—81t
FEARN AEERELXESTANA
& B AR 23449507 (BBE R4
2,733,668/ 7T) °

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Lease of certain property for daily production
and operational use in Machong Town

On 25 September 2015, Dongguan BPT, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as lessee, and Dongguan Quality Clothing
Company Limited (“Dongguan Clothing”) as
lessor entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) in relation to the lease of a property
with a total leasing area of approximately 21,868
square meters in Machong Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, China for the Group’s daily
production and operational use at a monthly rental
of RMB328,020. The lease is for a term of three
years from 1 October 2015 to 30 September 2018,
and is terminable by mutual agreement. The rental
so charged by Dongguan Clothing is determined by
reference to (i) the prevailing market rent of similar
properties in the area; and (i) the conditions of the
property, including but not limited to the location of
the property as well as the facilities associated with
the property. Dongguan BPT shall be responsible
for all the charges for the utility services to be used
in respect of the property. The annual caps for the
transaction amounts under the Lease Agreement
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$8,517,000 and for the financial year ending 31
December 2018 shall be HK$6,552,000. Further
details of the lease were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 September 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
rental and changes for the utility services paid
to Dongguan Clothing by the Group amounted
to approximately RMB6,181,092 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,103,442).

As at 25 September 2015 and the date of this
annual report, Dongguan Clothing is owned as
to 50% by Ms. Wu Wanxiong (the spouse of Mr.
Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company, and the sister of Mr. Wu, an executive
Director of the Company), 30% by Ms. Zheng
(an executive Director of the Company and the
spouse of Mr. Zhang, an executive Director of the
Company), 10% by Mr. Wu Junjie (the son of Mr.
Wu) and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping (the nephew of Mr.
Lu). Accordingly, Dongguan Clothing is an associate
of Mr. Lu, Ms. Zheng, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wu, and
therefore is a connected person of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.
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Sales of elastic fabric and elastic webbing to
Dongguan Clothing

On 3 May 2016, Dongguan BPT and Dongguan
NHE (as suppliers) entered into a sales agreement
(the “Sales Agreement”) with Dongguan Clothing
(as purchaser) in relation to the sales of elastic
fabric and elastic webbing for a term of three years
commencing from 4 May 2016 to 3 May 2019.
Pursuant to the Sales Agreement, the selling prices
for elastic fabric shall be within the range of RMB20
to RMB50 per meter (tax inclusive) and the selling
prices for elastic webbing shall be within the range
of RMBO0.55 to RMB1.00 per meter (tax inclusive).
The selling price ranges for the goods under the
Sales Agreement are determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the parties thereto and with
reference to (i) the historical and prevailing market
prices of the same and similar goods in the area,
(i) the historical and prevailing selling prices of
Dongguan BPT and Dongguan NHE for the goods,
and (jii) the credit worthiness and potential business
growth of Dongguan Clothing. The annual caps for
the transaction amounts under the Sales Agreement
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB15 million and for the financial years ending 31
December 2018 and 2019 shall be RMB15 million
and RMB10 million respectively. Further details
of the Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 May 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, sales
to Dongguan Clothing by Dongguan BPT and
Dongguan NHE under the Sales Agreement
amounted to approximately RMB11,876,595
(equivalent to approximately HK$13,777,924).

As at 3 May 2016 and the date of this annual report,
Dongguan Clothing is owned as to 50% by Ms. Wu
Wanxiong (the spouse of Mr. Lu, the Chairman and
an executive Director of the Company, and the sister
of Mr. Wu, an executive Director of the Company),
30% by Ms. Zheng (an executive Director of the
Company and the spouse of Mr. Zhang, an executive
Director of the Company), 10% by Mr. Wu Junjie
(the son of Mr. Wu) and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping (the
nephew of Mr. Lu). Accordingly, Dongguan Clothing
is an associate of Mr. Lu, Ms. Zheng, Mr. Zhang and
Mr. Wu, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing
Rules.
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Sales of synthetic fabric and webbing to the
Brandix Group

Prior to the entering into of the BPTL Shareholders’
Agreement and the completion of initial subscription
of shares of BPTL, Best Pacific Textile Holdings
Limited (“BPTHL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and its affiliates (collectively, the
“BPTHL Group”), have been selling, and will
continue to sell, synthetic fabric and webbing (or
any other products as may be agreed between the
parties) to Brandix and its affiliates (collectively, the
“Brandix Group”). The initial subscription of shares
of BPTL under the BPTL Shareholders’ Agreement
was completed on 6 November 2017. Since then,
BPTL has been held as to 75% by BPSL (Pannala)
and as to 25% by Brandix and Brandix has hence
become a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the
Listing Rules. In anticipation of the continuing
transactions between the BPTHL Group and the
Brandix Group becoming continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
after completion of the initial subscription, on 6
November 2017, BPTHL entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with
Brandix for a terms of three years commencing
on the date on which the completion of the initial
subscription takes place, i.e. 6 November 2017.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the
BPTHL Group and the Brandix Group will enter
into transactions relating to the sale and purchase
of the synthetic fabric and webbing (or any other
products as may be agreed between the parties)
from time to time on normal commercial terms and
subject to and upon the terms and conditions to
be agreed between the relevant members of the
BPTHL Group and the Brandix Group, setting out,
among other things, the products to be supplied,
specifications, quantity, price, delivery method and
payment arrangement.

BRABERERERAR « —T—tFFHR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFREHE

HESREYER K &% FBrandix
]|

RE]ZBPTLIR R & k¥ & R B
BPTLER D TRl AR ZEE R
EMBRABESBIERERA A
([BRGEBER]) REBB A G (5
HMIBEESBERER]) BATEHE
ENBEEHEARMRARES (%
ErcEAEEmENEMNER) T
Brandix & EBtE N 7] (47 [ Brandix
£H]) - BIEBPTLIRE Wi M1
REBPTLRMER =_ZE—+tF+—A
NEFEK Bt 2 1% - BPTLEBPSL
(Pannala) & Brandix? Bl # B75% &
25%M% 4E - At BIE LW RBIE
14A.06(9)1§ * BrandixB X & 74X A &
ENBARRIEBHR 2BEALT - R¥IZF
REEETNE  BRASBITEREE
BEBrandixE @ 2 MW FE X 5 51E
B TR BIFE14ATE T ERE
R BERL BRYHITERE
Brandix® —ZE—+%F+—A/NH:I L
ERHZE ([ERBE])  BVPRE
EEEKRAH A —FE—+E+—A
NH) BETAB=F -

BIFERDZ  BRGBITHRERR
Brandix s @ #54% IE & B E G TS
TEBERME LGS (KEH 2 M
AEEETHERNER) 2EERS -
BZERGABTEABRG IR
% B KBrandixEE 2 HHEK E R =
2R RGN EhpEgHEZE
MR BE - B BRAER
SRR HE

55



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EELHE

The annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the Framework Agreement for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 was US$3 million and
for the financial years ending 31 December 2018,
2019 and 2020 shall be US$24 milion, US$36
million and US$64 million respectively. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the sales to the
Brandix Group by the BPTHL Group under the
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
US$2,229,502 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,390,116). Further details of the Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 November 2017.

Independent non-executive Directors’ confirmation

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions conducted
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and confirmed
that such transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Review by the Company’s auditor

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Our auditor has issued its
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unmodified independent assurance report on continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 in pages 49 to 56 of this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the independent assurance report has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established by the Board with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Sai Chun Yu (“Mr.
Sai”), Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and Mr. Ding Baoshan (“Mr.
Ding”). Mr. Sai is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established by the Board with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee has three members. For the
year ended 31 December 2017 and up to 19 March 2018,
the members were Mr. Ding (who was also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lu and Mr. Cheung
Yat Ming.

With effect from 20 March 2018, Mr. Lu has resigned as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Zhang,
the Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director,
has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee. After the above changes, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Ding, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and is chaired by Mr. Ding.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 87 to 101 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this report.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 2
November 2017, the Company (as guarantor) and its
seven wholly-owned subsidiaries (as borrowers) entered
into a facility agreement with certain banks in Hong Kong
for a syndicated loan comprising HK$2 billion equivalent
multicurrency term loan and revolving credit facilities, with
a maturity of 42 months from the date of first drawdown
of the term loan facility. The facility agreement contains
specific performance obligations on Mr. Lu, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, requiring that he shall at all
times:

i) maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company and that such
issued share capital shall remain unencumbered;

(ii) be the single largest shareholder of the Company;
(iii) be the Chairman of the Board of the Company; and

(iv) maintain control over the management and
business of the borrowers, the Company and the
material subsidiaries.

As of the date of this annual report, Mr. Lu is the Chairman
of the Board and an executive Director as well as the
controlling shareholder of the Company, holding direct and
indirect interests in 640,500,000 shares and underlying
shares of the Company, representing approximately
61.78% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this report, and is treated as the single largest
shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, if Mr. Lu breaches
any of his specific performance covenants as mentioned
above, the borrowers shall prepay the syndicated loan
together with the interests and all other amounts accrued
in connection therewith in full within 21 days (or such
longer period as the borrowers and the agent of the
syndicated loan may agree) from the date of the notice
delivered by the agent to the borrowers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur
or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group throughout the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant events after 31 December
2017.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017 have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be
submitted at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Lu Yuguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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EENEREBEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Yuguang (E/2¢), aged 52, is the chairman of our
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 14 June
2013 and re-designated as an executive Director of the
Company on 21 January 2014. Mr. Lu is also the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and (up to 19 March
2018) a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Lu has approximately twenty-three years
of experience in the textile industry and he formulates
overall management plans and oversees the strategic
business development of our Group. He is currently the
legal representative and the chairman of Dongguan NHE
and the chairman of the board of Dongguan BPT. Mr. Lu
first started to engage in the textile industry in August
1994 when he was a chairman of Dongguan Runda
Elastic Weaving Company Limited (“Dongguan Runda”),
a company which was engaged in the manufacturing,
production and sale of elastic webbing and throughout
the years, Mr. Lu has been an active entrepreneur in
Dongguan City and Guangdong Province. Since July
2017 and April 2017, Mr. Lu has been appointed as the
president of Dongguan City MaChong Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment (R Mg &
¥HEMBEDE) and as an executive director of World
Dongguan Entrepreneurs (it SRZE B S &) respectively.
Furthermore, he has been a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the
Dongguan Municipal (RZEmiKi#HZE B €) since December
2011 and a member of the Dongguan High-Tech Industry
Association (R =T MEZEHHE) since July 2009.
In July 2009, Mr. Lu was awarded with the “Chinese
Enterprise Management Innovation Achievement Award”
(P B0 1> % & 12 8l ¥ A 3L 88) by the China Academy of
Management Science (FEIEEEIEMFET). Mr. Lu is a
brother-in-law of Mr. Wu. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Lu
was the controlling shareholder of the Company. Details
of Mr. Lu’s interests in the share capital of the Company
are set out in the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF
INTERESTS — DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this
annual report.

HITES

EEXKE 525 ARBERF - WX =
T—=FRNATHRAEZERESE ¥
T-MFE-AZ+—BERERARRMT
EF - ERENBARAREBZEGEIRK
(BEE=Z-N\F=A+NB) FMHEZEEX
8 EREEMBENE_T=F&% A
BEHRIAEENEREEASINEEAEE
FSRESME R ER - KRB ATARTHERE
BREREIFE  TARZHBAEFESIE -
ERER—NNATFEN\ARBREHEE -
ERARCHEBEHEERAR (KRB
Bl —HBEERE LEREEEMEEST
MRaE) MEFE  SEFR-BEENRS
MRERENEER -B-_T—tFLtAK
A - EXEDHIERERREMIEGRE
rEBEMRIEERNEAEHHESE
BHIEE - I BEREB-FT——F+A
E-ERR=MHHEEELZE  Ika-F
ENFELABE-BEARET I RMEZD
288  _TTNFLA  EX4EETERE
EMBHERAR [PEEEEEAIFHA
Bl - ERERREENKK - R-T—+
FHZA=1+—8 EXERARRNER
PR o ERAENARBIBRAF RS
FINAFR [EERE - EFTMTETR
ABRI - HBERG & RHEHO R R

KA —Eh e

60 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHANG Haitao (55/8%), aged 48, is the chief executive
officer of our Group. He was appointed as a Director on
14 June 2013 and re-designated as an executive Director
of the Company on 21 January 2014. He was also
appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 20 March 2018. He is currently a director and the
general manager of Dongguan BPT and Dongguan NHE.
Mr. Zhang formulates and executes overall corporate
directions and business strategies of our Group. He
has approximately twenty-two years of experience in
the textile industry. Mr. Zhang has worked in our Group
since February 2003 and held the position of general
manager at Dongguan BPT. Prior to working in our Group,
Mr. Zhang worked for Pioneer Elastic Fabric (China)
Company Limited (BB¥T3E &Y (P E) BRR A F) as
the business manager between March 1995 and March
1998. Between January 1998 and April 1999, and later
from July 2001 to May 2010, Mr. Zhang was the general
manager of Dongguan Runda. Mr. Zhang has been a
director of the Guangdong Textiles Association (/&3 &
45 4% 1% ©) since November 2009 and an individual life
member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Limited (B8 #7447 2) since September 2013. Mr. Zhang
completed a fashion technology course at Beijing Institute
of Fashion Technology (3t 7 ARZEZER) in July 1992 and
further obtained a master degree in software systems at
the University of St. Thomas in the United States in May
2001. Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Zheng, an executive
Director of the Company. As at 31 December 2017, Mr.
Zhang was interested in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company, details of which are set out in the section
headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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EXNSREEEGZN

Mr. WU Shaolun (= ), aged 53, is an executive Director
of the Company. He was appointed as a Director on 14
June 2013 and re-designated as an executive Director of
the Company on 21 January 2014. He is currently a director
and the deputy general manager of Dongguan BPT and
Dongguan NHE. Mr. Wu is principally responsible for our
Group’s infrastructure and the general management of
Dongguan BPT and Dongguan NHE. He has over twenty-
one years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Wu worked in Dongguan Runda as
the deputy general manager from April 1995 to May 2010.
Since February 2003, Mr. Wu has been the deputy general
manager of Dongguan BPT. In addition, he has been the
deputy general manager of Dongguan NHE since 2010.
Mr. Wu has been a member of the High-tech Enterprises
Association in Dongguan City (5 5¢ T 1= ¥7 £ 17 1 % #
@) since July 2009 and a director of the Dongguan City
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment (FZem
HNEIR B ERHE) since November 2013. Mr. Wu is the
brother-in-law of Mr. Lu. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wu
was interested in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, details of which are set out in the section headed
“DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS — DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES”
in this annual report.
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Ms. ZHENG Tingting (£[121%), aged 43, is an executive
Director of the Company, the chief operating officer and
vice-president (marketing) of the Group and is responsible
for the overall operations, manufacturing and developing
and implementing the sales and marketing strategies of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in December 2006,
Ms. Zheng joined the Guangzhou office of Parker Pen
(Shanghai) Limited as a sourcing specialist in January
2004. In December 2006, Ms. Zheng joined Dongguan
Runda and worked as the vice-president when she left in
May 2010 and she has since joined Dongguan NHE in the
same capacity. Also, starting from December 2006, Ms.
Zheng worked as a sales manager in Dongguan BPT and
since December 2008, she has been promoted as the
vice-president (marketing) of the Group. Ms. Zheng has
also been promoted as the chief operating officer of the
Group since 1 September 2014. Ms. Zheng graduated
from the English department of Xi’an Translation College
(AL BEEEH)IZ267) in the PRC in June 1996. Ms. Zheng
is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, the chief executive officer and
an executive Director of the Company. As at 31 December
2017, Ms. Zheng was interested in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company, details of which are set
out in the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
— DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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EENEREBEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Yat Ming (5k—18), aged 49, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 8 May 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheung
has extensive experience in the fields of investment, real
estate and property market research, corporate finance
and auditing. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheung
was a staff accountant and semi-senior accountant at
Arthur Andersen & Co. in Hong Kong and China from
August 1991. In August 1994, Mr. Cheung joined Citicorp
Commercial Finance (HK) Limited as an administration and
accounting manager and was promoted with Citibank’s
corporate title of assistant vice-president in September
1996. In October 1997, he joined Salomon Brothers
Hong Kong Limited as an equity research associate.
Mr. Cheung joined Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette as a
research associate in its equity department in May 1999.
In November 2000, Mr. Cheung joined HSBC Markets
(Asia) Limited as its head of Hong Kong and China
property research. In 2005, Mr. Cheung joined Cohen &
Steers Asia Limited as an executive director and a vice-
president in its investment research department and was
promoted in January 2007 as a senior vice-president
and Asia Pacific chief investment officer. In June 2009,
Mr. Cheung joined DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited
as its head of research. From August 2011 to June
20183, Mr. Cheung worked as the chief investment officer
of Neutron Greater China Equity Long/Short Fund as
managed by Neutron INV Partners Limited. Since June
2013, Mr. Cheung has been the executive director, chief
executive officer and responsible officer of New Century
Asset Management Limited, which is the manager of New
Century Real Estate Investment Trust, a REIT listed on
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1275). Since March
2014, Mr. Cheung has also taken up the position as
an independent non-executive director of Springland
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1700). Mr. Cheung is
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licensed by the Securities and Future Commission to
carry out Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity.
He became a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January
1995, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in September 1999 and a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales in September 2017. In June 2010, Mr. Cheung
received the Outstanding Chinese Business Leader Award
(FPEELEH P 248 4028) from the HongQi (4I/EZ T) and
China Report (1 E#R3&). Mr. Cheung graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor degree
in accountancy in November 1991.

Mr. Cheung was appointed as a director of Neutron
Greater China Equity Long/Short Fund, an exempted
limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 11 June 2010 to conduct securities investment
business. The company had ceased to trade and was
not in operation, had no assets, nor liabilities to creditors,
shareholders or any other third party at the time when the
directors of the company, one of whom was Mr. Cheung,
and the shareholders of the company believed that it was
for the best interests of the company to be struck off from
the register of companies in the Cayman Islands. The
company was subsequently struck off from the register
on 31 December 2013. Mr. Cheung was also a director of
Neutron Capital Management Ltd., an exempted limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 June
2010 to conduct securities investment business. The
company had ceased to trade and was not in operation, it
also had no assets, nor liabilities to creditors, shareholders
or any other third party at the time when the directors
of the company, one of whom was Mr. Cheung, and the
shareholders of the company believed that it was for
the best interests of the company to be struck off from
the register of companies in the Cayman Islands. The
company was subsequently struck off from the register on
31 December 2013.
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Mr. DING Baoshan (T E1l), aged 55, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on
8 May 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Ding was an executive director
of Denway Motors Limited, which was initially listed on
the Stock Exchange but was delisted in 2010 upon
its privatisation, from 2000 to 2007. Starting from July
2000, Mr. Ding also worked as the chief economist and
the deputy general manager of Guangzhou Automobile
Industry Group Company Limited (BEM/AELHEBAE
R 72 &), managing various departments until October
2007. Starting from 2008, he was the general manager of
Beijing Shengshi Huaxuan Investment Company Limited
At R EFH IR E AR A A) until June 2015. Starting
from May 2011, he has been an independent director of
Qinghai Huading Industrial Company Limited (& /&% &
EEHER AR, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600243). Mr. Ding has also taken
up the position as the chairman and an executive director
of Pizu Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8053) since December
2012, and subsequently resigned as the chairman on 15
November 2016. With effect from 30 March 2015, Mr.
Ding has been appointed as an independent director of
Shanxi Guoxin Energy Corporation Limited (LI 784 & #78k
TR AR A 7)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 600617). Mr. Ding graduated from
the Beijing Iron and Steel Institute (1b R SMEERT) with a
bachelor degree in mining machinery in July 1985. In June
1988, Mr. Ding completed a master degree in engineering
at Beijing University of Science and Technology (1t =7
K AKE) in the PRC. Mr. Ding graduated from the China
Social Science Institute ( Bl#t &1} 22Fx) with a doctorate
degree in economics in July 1991.
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Mr. SAl Chun Yu (R#&¥F), aged 37, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 8 May 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Sai has over fifteen years
of experience in audit, accounting, taxation and business
consultancy. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Sai worked at
Ting Ho Kwan & Chan Certified Public Accountants from
August 2002 to February 2006. Later in March 2006, Mr.
Sai worked at KPMG as an assistant manager. Mr. Sai has
been the managing partner of CCS & Company, Certified
Public Accountants since March 2008. Since March
2012, Mr. Sai has been an independent non-executive
director of Yueshou Environmental Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1191) and resigned from such position with effect from 10
October 2014. In February 2006, Mr. Sai was admitted
as a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. In September 2007. Mr. Sai became a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and was later registered
as a certified public accountant (practising) in February
2008 with the same institute. Mr. Sai graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree
in business administration in December 2002.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Yiu Sing (##£), aged 39, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of our Group. Mr. Chan is
responsible for ensuring and maintaining the standards of
corporate governance of the Group. Mr. Chan has over
twelve years of experience in audit, investment, accounting
and finance. He joined an international audit firm in
February 2006 and was a manager of such audit firm until
May 2012 prior to joining our Group in February 2013. Mr.
Chan graduated from the University of New South Wales
in Australia with a master degree in commerce in June
2005 and a bachelor degree in accounting and finance in
October 2003. He has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September
2009.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Best Pacific International Holdings Limited (the “Company”
or “Best Pacific”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group” or “our” or “we” or “us”), is a leading one-stop
solutions provider of lingerie materials by sales revenue.
Being one of the few lingerie one-stop solutions providers,
Best Pacific supplies the lingerie brand owners with
a comprehensive product range of lingerie materials,
comprising of elastic fabric, elastic webbing and lace.
The Company sustains satisfactory business growth by
leveraging on its high product quality and with strong
innovative and research and development capabilities, Best
Pacific has continued to reinforce its long-term and close
collaborations with leading lingerie brands including "Aimer,
Chantelle, Embry Form, Maniform, Marks & Spencer,
Spanx, Triumph, Victoria’s Secret and Wacoal. In 2013, the
Group further expanded into the sportswear and apparel
materials market. The Group continues to deepen its
partnership with the world’s leading sportswear and apparel
brands including “Lululemon, Under Armour, sportswear
series of Victoria’s Secret, PINK and Victoria Sport, as well
as other international sportswear and apparel brands.

This environmental, social and governance report covering
the reporting period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017, with an objective to outline our approaches,
commitments and strategies to the sustainability
development of the Group. Relevant disclosures of
sustainability performance in material aspects are made
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
With the objective to enhance the Group’s global footprint
and to further expand our market share, a manufacturing
plant in Vietnam just started its production phase in the
second half of 2017. While the policies disclosed in this
report generally apply to the whole Group, those policies
in relation to the production process and the relevant
statistics are mainly related to our subsidiaries in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in which the main
production capacities are located.

N Brands are arranged in alphabetical order.
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VISION

“Build on innovation and technology” has always been
the Group’s vision in developing new products to meet
the market demand. Through its dedication in research
and development, the Group has developed a diversified
portfolio of high-performance lingerie, sportswear and
apparel materials, which are blended with quality, comfort
and functionalities.

MISSION

While Best Pacific is expanding and diversifying the
customer portfolio with its innovative products across
the sectors, we also focus on delivering our social
responsibilities and the Group has always aimed at
creating a green, healthy and safe working environment,
while at the same time educating and equipping our staff
with the relevant skills and knowledge to manufacture
safe and quality products. Best Pacific not only sees
the mission as part of our high corporate governance
and social responsibilities, but also considers it a crucial
element for the long term sustainable development of the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Being one of the world’s leading textile manufacturers,
Best Pacific not only focuses on its business development
by expanding production capacities and creating
innovative and high quality products to customers, but
also aims at putting efforts in making a better world by
creating a green manufacturing environment through a
series of measures. With the 1ISO14001:2004 certification
issued by SGS United Kingdom Ltd., we are regarded
to have exercised quality environmental and energy
management throughout the manufacturing process. With
a view to further improving our energy efficiency and to
making a better world we live in, Best Pacific is working
towards the ISO50001 certification and will continue to
commit to creating a better environment through our
resources-saving campaigns.
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Emissions BERk

Air and greenhouse gas emissions from boilers and WIE MBS EERNZER R EREIEN
pre-treating machines, sewage discharges from the dyeing SEABIR R 895K BERR e Hf A EE RS R P EE
process and other associated hazardous waste from other EHHEMABEREED I ASEEEAE
production phases are the major emissions of the Group’s MENEEEERY - KPR ETITERE
whole manufacturing process. We strictly follow the F M EK BR B A BF 46 5] LA K B BUAT 34 59 48
internal guidelines as laid out in the working environment AR KA - Bol RIRE - FEEE W
handbook, as well as the relevant laws and regulations, N

guidelines and standards issued by the PRC government.
Details of the emissions are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=+—BHLHFE

2017

BERK —E—4tF
Sewage 357K 1,440,000 Cubic meters 3252 1,400,000 Cubic meters 37 /7 £
Hazardous wastes ek EEY) 7.5 Tonnes M@ 3.0 Tonnes M§

Non-hazardous
wastes JEfERREEYD 8,419.9 Tonnes M 4,211.1 Tonnes Mg

For the year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+—-HLEFE

Air and greenhouse i 2017
gas emissions —EB—+F
Carbon dioxide (CO) — &b 21,478.8 Tonnes MA 19,841.8 Tonnes M
(CO2)
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=t+—HLEFE

2017
—ZT—tF

Intensity (Mg/L)
RE (BERAFH)

2016
S
Intensity (Mg/L)

BB BE (R DH)

Sewage discharges

Suspended solids B 7.917 8.583
Ammonia nitrogen [AR 1.048 0.956
Sulfide a7 Less than /)\/20.005 Less than /72 0.005
Total phosphorus 1Rk 0.067 0.052
Hexavalent chromium INE R 0.043 0.022
Aniline EN e 0.055 0.042

Air and greenhouse gas emissions — major pollutants
of the air and greenhouse gas emissions from
boilers and pre-treating machines such as sulphur
dioxide (SO,), nitrogen oxide (NO), carbon dioxide
(CO,), smoke and dusts are emitted and controlled
in accordance to the “Emission standard of air
pollutants for boiler” issued by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the PRC. The Group
has successfully obtained the annual gas emission
license in 2017, for which the license is subject
to review and renewal annually, indicating that the
Group is up to the required standards. Since the
alteration of boilers in 2016, the fuel for boilers
has been replaced by natural gas and, except for
carbon dioxide (COq), other air and greenhouse gas
emissions are insignificant for measurement and
disclosure.

Sewage discharges — sewage is treated and
discharged in accordance to the “Discharge
standards of water pollutants for dyeing and
finishing of textile industry” issued by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the PRC. The sewage
discharges are obtained and examined quarterly
by the relevant governmental authority. Throughout
the year, we had strictly complied with the given
standards and the results are satisfactory.

BEBERERERAT « —T—tFFR

TRMBEREBHN —RIEKRTBELE
BEMREEREENEZSEY - 1
&L (S0,) * BREAEW(NO) » —F| 1t
B(CO,) ~ EERME  HIREF IR
REBEEMHE GRIERX RS R BEBUZ %)
TLUABEMEIES - AEBER T —
tEKNESTFERBHENRGT (AF
FETEZLEY)  KBPLXEEFE
HEEE - BRMNR - —NFRER
TELAZK - SIEFT AR ELE AR ARFTER
K BT 81 (CO2) AN HEH A
TR EREHEMCRERGTTENEEE

ZI2E -

3 KBEIR — 5 K 5 AR ¥ P B BR R B 2%
1o B9 (A A R B T K05 R B0
) T ARRIE R P o J5/KBE 1A
BT ERFI 2 E AR Mm e o MEE(ESF
B - ZPIEERETHERBERE  &RS
AR e

71



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERRS

o Disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
— hazardous wastes mainly include fabric and
boxes contaminated by dye and used dye barrels
while non-hazardous wastes mainly include wasted
papers, wasted fabrics and wasted wood blocks. All
the hazardous and non-hazardous wastes produced
during the production process are centralised and
managed by qualified operator in transferring out
the waste. Volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”)
emitted from pre-treating machines are managed
in accordance to the “Emission standard of volatile
organic compounds for furniture manufacturing
operations” issued by the Ministry of Environmental
Protection of the PRC on the intensity and velocity
of emission. Moreover, various on-the-job training
is provided to employees so as to minimise the
creation of wastes during operation.

Use of resources

Our major resources consumed during the manufacturing
process include electricity, natural gas, water resources,
steam and coal. In order to minimise the impact of the
Group’s operations to the environment, we closely monitor
and control the resources consumed. Details of the use of
resources are as follows:

o FERIFEREBERVEE - TRER
MEEBRFERETRNHBEYMEE
B NMEMRRRER - MIERREYE
ERREER  BEEOBYMERALR
EEBETFELENAARRKIFERE
EMIHRAERNREERBLEREY
R RRIE - TARIEMBEREEMNAR
witey ((EBMEERLEEW])) IR
B BIRREEGE BB ICRE SR E
MCRERETRER AR
BUREE) TLABRRIE o - BBRET
B T ERIF IR DR IEEF BT
MR

EIRA A

BANEEBETHERENEIZEREEE
N RAR - KER ~ ZARK - BIFER
SEZEHRENVTE  RATER Mz
BB EIR - ERFMFBAOT -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—-HLEE

2017

Use of resources —E—tF
Electricity ES 108,448,207 91,943,547
Kilowatt hours T EL/ ¥ Kilowatt hours T FL/J\E
Natural gas KR 9,911,053 Cubic meters SZ 52K 6,026,768 Cubic meters 37 77K
Water resources* IKE IR 5,485,807 Tonnes A 5,509,652 Tonnes M
Steam AR 268,442 Tonnes I 258,953 Tonnes M
Coal B Nil f 3,584 Tonnes I
Packaging materials ‘@5 167 Tonnes ME 138 Tonnes M#

*

The Group did not encounter any issue in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose.

* AREBEEKEUERKR EIDR B EARERE
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Construction and renovation work have been carried REBRERENNETRR  RIFEKEHR
out to upgrade the existing manufacturing facilities on a EHGIRAELEESN  THEEESH &
continuous basis and an annual assessment is performed BT BERNRLEEBEP R EMAE
to allow efficient use of resources and to minimise any ByYE HE-_ZE—+FE+-_A=+—HI1t
environmental impacts associated with the production FE - RFEENMBREEE B -

process. Relevant projects carried out in the year ended

31 December 2017 included:

Projects Details and results achieved
HH HERERAR

Photovoltaic power generation
modules

ARBERA

9,460 pieces of photovoltaic power generation modules have been installed on
the rooftop of our Phase | and Phase VI Production Plants in the PRC in 2017.
RIZ—tFERE-HEERELE NHEERFE EEL R 460EXREE
1848 -

These modules together have a maximum design output of 2.5542MWp.
ZEBER ARG /R2.5542)K R -

It is expected that, on average, these modules can produce 2,389,000 kilowatt
hours annually for 25 years.
B SEATSEFREL2,389,000F R - Af-—+HF -

LED lightings
LED R 84

The replacement of CFL bulbs by LED bulbs has further expanded from production
area to non-production area, which further saved up much electricity.

A EREE—FIFEERSNRAHLEDEBERCFLER - BIEEZE

Reconstruction of recycled
water pipes
BEKEER

Condensed water from steam machines and cooling water from machines are
recycled and reused for dyeing.

RVBELNQRKRERELNL IKKERBNEREE

Over 400 tonnes of these 60°C recycled water are saved per day, and as a result,
14,000KJ of energy is saved dalily in the water heating process.

FRAHE B AB400ME60CHIEIR/K - ALt - BRUKMBBIEF A E
14,000 FEHIELIR

Energy saving pumps of air
conditioning system
ERHARBRERLE

Energy saving pumps of air conditioning system saved us more than 21%
consumption of electricity.
ERERERERMEE THBIB21%HNFEEES

BEBERERERAT « —T—tFFR
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EMPLOYMENT AND WORK EBRERIERE
ENVIRONMENT
Basic information on employees BEEEAXRER
As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of RZZE—+F+-_A=+—8 ~E£EHE
6,409 full-time employees. 1%6,400 8B E T
Talents distribution at a glance
AT R HE—B&
By gender
BRI
'l.’iﬁ'ie 3,862 39.7% 60.3%
= Female Male
7 1
F;,rr;a'e 2,547
By age 50.0%
RER 26 - 35

years old 5%
<26 26 - 35 36 - 45 46 - 55 > 55 w8
years old 5% years old 5% years old 5% years old 5% vears old 5% years old %
@ @ @ =
46 - 55
years old 3%
25.0% 0.2%
55
years olfj g@% ;ears old 5%
By nationality
REEE 8.5%
Vietnamese
5,859 - Others
’ )
H Bt
91.4%
Chinese
&
542 8
Chinese Vietnamese Others
H filEs] Hitb

Total #5t = 6,409 employees Z{&E (100%)
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of R-ZEBE—RE+-A=+—0 ~"EFHE
5,725 full-time employees. B85, 725% W E T -

Talents distribution at a glance

AT DH—BR

By gender
R
'Q_/a'jj_g 3,457 39.6% 60.4%
7 Female Male
Female 8 ik
i 2,268
By age

51.1%
RFR 2635

years old 5%

<26  26-35_  36-45_  46-55_  >55 _ v o 2
years old p% years old p%x years old p%x years old Bk years old 5%
3.4%

46-55
years old 5%

0.2%
> 55

23.7% years old 5%
< 26
years old 3%
By nationality
PEE 1.3%
Vietnamese Others
5,646 B oy
98.6%
Chinese
H
74 5
Chinese Vietnamese Others
H e Hitb

Total #25t = 5,725 employees &A1& E (100%)
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As a people-oriented company, Best Pacific sees human
capital as a valuable asset for the sustainable development
of the Group in the long run.

We have been continuously making efforts to attract and
retain talents in order to support our on-going business
expansion domestically as well as diversification into other
geographical locations. Recruitment and promotion of our
people are based on their ability and performance and
the Group is committed to creating a work environment
which provides fair and equal development and learning
opportunities to all staff, regardless of gender, age,
nationality, race, family status or religion. Discrimination of
any kinds is strictly not allowed in our workplace.

Work-life balance is perceived to be the crux to the
physical as well as psychological development of our
employees. Our staff have reasonable working hours
and rest periods, enjoy all statutory holidays and are
entitled to paid leave according to the laws of the different
jurisdictions.

In terms of benefits and welfare, not only do we pay
contributions of social insurance in the PRC and
mandatory provident fund in Hong Kong, but also provide
subsidised accommodation, meals, accidents and
medical insurance to eligible employees. The Company
is entitled to grant share options to eligible employees
under its share option scheme to recognise and reward
their contributions to the Group and to encourage them to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shareholders.

Compensation is also paid for work overtime according
to local labour laws. Upon terminating any employees
with dissatisfactory performance or of any other reasons,
the Group pays the relevant dismissal compensation in
accordance with their service contracts and the relevant
laws and regulations.
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Development and training

Best Pacific is dedicated to people development and we
believe that effective utilisation of human resources within
the Group is critical to the successful implementation of
our business strategies and development plans, which in
turn will maximise our shareholders’ value in the long run.
The provision of continuous on-the-job training covering
job specific skills as well as regular generic management
training programmes is perceived to be the key to the
success of Best Pacific. These training programmes would
enable employees to excel in their positions by exploiting
their potentials to the maximum extent, thus contributing
to the sustainable development of the Group.

Further to the opening of Best Pacific School of
Management and Administration (the “School”) in June
2016, which aims to provide generic management training
to employees of different managerial level, the leadership
and management training programme was held during the
year and external consultants have been engaged to give
lectures to the relevant employees regularly.

In order to equip employees with the requisite skills to
further enhance Best Pacific’s core value, innovation and
quality, Best Pacific Institute of Technology and Research
(the “Institute”) was officially established in June 2016.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Institute
engaged external professionals in the textile sector to
provide a series of lectures to employees of different
positions. The lectures aimed to introduce updated
garment design concepts, manufacturing techniques
and other industry specific knowledge to the relevant
employees, so as to strengthen their knowledge of textile
technology and to provide them with updates on the
innovation and trends of the textile and garment industry.
There were a total of 40 employees from the design
team, research and development team, sales team and
production department attending the lectures.
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Occupational health and safety

Health and safety at workplace has always been one
of our top priorities. Through implementing below
key occupational health and safety measures, we are
committed to promoting a healthy and safe working
environment to our employees:

° Occupational safety workshops for new employees;

° Regular work safety training programs to frontline
production employees;

o Accessible work safety handbook placed at each
work station;

° Protective equipment to employees, including but
not limited to safety goggles, dust respirators, slip
proof safety boots, safety helmets, gloves, etc.;

° Annual assessment on working environment;

° Highly automated lifting and production facilities to
avoid spinal injuries;

o Regular repair and maintenance on production
facilities;

° Non-smoking working environment (employees are
only allowed to smoke in smoking rooms);

° Regular health check for employees;

° Regular fire drills and chemical leakage drills;

° Shortened working hours for each shift to avoid
health over loading. Work shifts at labour level

changed from two to three shifts per day;

o Drinking water assessment in every six months.
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December 2017 and 2016

Types of cases

RIER

Cases of fatality o
RTRH

Zero cases of fatality due
to workplace accidents
in all locations of our

Statistics for year 2017
“E2-tERHEE —2-

BRERZEHT (BEZZ

e NERRE

IRiE -

—tERk=

ANETZA=T—-HLEEE)

Statistics for year 2016

NEGTEE

zero cases of fatality due
to workplace accidents
in all locations of our

Control measures and relevant policies

BHERRARRE

A training on avoiding workplace injury has been
included in staff induction.
BT ARSI R RAEETIE -

eaz oy epiEiany *  Responsible party(ies) is/are subject to severe
oy i 4 A 2 it 4 A
’ ‘%% AERLRALRE \gz% M LRA LR punishment and shall be investigated for legal
TEA TRH e
responsibilities if necessary.
* one case of fatality due o BEENRRIBERS  YRPEREXER
to heart attack in the EEAE -
fsgg:y i DrgeEt, i * Subject to the source of responsibility, the
Group may consider paying compensation or
» —ERPEREINE P e Peying cemp
SHATEHGTCER ey

o AEEVHERBRARINEESXXTR
e -

Lost days dueto e 1,083.5 days ° 699 days *  Amodule on avoiding workplace injury has been

work injury * 1083.5Kk ° 699K included in staff induction.

BIBBAIEA o BINBSEEEMmM@ETE -

8 * Responsible party(ies) is/are subject to
punishment and shall be investigated for legal
responsibilities if necessary.

o BEREFMXIES YRV EREIZERLE
HE -

*  Employees are entitled with paid sick leave
in accordance with the local labour laws and
regulations.

¢ EERRERBEMSHEERERZIFHR
fge

*  The Group provided assistance to the family members of the * AREBEAZEINZRBIEMHTE -
employee.
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Labour standards

The Group has guidelines setting out the procedures and
standards on recruitment by the management and human
resources team, which are to enable that staff employment
strictly complies with local employment regulations. The
guidelines are being reviewed on a regularly basis so as to
ensure consistency with any update of the relevant rules
and regulations in all locations of our operations.

Best Pacific complies with local employment regulations in
all locations of our operations, and does not engage in any
forced or child labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

Suppliers of Best Pacific are primarily the leading
manufacturers of the respective kinds of yarn based
in various countries across Asia. We only source raw
materials from qualified suppliers on our suppliers list and
the sourcing across Asia helps diversify concentration
and operational risks. Long-term relationships with these
leading yarn manufacturers have been maintained and
we have had business relationships with our three largest
suppliers for more than ten years, as of the date of this
report. Nevertheless, we do not enter into long-term
supply agreements with our raw materials suppliers but
place individual orders for our raw materials as necessary.
We believe that this enables us to source high quality raw
materials at competitive prices available in the market and
discussion on the expected pricing and volume is usually
carried out on a quarterly basis.

In order to ensure stable supply of high quality raw
materials for our products, and that the production
capacities of our major suppliers are sufficient to meet
our production and future development needs while
maintaining the quality of raw materials, strict measures
are in place in selecting new raw materials suppliers as
well as monitoring quality of the raw materials provided by
our existing suppliers, which include:

o T
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Suppliers Control measures
ftrEm EEYRiEiE

New suppliers e Subject to certain evaluation and assessment criteria.
e o EIFETERIERE -

e Key factors to consider include: quality of products, technological know-how of
suppliers, purchase price, production capacity, etc.

e FIEZZRARGE EnEE  HEBRMEZTDN WREERLEER
ER

e Add to our suppliers list who are qualified after evaluation and

assessment.

o ERFHMERIIARMNGERHERZE

Existing suppliers o Subjeot to regular review and assessment.

BAMHER o EITEMEZLE -

° On-site review at the premises of major suppliers and assessment of
their production capacity and product quality by our procurement team.

o BEBIHATFrEHERNEMETENEEWTERENEER TR
FDD%E °

* Remove suppliers who fail to meet our standards from our suppliers list.

o ASREEEDHFIRENHBRARRMNEERRET S -

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY EmEE

Product quality assurance EREERET

With the knowledge that reliable delivery of quality BMIAE  MEPEBIMEEEMIIKY
products to our customers is critical to our success, 2% AEEEEEEEIRYEERE
our Group has implemented quality control procedures EEGEF ZEFHESEHEBFRH
throughout our production process, which is led by over BB00H BEREE - REBRKENESIEHIE
300 experts in our quality control team. The stringent M - ANEE AR TiSREEE eI ER °

quality control enables the Group to deliver quality
innovations to the market.
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Strict quality control measures have been adopted in each BN EELIFBERERARIENE SR
stage of our production process, including: HIEHE - BIE

Production stages Quality control measures
EERR HEEGERE

Suppliers We only source raw materials from suppliers on our suppliers list and

frERS evaluate our suppliers from time to time and conduct on-site review and
assessment at the premises of our major suppliers.
BAEmMHEREEMRIIEGERHERERRERH R MR A HER - I
AT EHEEMNEMETEMES KT -

Purchase of raw materials Sample tests are conducted prior to confirmation of orders to ensure quality.

BREE R MR Sample tests are also carried out when raw materials are delivered at factory.
MEERR] BERIFEHETR AN MENERE S - §RMEHEETRF NG EITH
R o

Production At each stage of the production process, comprehensive tests and research

EE analysis on the quality of the semi-finished and finished products are

conducted using international quality standards, with a view to ensuring that
customers’ specifications are adhered to.

1% CABIRR & SRS A4 T & AR R A B m M mE T HE 8 2 H R
BIRATR AT - AREETEF RS ©
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Products of Best Pacific are widely recognised for their
quality in the lingerie, apparel and sportswear materials
markets, both within and outside the PRC. The following
table sets forth details of the major certifications we have
applied for and received in relation to our achievements in
quality control:

HtERERRE

IRiE -

TR BIERRIRIN - BRABEKRNERT
BEFTHARZEAR - REKEBREDR
MBHEZEET - TREJEBHEMNLE =%
S T EME BRI ESNEERER
15

Accreditation Issuing organisation Area of accreditation Year of issue
R FEAAE REERE BREH

ISO9001:2008 SGS United Kingdom Ltd.

Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Testex

Quality assurance 2014
—PU%E

Quality assurance 2017
—T—+F

The Oeko-Tex Standard 100 is widely used in the textile
industry as a uniform global standard of testing and
certification. The Oeko-Tex Standard 100 tests harmful
substances at all stages of production, including raw
materials, semi-finished products and finished products.
Only manufacturers who comply with strict testing and
inspection procedures and provide verifiable quality
assurance are allowed to place the Oeko-Tex label on their
products.

Our quality control standards have been certified by a
number of brand owners which allow us to conduct quality
testing on our products in our own laboratories without the
need to engage a third party laboratory. Our quality control
laboratory has been certified by certain lingerie brand
owners such as Marks & Spencer. As at 31 December
2016 and 2017, there were over 300 staff in our quality
control team.

BEBERERERAT « —T—tFFR
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B FOeko-TextZ4; -
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For any complaints from customers in relation to product MEBEREENTNEPEKFME @ M
quality, our quality control team will analyse the details Mg S E RO IEEERAEE
of the complaints and the respective products, and o SR IR E R A L B EUR S e A
determine the reason(s) of defects and take safeguard fFE®B3AE

measures to prevent it from happening in the future:

Reasons of . .
. Responsible parties and safeguard measures
defective products EES R REEE
AL 5 SR =
Defective raw materials e Procurement team will communicate and verify with suppliers for the
R R AT B quality issue on the raw materials. Suppliers shall bear the responsibility

once identified and confirmed.

. T“ﬁ%ﬁﬁHﬁdﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂrﬂ’qfé%%ﬂﬁéﬁiﬁi\ﬁ@ﬁi& TEBREE —KEFERE
R HERARAERE -

e Such raw material supplier will be removed from our suppliers list if

defective raw materials are identified repeatedly.

o WERBERBEER  HERVMHHEERSEHERZEDHII -

Improper or errors in e Quality control team will analyse the details of the complaint including

manufacturing process walking through the manufacturing process with production team.

HERFTAETER Production team shall bear the responsibility once identified and
confirmed.

o HEEHBEBRMOMIRHFFE  BRESLEESNEETR - —KEE
KR - EEREASER ©

e Defective products will be collected from customers and replaced with
new batch of products. Production team will take immediate assessment
on the production process so as to achieve a defective-free production
process.

c BEFPREIWHREER WAHERSHR FEDEHEERFETR
el fh - NEERTREEERT ©

Improper loading/ e Quality control team will communicate and verify with carriers for the
unloading during improper loading/unloading. Carriers shall bear the responsibility once
transportation identified and confirmed.

EEBRTHHITE e EEERFIEBHEREHNTERERARIETEREE - —KEENE

R BEBHARERERT -

e Such carrier will be removed from our approved carriers list if improper
loading/unloading are identified repeatedly.

o WEXRERKHIE - HEEGARKERRAEHARBREFHIR -
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With our strict control on the product safety and quality,
there were no products sold or shipped subject to recalls
due to health and safety reasons in 2017.

Protection of intellectual property rights and
consumer data

Best Pacific recognises the importance of protecting
and enforcing intellectual property rights. For any
business conversations, including product designs
and specifications, we strictly follow the confidentiality
principles as agreed with the relevant counterparties.

We comply with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that customer information we receive is only used
for its intended purposes.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

A series of policies, operating manuals, handbooks
and protocols are in place which allow Best Pacific to
maintain high ethical standards and a workplace free from
corruption.

There are anti-corruption policies, rules and regulations
for our employees, contractors and suppliers to follow.
We also have a reporting mechanism for any corruption
or suspected corruption behaviour. Any contravention to
these policies, rules and regulations identified with solid
evidence, we will terminate our engagement with the
contravened parties immediately and if needed, report to
relevant regulatory authorities after discussion among the
management.

We review the relevant policies, rules and regulations from
time to time.

There was no legal case brought against Best Pacific for

corruption nor was there any corruption reported within
the Group during the year.
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COMMUNITY
Community engagement

Our Group has always been keen to bring our value back
to the society. We support the community through a wide
range of charitable activities and community services. We
encourage our employees to help the needed ones in
volunteering and engaging in these activities. In addition,
Best Pacific also sees youth development and employee
support important and crucial, and has been supporting
them through various channels.

To the poor and disabled communities

Financial assistance is always a direct way to support the
needy minorities. Volunteers from Best Pacific are always
generous in stretching out their helping hands in various
fund raising activities for the poor and disabled people, as
well as giving charitable donations. Apart from donations,
we believe helping and serving the community through
community visits could demonstrate our love and caring to
the needy groups. Community visits are regularly paid to
the elderly, disabled and child care centres, and we also
send gifts to the elderly during festive time. In addition to
helping the local communities, we are also keen on helping
communities in other countries. During the year ended 31
December 2017, Best Pacific has supported charitable
events in the PRC and Vietnam through sponsorships.

To the youth community

Best Pacific is dedicated to nurturing young talents as
future leaders for the fast-growing and dynamic textile
sector. We supported the youth community in the PRC
and Vietnam through sponsorships during the year ended
31 December 2017.

To our staff community

Best Pacific believes that employees are valuable assets to
the Group. We see every employee as our family member.
“Love Support Foundation” has been set up to provide
emergent financial support to our staff members who are
unfortunately suffered from serious sickness, accidents,
or difficulties in daily living. Through internal fund raising
among staff members, sense of responsibilities and
belongings to our Group are enhanced.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
of corporate governance which is essential to the
sustainable development and growth of the Company.
The Board is of the view that the Company has met all
the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Reporting Period”).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors of the
Company and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting
Period.

The Company has also established a code no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by senior management who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive or inside information of the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the end of the Reporting Period and the date of
this annual report, the Board comprises seven members,
consisting of four executive Directors, namely Mr. Lu
(Chairman of the Board), Mr. Zhang (Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Wu and Ms. Zheng (Chief Operating Officer),
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming, Mr. Ding and Mr. Sai.

The biographical information of the Directors as well as the

relationships between the members of the Board are set
out on pages 60 to 67 of this annual report.
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tEERRE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Lu and Mr. Zhang respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and daily management and operations
generally. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing more than one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Re-election and Retirement

According to the Articles, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Besides, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company. All Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles.

Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions in the Articles, Mr.
Wu, Ms. Zheng and Mr. Cheung Yat Ming will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming AGM. All the above Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services
and advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters
relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director. The Company
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
from time to time, in order to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. The Company is also arranging suitable
professional development seminars and courses for
the Directors. For instance, every newly appointed
Director will receive induction on the first occasion of his/
her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Directors’ responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

The Directors informed the Company that they had
received sufficient and relevant training and continuous
professional development during the Reporting Period.
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Records of training by the Directors are maintained by the
company secretary. Training records of Directors in 2017
are as follows:

PEEARE

é% OB BEHARMERT - EF
“EEFMEIIREAT

Directors Type of trainings
2= EIEE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Lu Yuguang EEAEAE A&B
Mr. Zhang Haitao SRELE A&B
Mr. Wu Shaolun R E A&B
Ms. Zheng Tingting gz i+ A&B
Independent non-executive Directors BIAKHITES

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming R—ISEAE A&C
Mr. Ding Baoshan TEL%E A&C
Mr. Sai Chun Yu SNRFHLE A&C

A reading materials relating to the Group, general business, A: MEaEAEE —MEXK - FTHHINS

latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements

B: attending a training session on directors’ duties and latest
development of the Listing Rules conducted by legal advisers
of the Company

C: attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Under code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals and under code provision A.2.7 of the CG
Code, the chairman of the Board should at least annually
hold meeting with the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) without the
executive Directors present.

During the Reporting Period, five Board meetings were
held.

In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the executive
Directors’ presence.
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A tentative schedule for regular Board meetings for 2018
will be provided to the Directors at the beginning of the
year. At least 14 days’ notice for all regular Board meetings
will be given to all Directors and all Directors must be
given the opportunity to include items or businesses for
discussion in the agenda. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice will be given. Relevant agenda and
accompanying Board papers will be sent to all Directors at
least three working days in advance of every regular Board
meeting.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee
are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 8
May 2014 in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the
Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.
The Audit Committee has three members, namely Mr. Sai,
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and Mr. Ding and is chaired by Mr.
Sai.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems
and procedures, audit plan and relationship with external
auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.
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The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to review annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016, the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017
and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function, and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The external auditors attended all the above meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from
the audit and financial reporting matters.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 8 May 2014 in compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26
of the Listing Rules and code provision B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee has three members.
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to 19
March 2018, the members were Mr. Ding (who was also
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lu and
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming.

With effect from 20 March 2018, Mr. Lu has resigned as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Zhang
has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee. After the above changes, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Ding, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and is chaired by Mr. Ding.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management, and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee

are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company'’s website.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
met two times for the purpose of, among other matters,
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management and other related matters.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the remuneration paid to other member of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

HMER (GB)

RBEREAR  FMZESRITMREE -
PA (H AR 845) Mt 28 2 A) #) 2 Bf B R 2R
BALRTEENSREEBNFHFTER
HMRESEER URAESTSROES -

HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HLFEEEN
EZHFMOFEBLERN G BRRME
10 °

BIEDEE AT MSTEHENB.A5E - #
BT tF+ A=+ HIFERFHN
ERIHNTFHMOSATEBKENTFMNES
ThEHNT

Number of person(s)

A

1,500,001 - 2,000,000

1

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
8 May 2014 in compliance with code provisions A.5.1 and
A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee has
three members, namely Mr. Lu, Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and
Mr. Ding and is chaired by Mr. Lu.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board diversity policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company'’s website.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
met two times for the purpose of, among other matters,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee considered the diversity of the
Board is appropriate.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Company has formulated a comprehensive corporate
governance manual containing various policies and
procedures governing the functioning of the Board
and its committees, appraisal and remuneration, risk
management, financial reporting, conflict of interest,
connected transactions, shareholders’ communication and
other aspects of corporate governance and management
of the Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and general meeting of the
Company held during the Reporting Period is as follows:

EERZEERESRHFERLRE

BEEHERNREHEANEGANARFES
ghEEZEEgRMRERENEHEN
T

Meetings attended/Meetings held
HESBRE EEBTRE

Annual

general Nomination = Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
=t RRBAFKE = REZES FMZEES EREES
LU Yuguang 11 5/5 2/2 2/2 N/A T A
EEH
ZHANG Haitao 1/1 5/5 N/A N E A N/A TNE A N/A TNE A
A=
WU Shaolun 1/1 5/5 N/A NEF N/A TNEH N/A NiE A
R M
ZHENG Tingting 1/1 5/5 N/A 1~ N/A N/A T3
ipeyey
CHEUNG Yat Ming 1/1 4/5 2/2 2/2 3/3
w—I8
DING Baoshan 1/1 5/5 2/2 2/2 3/3
THE
SAl Chun Yu 1/1 5/5 N/A 3@ N/A T EF 3/3
RIRTF

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY EESHUBHRRNESE

IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 102 to 109 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services (mainly for review of the condensed consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2017 and tax compliance services) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$2.2 million and approximately HK$674,000 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has in place the sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
From time to time and at least once a year, the Board
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to ensure
that they meet with the dynamic and ever changing
business environment as well as the requirements under
the Listing Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and
creditability of the review, an independent audit firm has
been engaged to conduct the appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit
Committee, with reference to and based on the internal
audit report issued by the independent audit firm,
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal control and financial reporting
functions, and training programmes and budget. The
Board has considered and discussed the internal audit
report issued by the independent audit firm, the work
conducted by the independent audit firm, the Audit
Committee’s view on the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and their effectiveness. The
Board and the Audit Committee are satisfied with the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
of the Group.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) on 23 May 2014. A summary of this Diversity
Policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
corporate governance report, on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Diversity Policy.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven Directors. Three of them are independent non-
executive Directors, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, experience, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yiu Sing, the Company Secretary appointed by
the Board, is a full-time employee of the Company; and
in the opinion of the Board, possesses the necessary
qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing
the functions of a company secretary. During the
Reporting Period, Mr. Chan has taken not less than 15
hours of professional training. The Company will continue
to provide funds for Mr. Chan to take not less than 15
hours of appropriate professional training in each financial
year as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
its corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.bestpacific.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where information and updates on the Group’s
business developments and operations and other
information are available for public access.

Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders or investors
to the Board are welcomed by mail to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 8th Floor,
West Gate Tower, No. 7 Wing Hong Street, Lai Chi Kok,
Kowloon, Hong Kong or via email to ir@bestpacific.com
for the attention of the Investor Relations Department.
Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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tEERRE

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
It is the Company’s general practice that the Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, their duly appointed
delegates, who are members of the relevant committees,
will be available to answer questions at the general
meetings of the Company. In addition, the Company wiill
invite representatives of the auditor to attend its annual
general meeting to answer shareholders’ questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the
independence of the auditor.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Director, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. The
Company’s shareholders may convene an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(1 Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
to convene an EGM pursuant to Article 58 of the
Articles by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
purpose of requiring such general meeting must be
stated in the written requisition.
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(2 If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant to
Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the general meeting shall send a written
notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her
intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of such general
meeting and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name(s), contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required
by law. Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further
details of the rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings
of the Company shall be voted by poll except where
the chairman decides to allow a resolution relating to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands pursuant to the Listing Rules and the
Articles. The poll results shall be posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company after each
shareholders’ meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant
change in the articles of association of the Company.

The latest version of the articles of association of the
Company are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Best Pacific International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 110 to 239,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

=2

BB RS
BEBERERERATRR

(REEHELME L ERA])

=R

AZEED (A TERERMA) 2FAIEHR
F110E239 B BABBRERER AR (A
THEEIEQR]) REMBAR UATHE
[BEE]) NEEMB®RE  HHHREE
RR-_Z—tF+-A=1T—"HNEaHE
MAKRBHEZAEFENGFEBRREREM
2HBER  SERGEPHRNEEEDR
BX  UREEUBHRRME BREETES
ATRBE -

BPIRA  ZEGRAVBERRCREHETE
S AERMHNCEEM B RELER) B
EmMPEiRRT SEER_FT—tF+
“R=t—HNEAFHIRR MEEZE Lk
FENGAMBRAMIARSRE - AB
BREBARAGD) BREREZ RS -

ERHER

BHMERBEEB SRR (EEE
PR ETTEG - RIEXFER T ARE
MEECEARE [ZBMARAEARE MG
WERAENET] ST EE—SEM - R
BEEEGHMASRMH (EXSFTANER
STRDOATERE ] > HABIR &
SB YERETTAFHNEMERERE
£ RMBE - RPAESHNETRERER
RMEE R FINEST RIRHER -

1 02 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Allowance for inventories
Key audit matter

We identified allowance for inventories as a key audit
matter due to its significance to the Group’s consolidated
financial position and the involvement of subjective
judgment and management estimates in determining
allowance for inventories.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s inventories mainly
consist of elastic fabric, elastic webbing and lace products
and amounting to approximately HK$694.5 million, which
represented approximately 16.5% of total assets of the
Group.

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management of the Group reviews the
inventory aging analysis at the end of the reporting period
and identifies the slow-moving or obsolete inventory
items that are no longer suitable for use in production
or sales. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice
prices, estimated costs of completion and current market
conditions. In addition, the Group carries out regular
inventory review with reference to aged inventories
analysis, management experience and judgement on
the expected future saleability of goods and provides
necessary allowance if the net realisable value is estimated
to be below the cost.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Allowance for inventories (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to allowance for inventories
included:

Assessing key controls over the identification
of slow-moving or obsolete products and
management’s process in estimating of allowance
for inventories;

Obtaining management’s inventory aging analysis
as at 31 December 2017, testing the integrity of
such aging analysis used as a basis to calculate the
allowance and performing retrospective review on
such aging analysis of inventories against the basis
for allowance in prior years; and

Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining allowance for obsolete or slow-
moving inventories and testing, on a sample basis
for subsequent sales or usage for checking if the
inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and if sufficient allowance had been
made.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Key audit matter

We identified allowance for bad and doubtful debts as
a key audit matter due to its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial position and the involvement of
subjective judgment and management estimates in
evaluating the collectability of the Group’s trade receivables
in assessing allowance for trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (Continued)
Key audit matter (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounting to approximately HK$639.1
million, which represented approximately 15.2% of total
assets of the Group and out of these trade receivables
of approximately HK$109.0 million were past due but not
impaired.

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the allowance for bad and doubtful debts
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of individual trade debt performed by
the management. A considerable amount of judgment
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial
condition of customers of the Group is to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.

How our audit address the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to allowance for bad and
doubtful debts included:

° Assessing key controls on how the management
estimates the allowance for bad and doubtful debts;

° Obtaining management’s trade receivables aging
analysis as at 31 December 2017 and testing
integrity of such aging analysis on a sample basis;

° Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining allowance for bad and doubtful debts,
including the reasonableness of management’s
assessment on the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of trade debtors; and

o Testing the recoverability of trade receivables on
a sample basis by checking against schedules of
subsequent settlements and tracing to supporting
documents.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

108

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
pased on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lui Chi Wang.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeRakEMrmiaER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE-_ZT—+tF+_-_A=+—HBILFE

2017 2016
—E—4+HF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt eE TR FET
Revenue WA 5 2,794,811 2,469,106
Cost of sales HEMKA (2,022,139) (1,641,128)
Gross profit el 772,672 827,978
Other income HAhug A 7 50,657 44,935
Other gains and losses Habes & &8 8 (14,351) 24,725
Selling and distribution expenses HE RN HERA (149,072) (120,584)
Administrative expenses THAX (183,990) (162,681)
Research and development costs e & A (83,999) (55,361)
Share of result of a joint venture DMEEELFEE 3,195 5,715
Finance costs BhE Bk AN 9 (35,219) (28,660)
Profit before taxation M B AR A 12 359,893 536,067
Income tax expense FSBimx 13 (56,258) (79,816)
Profit for the year FEERA 303,635 456,251
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hfth2Ekz (BxX) :
ltems that may be reclassified HigngeEsoss
subsequently to profit or loss: B=mMIER -
Exchange differences arising on BEBIINEBEED
translation of foreign operations M 5 ERE 181,926 (150,236)
Share of translation reserve of NMEEEDENBRE
a joint venture Ee 906 (590)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale At ESREE
financial assets A THER 515 214
Reclassified to profit and loss on disposal RHE—EAHEHE
of an available-for-sales financial asset SREERETSHE
i (250) =
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREMEEKZE (%)
for the year 183,097 (150,612)
Total comprehensive income for the year &£RX2 kA% 486,732 305,639
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to R FE(LEF (E518)
— Owners of the Company — RRAREEA 304,219 456,251
— Non-controlling interests — JEERRE R (584) -
303,635 456,251
Total comprehensive income (expense) £ A FE{L 2 H Uk 2%
for the year attributable to (B%) #%
— Owners of the Company A VNEIEZ=N 487,316 305,639
— Non-controlling interests — JEEIRE R (584) -
486,732 305,639
Earnings per share SREF 15
— Basic (HK cents) - B (BAL) 29.45 44.37
- Diluted (HK cents) - 5% (B() 20.29 44,00
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=
el

7SR R

As at 31 December 2017 A —ZE—+F+-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —ENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FExT FAT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 16 2,277,003 1,324,704
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERK 17 103,021 80,521
Interest in a joint venture RE B ERNER 18 32,413 15,300
Deposits biaia 22 104,838 90,523
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHESREE 19 27,512 28,434
Deferred tax assets IR E = 30 774 867
2,545,561 1,540,349
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 20 694,457 504,635
Prepaid lease payments FERAEERK 17 2,593 894
Trade and bills receivables B S EWGIE R R 21 648,359 561,898
Other receivables, deposits and HE R EE « Ze &
prepayments BT FRIAR 22 80,537 67,074
Amount due from a related company  FEUX AL A Bl I8 21 366 698
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA 29 - 12,811
Pledged bank deposits BIRAIRITER 23 54,623 61,610
Short term bank deposits ySEEEEarER 23 11,687 13,362
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 23 176,715 424,540
1,669,337 1,647,522
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables = ANEe 24 181,616 122,658
Bills payables AN 25 285,175 314,013
Other payables and accrued charges — E.fth fE < 1B K fE =+ & 26 183,344 200,981
Bank borrowings RITEK 27 262,486 120,707
Obligations under finance leases AVE T EAIE 28 629 5,302
Tax payable JEB T IE 11,740 36,592
924,990 800,253
Net current assets REEEFEE 744,347 847,269
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABEE 3,289,908 2,387,618

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB

As at 31 December 2017 A—ZE—+F+-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF “TRE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
k=3 FExT FHET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEK 27 977,776 472,795
Obligations under finance leases BB EAIE 28 - 629
Derivative financial instrument TE€mIE 29 4,426 4,780
Deferred income FEEUTA 7,044 7,649
989,246 485,853
Net assets BEERE 2,300,662 1,901,765
Capital and reserves BEAXRFE
Share capital &N 31 10,365 10,288
Reserves HE 2,290,881 1,891,477
Equity attributable to owners of A TS AEGER
the Company 2,301,246 1,901,765
Non-controlling interests IR E R (584) -
Total equity ERBE 2,300,662 1,901,765
The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to F110E239E WM BHREREZESTERN
239 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March “E-NFZAZ+HEHERENTRESR
2018 and are signed on its behalf by: =
Lu Yuguang Zhang Haitao
Chairman Executive Director
e HITESE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A
=)

EmEPR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZ =T —+tF+=-A=F+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREEAERL
Investment PRC Share Non-
Share revaluation Other Special  statutory Translation options  Retained controlling Total
Capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
REEf HEEE BRE FER
BE  ROER i HitEE  REIRE R RHREE % REEA @t BE  ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T F#n TFi#gn TFi#gn Ti#n T T T T Fix Fx
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
(Mita)  (WiEb)  (Witc)
At 1 January 2016 RZE—E—F—H 10,213 547,958 @79 106,715 (13,070) 86,745 (38,610) 17,837 1,021,635 1,738,944 - 1,738,944
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - - 456251 456,251 - 456,251
Exchange differences arising on BEGNEBRELN
translation of foreign operations EHESR - - - - - - (150,236) - - (150,236) - (150,236)
Share of translation reserve of AEAECENAERE
ajoint venture - - - - - - (590) - - (590) - (590)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale  FI{tiH &S BAER)
financial assets DT EYE - - 214 - - - - - - 214 - 214
Other comprehensive expense FEEMZERS
for the year - - 214 - - - (150,826) - - (150612 - (150612)
Total comprehensive income FEZENRER
for the year - - 214 - - - (150,826) - 456,251 305,639 - 305,639
Issue of new ordinary shares BIAREREAR
of the Company (Note 31) (HizE31) 75 21,005 - - - - - (13012 - 8,068 - 8,068
Recognition of equity-settled share ~ BEZREEE RN A
based payments (Note 33) ERAR (Fi733) - - - - - - - 6,015 - 6,015 - 6,015
Transfer from retained profits RRZEMNERE
to the PRC statutory reserve REAERE - - - - - 26,460 - - (26,460) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ FE25 TREIAR &,
(Note 14) (FE14) - - - - - - - - (156,901)  (156,901) - (156,901)
At 31 December 2016 RZF-—RE+ZA
== 10,288 568,963 (265) 106,715 (13,070) 113,205 (189,436) 10,840 1,294,525 1,901,765 - 1,901,765
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - - 304219 304219 (584) 303,635
Exchange differences arising on REBNEBRELN
translation of foreign operations EHESR - - - - - - 181,926 - - 181,926 - 181,926
Share of translation reserve of AERECRAERE
ajoint venture - - - - - - 906 - - 906 - 906
Fair value gain on an available-for-sale —JBAI{4H &S REE
financial asset HATEkE - - 515 - - - - - - 515 - 515
Reclassified to profitand losson ~~ RHE—TAFHHESE
disposal of an available-for-sale BERBHARERE
financial asset - - (250) - - - - - - (250) - (250)
Other comprehensive income FREMRERE
for the year - - 265 - - - 182,832 - - 183,097 - 183,097
Total comprehensive income ER2ENGER
for the year - - 265 - - - 182,832 - 304,219 487,316 (584) 486,732
Issue of new ordinary shares of FIARRH AR
the Company (Note 31) (MfE31) 77 16,339 - - - - - (8,109) - 8,307 - 8,307
Recognition of equity-settled share ~ FEARIELERN &
based payments (Note 33) ERR (H5E33) - - - - - - - 1,703 - 1,703 - 1,703
Transfer from retained profits to RRE TSRS
the PRC statutory reserve REETERE - - - - - 18,602 - - (18602 - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution B2 IE#IIRE.
(Note 14) (Hfit14) - - - - - - - - (07845 (97,845) - (91845
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tF+=A
=t+-8 10,365 585,302 - 106,715 (13,070) 131,807 (6,604) 4434 1,482,297 2,301,246 (584) 2,300,662

BRERZERERAR « —T—LFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z= =%

Notes:
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—H= N/

Y UE:

Pursuant to sale and purchase agreement dated 16 January
2014, entered into between the Company with each of
Grandview Capital Investment Limited (“Grandview”),
Sunbrilliant Capital Investment Limited (“Sunbrilliant”)
and Lakefront Capital Investment Limited (“Lakefront”),
Grandview, Sunbrilliant and Lakefront transferred 85%, 10%
and 5% of their respective interests in Best Pacific Textile
Holdings Limited (“BPT Holdings”) to the Company, the
consideration of which was settled by way of allotment and
issue of 331,500, 39,000 and 19,500 shares of HK$0.01
each by the Company, to Grandview, Sunbrilliant and
Lakefront, respectively, with reference to their respective
shareholdings in BPT Holdings. As Sunbrilliant and Lakefront
had in effect obtained 10% and 5% beneficial interests
in New Horizon Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“New
Horizon Investment”) after the aforesaid transfers and
allotments, an additional consideration of approximately
HK$40 million and HK$20 million were paid by Sunbrilliant
and Lakefront to Grandview, respectively, and such
consideration was determined with reference to the fair
value of the 15% equity interests in New Horizon Investment
and its subsidiary as at 30 September 2013. BPT Holdings
then became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Other reserve of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$106,715,000 represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company and
the carrying value of the non-controlling interests held by
Sunbrilliant and Lakefront and the share capital of BPT
Holdings prior to the completion of a group reorganisation on
16 January 2014.

Several subsidiaries of the Company provided financial
guarantees to its related companies and the fair value of the
financial guarantees was recognised as deemed distribution
to the shareholders at initial recognition. These financial
guarantees were released in previous years.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) statutory
reserve is non-distributable and the transfer to this reserve is
determined according to the relevant law in the PRC and by
the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the subsidiaries. It can be
used to make up for previous year’s losses or convert into
additional capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company.

G

(@)

DATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

w C T T A= ElEEE

RIE A T EGrandview Capital Investment
Limited ([Grandview|) * Sunbrilliant
Capital Investment Limited ([ Sunbrilliant])
K Lakefront Capital Investment Limited
([Lakefront]) SR - —MNF— A+~
HEI 2 E&E#% * Grandview * Sunbrilliant
&Lakefront PRIMARREEEESBREB
BHOBIERERAR ([BEHBER]) Z
85% ~10%K5% - HWEREBHARA
2BEEZERBRAGBIZROED Jﬁ
Grandview * Sunbrilliant X Lakefrontfic & &
2% 17331,5000% * 39,000/% }19,5008% & I&
H1EO. OL%EZHX@%% o B FSunbrilliant
K Lakefrontid £ il 88 5% & Fl 3514 BB _EEUS
HERE (B8 BRAR([BERE] ©
A110% 5% B # #z + AL + Sunbrilliant
K LakefrontE 9 Bl & 1 #9408 & 4 7T %20
B & BT EEINMCE FGrandview + A 8

REDZ2RAFEERERENERRI5%
RER —E—=FNAA=TBOHAFEME

BASBIERBER K BARR 22 A
BRa] - AEEREAFEEA106,715,00075
TC ' MARRBIT RGN EfﬁéﬁiSunbriniant&
LakefrontiF B R IEIE R ER R EE LB AL
BIRN R —E—NE— A+ S HHNEER
BRI 2 =5 o

RRABETHEB QR REBE QBRI
R - MBERE QT EIIGHER BB IER
g%%m cREVBERENBEFER

REARAMBE ((HE]) EZEFHBRTA
DIk HZHEENEROAPERBARNE
ZSRBEMNBELARNEKEIZMAIZTERE
RAAREETE ° sk fé A P (E R A~ 2 Rl B
MEARMEFEIERBRAEIER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 = —%F

'J—ﬂ/\

W

\2:5
_iumgyi

—tFt+-A=1t—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Operating activities REEE
Profit before taxation R AT AR A 359,893 536,067
Adjustments for: R NFEIBEL TR
Interest income FLEWA (4,040) (18,708)
Finance costs BhE A A 35,219 28,660
Reversal of allowance of PREFERERE
obsolete inventories - (6,923)
Share of result of a joint venture DEEEREEE (3,195) (5,715)
Depreciation of property, M - HENEREITE
plant and equipment 153,036 122,210
Change in fair value of derivative TEE R T A
financial instruments N EEE) (484) (7,308)
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE BEX
plant and equipment W 913 2,244
Share-based payment expenses & RERNNRFAX 1,703 6,015
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments HIETENEERNRK 2,495 894
Amortisation of deferred income %ﬁﬁ?ﬁk”ﬁl?\ (1,096) (1,296)
Unrealised exchange loss (gain) HEESETEREETR
arising on translation of current EEIE'FEE’J*”‘
accounts within group entities b 5 E51E (Was) 23,952 (20,431)
Dividend income from an available-for-sale KE—HEAHHE
financial asset SMEEZRBWA (1,316) =
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HE—IBAMHEE
financial asset SRLE ER M E (250) =
Operating cash flows before movements ZEECEHHEN
in working capital KERSRE 566,830 635,709
Increase in inventories FEEMm (152,572) (163,056)
Increase in trade and B S WG IE & BN E &
bills receivables #Zhn (72,985) (100,080)
Increase in other receivables, deposits Hi IR -~ e &
and prepayments TR FRIBIE AN (7,049) (48,144)
Increase in trade payables B S P IR N 53,053 1,541
(Decrease) increase in bills payables FEAZEE Cd) 8N (45,002) 65,133
(Decrease) increase in other payables and Hih eI N ERTE B
accrued charges OB) &0 (25,020) 48,499
Cash generated from operations IR EATISIR 317,255 439,602
Income tax paid ERFTEH (82,413) (63,594)
Net cash from operating activities RETEFBRESFHE 234,842 376,008

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
l\‘/_.]—\/\i/% 7 //Ibii%

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Investing activities RETE
Placement of pledged bank deposit FE ERRITIFER (121,488) (151,148)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B ERRITIER 132,443 123,619
Interests received EHFIE 4,113 22,645
Payment for prepaid lease payments EZH?Eﬁ?fE —XNEN (24,084) (43,978)
Addition of property, plant and equipment AN=RZ N Gl (1,010,327) (522,422)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - HE K
plant and equipment RS FUR 2,096 707
Dividend income from an available-for-sale *E—EAHEE
financial asset TREEKRBMA 1,316 -
Government grant received EWET B £ - 2,503
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEMHRLESHEE - (27,512)
Proceeds from disposal of an available-for-sale HE—IEA t{j%
financial asset TREEMSRE 3,250 =
Placement of short term bank deposits with FRIREIHR fLL TIH
original maturity over 3 months Z FEERERITIF K (820,271) (2,078,838)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits REVREZHRBB
with original maturity over 3 months =8 A ZEHASRI 717K 822,802 2,305,926
Payment for additional interest in a joint venture ~ XffR—HEEZERE 2
B MER (71) -
Advance to a related company BT —EEH AR - (698)
Repayment from a related company ezl NCIFEE N 332 =
Net cash used in investing activities RETBMARSFER (1,009,889) (369,196)
Financing activities il T B
Interests paid EN%‘JE\ (34,728) (27,383)
Dividends paid BERRE (97,845) (156,901)
Proceeds from issue of new shares ?‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂx{ﬁﬁﬁﬁf KIE 8,307 8,068
New bank borrowings raised ST RITIER 773,432 229,549
New syndicated loan raised LR EE 1,000,000 600,000
Transaction cost paid on syndicated loan REEREMNRZHHA (28,000) (21,100
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBRITIEK (508,310) (550,926)
Repayment of syndicated loan ERIREER (591,565) (252,178)
Repayment of obligations under EEmEHERE
finance leases (5.302) (11,427)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities RESFEE (FfH) BE
g 515,989 (182,298)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B2RBELZEYRD FHE (259,058) (175,486)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FINEERREEEY
of the year 424,540 627,293
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERESEE g 11,233 (27,267)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRNEESRESEEY
the year, represented by DRITESRRBEEAR
Bank balances and cash 176,715 424,540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company and registered in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability under the Companies Law Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands on 14 June 2013. Its immediate
and ultimate holding company is Grandview
Capital Investment Limited (“Grandview”), which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and
is wholly owned by Mr. Lu Yuguang (“Mr. Lu”), who
is also the Chairman and executive director of the
Company. The Company’s shares have been listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 23
May 2014.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements.

BT AR AR « —T—LFFH

—REH
ARRARZE—=ZFA+HAIR
B E 8B ENF2E QREE(—
NRN—FFE=ZRAR" i%??A&fl§
) EREHSFMRLAER R
ERAR EEERKKRIERA A
Grandview Capital Investment Limited
([Grandview|) RN EBE XL i S
((RBRELZES]) M I HAR
RIEFERAFTEZTEELEE (EX
£]) 2EHENRR - ARRIRME
B-ZE-—MNFRA-ZT=AREES
BaRFHAARRIE (B ER
ko

ARRNIEEE RET ([Ex])
NREEMBRERNZSIEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7

Amendments to  Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to  As part of the Annual
HKFRS 12 Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years, but resulted in additional
disclosures as set out in these consolidated
financial statements as described below.

R REETE ;‘% \ﬂ%iﬁ
SR ([HEEUHREER )

FEECREERNTEMBREE
Rz 85T

AEERAFEEHRERELSETAD
Ag ([BREFMIE]) BHOAT
/%EWW#&%EE'JZD HIE

BEGER R A

BERGER  BMAREHEEREL
F125% B PR B B2 TR
(BETA)

BEMBHE EA-F—MFE
ZERIZE 1258 :g_/\iﬁﬁgfﬁ
(f&5TA) B IRE R FE

2 —E

RAFEEEAESTERE LD 2B
RV AEAEBAFERBEFEN
HMBRERRAEEATE  BEK
TXFZ SR BREE 258
N ER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for
the first time in the current year. The amendments
require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes
in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included
in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following
to be disclosed: () changes from financing cash
flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining or losing
control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (i) the
effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv)
changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in Note
42. Consistent with the transition provisions of
the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in Note 42, the
application of these amendments has had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHITRKZEITEBUER
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL HER (BB BEHREERD])
REPORTING STANDARDS (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

EHEMEERERNHITREERTE
B BREER

AEEY EREFEAIATERMER
REMEFR MBI T BT B IME

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs which have been issued but

120

are not yet effective: A -

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ et p ek o SETA

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts ERURBREENE IS  KAREAGZKE
with Customers and BB
related Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases* ERORR LIS AR

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* ERRRBLEAE17E  RRAR

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions 5 (ARBRRERE IMNEQRHREMNRE

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

and Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

£EE)- ﬁ““”*zzsﬁ
%.5‘/%( &%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁp& RE

) %“"*”23%
E/%Eﬁ%#&%ﬁﬂu%zsﬁ
(fE3T7)

BRMHREEAEAR
CHES)

BAMHEEEAEOR

CHES)

FIEHEEN T
(i

BABR 7 AR 58
RALDERGTE

HEEH ﬂ‘%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ”
%4‘%1% M A
HEREBH f%iﬁ
HEAFR SR
TA

ARAMEIRME
AR

EARBREERE0RR REEREBELA

BAGERF26%
CHES)

AEBEELER
FANEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Amendments to As part of the Annual
HKAS 28 Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to Transfers of Investment
HKAS 40 Property’

Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to
the Group are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”). All other financial assets
are measured at their fair value at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

° For non-substantial modifications of financial
liabilities that do not result in derecognition,
the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows
and discounted at the financial liabilities’
original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the
carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification. Currently, the Group revises
the effective interest rates for non-substantial
modification of financial liabilities with no
gain/loss being recognised in profit or loss.
The directors of the Company anticipate
that, upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 9,
the non-substantial modifications of financial
liabilities will not have significant impact to
the opening retained profits of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=—%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Financial assets classified as loan and
receivables carried at amortised cost as
disclosed in Notes 21, 22 and 23: these
are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding.
Accordingly, these financial assets will
continue to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost upon the application of
HKFRS 9.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)
Classification and measurement: (Continued)

o Unlisted investment in a partnership
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets carried at cost less impairment
as disclose as disclosed in Note 19: this
investment qualified for designation as
measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 and
the Group will measure these securities at
fair value at the end of subsequent reporting
periods with fair value gains or losses to
be recognised as other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve. Upon initial application
of HKFRS 9, the differences between the
carrying amount at cost less impairment
and fair value (net of deferred tax impact)
relating to this investment would be adjusted
to investments revaluation reserve as at 1
January 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)
Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the expected credit loss
model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to
the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs and other items that are subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by the Group
as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly increased as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised
under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on trade and bills receivables
and other receivables and deposits. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss
model would reduce the opening retained profits
and increase the deferred tax assets at 1 January
2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS
15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

° Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

o Step 38:  Determine the transaction price

° Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as)
the entity satisfies a performance
obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations,
as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting period.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon the
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for
finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$25,381,000 as disclosed in Note
34. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16. Upon the application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16.

In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits paid of HK$2,520,000
as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and
such adjustments are considered as additional
lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the financial effect until the directors of the
Company complete a detailed review.

Other than those disclosed above, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of
other amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
have no material impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

FTESTEE

ZERAVBHRRERIEB B ST
RERMHHNEBMBERE LR REL -
o - ZEERE MR BE R
&7 LR AR E S R BRGIFTARE
HE AR R o

AT X EETERATA - BRIRS WA
HEAE RN ALEEAAENS T2/
TR - AN BRED REE SN
AEERH -

JE S AN — AR LA B IR B dm Se R 7 P
EREN R FERE - RFETINET
EAMB2EERNEFRIPHESR
ERMEEEEAEMMER - M
Tim Al BB EMGEET AE R AR
HAMAFTRER - RAFEEXAR
MAFER  AREEZEEMLE2H
ERFEAHEEXREEERMAE
BEEXABRFN - AW BHRERT
et 2R S WBER BN FETER
HEEETF - ERBMEHREERF2
S [ AR D AR 3R] SEEIAAY A
B SERNNRRS - BESE
A7 [HE ] SEANHEER S
REDNTFEEMUELFRAFENTE
(mEESENFE2R [FE] WA
B FEXB LS EREICHRE
ERE] MEREE) BRI -

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set
out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of joint ventures used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in a joint venture or acquisition of
additional interest in a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture
of the Group (such as a sale or purchase), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the joint venture that are not related
to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances and sales related
taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development
phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;
° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for their intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets (other than the construction in progress)
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part
of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings
under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for
use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the leases. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which a lease includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment
as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case
the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
pbetween the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented

s “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements,
the entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under a finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and the State Social Insurance Fund are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interest in joint venture, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Inventories

Inventories mainly consist of textile products and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is calculated using
the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of the three categories, including financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
(“AFS”) financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is (i) contingent consideration that
may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for
trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included
in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 39.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and bills receivables, amount due from a
related company, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment. The accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets is set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity instruments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as AFS financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for unquoted equity investments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured. Changes
in the carrying amount of AFS debt instruments
relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit
or loss. Dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment on financial assets
below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables
where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables
are considered uncollectible, they are written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, ff,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period in which the impairment takes place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on AFS equity investments
carried at fair value are not reversed in profit or
loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is () contingent consideration
that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii)
held for trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;
or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio

of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in
Note 39.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including trade payables,
bills payables, other payables and accrued charges
and bank borrowings, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

TESHBE (B

$RITA (&)
tREBBERRATAE (&)

FBRmE A FlETENTHEE (B

FRERRATEFENTSREBES
BRAFEINE MEFAEMELLZ
EA RSB RINBEARER - R
BEABRzWENEBEEFRETE
ERERBES M 2 TR EILIA
[Hf et X2 B8 | —1H - 2 FETHR
B EES9RTIt 2 7T HETE

Hitt 2@ A 18

Eibe A E (DEE BMANKE -
FE B - AR SR R A B
BAR SR 1T HE3R) L1 DA B S U BUASR
B ER A B -

KRATA

PR T B2 B Rl i HRR AR B HY
MEREREEENGERNGLD -
RAFETHRATATGIRE WG
RIENRERBEITRAALR °

155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=—%

156

ERE R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair values at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to directors and
employees

For grants of share options that are conditional
upon satisfying specified vesting conditions,
the fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions and
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimates, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

When share options are cancelled, the amount that
would otherwise have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

EEREEE (@)
RELHERDBERGTRRS
RFEEREISCBRE

BRI L AW R E R BRI 1R A
EENBRE  MERBHATFES
RAFRBRENELBZATFEEE
mAZ B RATA IET 5 5 B IR - I BA
BEROAEER B RS - miE (B
P tERE ) SAREEM -

ANEE B RS B AR RIEA A E
FAIET 5 5 B IR TR ERT SRS
BERERECGAET - BIRAM
AR E (E) NEEER - A
RETRAXRBREER A5 XRBR
REFEIFREREE -

BRRETER - R BRERERE
RZBBERERERMEE - BB
BN 5B B R BOMW SR 2RI B 1)
REETTIE - Jo A I 8 AU A T o8
BEKEBREREER -

BB KRB TRES
R 5 £ FR 35 TR K RED B 10 4 2
i -

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



4.

bl

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the
management of the Group is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The followings are the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that has a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Allowance for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory
aging analysis at the end of the reporting period
and identifies the slow-moving or obsolete
inventory items that are no longer suitable for use
in production or sales. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices, estimated
costs of completion and current market conditions.
In addition, the Group carries out regular inventory
review with reference to aged inventories analysis,
management experience and judgement on the
expected future saleability of goods and provides
necessary allowance if the net realisable value is
estimated to be below the cost.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Allowance for inventories (Continued)

There is no further allowance nor any reversal
of allowance for obsolete inventories during the
year ended 31 December 2017. Reversal of
allowance for obsolete inventories of approximately
HK$6,923,000 was credited to profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
carrying amount of inventories is approximately
HK$694,457,000 (2016: HK$504,635,000) as at 31
December 2017.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of individual trade debt
performed by the management. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial condition of
customers of the Group is to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowance may be required.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, no further allowance for bad and doubtful
debts was charged to profit or loss. The carrying
amount of trade receivables is approximately
HK$639,089,000 (2016: HK$555,898,000) as at 31
December 2017.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the relevant assets, after taking into account their
estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded during the year. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical experience
with similar assets taking into account anticipated
technological changes.

The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group determined that there
is no change to the estimated useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment is approximately
HK$2,277,003,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$1,324,704,000).

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue is derived from manufacturing
and trading of elastic fabric, lace and elastic
webbing in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam (“Vietnam”), net of discounts and sales
related taxes.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The financial information reported to executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”), for the purpose of
assessment of segment performance and resources
allocation focuses on types of goods delivered.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

o Manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
and lace

This segment derives its revenue from
manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
and lace made from synthetic fibres that are
commonly used in high-end knitted lingerie,
apparel and sportswear products.

o Manufacturing and trading of elastic webbing

This segment derives its revenue from
manufacturing and trading of elastic
webbing made from synthetic fibres that are
commonly used as shoulder straps, lingerie
trims and waistbands.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER (£)
Segment revenue and results WA REE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AR BAREBIRKS KA #HEs D g2l
and results by operating and reportable segments: DRI A R EEDHT :

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZE—+tHE+-A=+—HILEE

Manufacturing

and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace elastic webbing Total
HEREE
A HEREE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET FTExT
Segment revenue from REINAEFH)
external customers DEHA 1,853,249 941,562 2,794,811
Segment profits 7 5B A 248,296 187,341 435,637
Unallocated other income A EAKA 7,408
Unallocated other gains RO E AW R EE
and losses (13,438)
Unallocated corporate expenses  AROEL R (37,690)
Share of result of a joint venture ~ DMEA S MEESE 3,195
Finance costs BEKA (35,219)
Profit before taxation PR A AT A 359,893
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

w C T T A= ElEEE

6. ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂm
DEBAREE (F)
BE_Z-AF+t-A=t—-HLEE
Manufacturing

and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace  elastic webbing Total
HEREE
e =2 HEREE
R R E 4% 5B M A S BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Segment revenue from REIAEFH)
external customers D EFUA 1,636,597 832,509 2,469,106
Segment profits van el 363,241 199,823 563,064
Unallocated other income KA EAUA 21,986
Unallocated other gains KO EmMERER
and losses 24,725
Unallocated corporate expenses KA B EFY (50,763)
Share of result of a joint venture ~ DEA KR EE 5,715
Finance costs AR (28,660)
Profit before taxation BR 0 Al Vi A 536,067
The accounting policies of the operating and EN A HE SISt hFENE

reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment profit represents
the results of each segment without allocation
of corporate items including mainly bank interest
income, dividend income from an available-for-
sale financial asset, change in fair value in derivative
financial instruments, net foreign exchange (loss) gain,
share of result of a joint venture, loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment for corporate use, gain
on disposal of an available-for-sale financial asset,
corporate expenses and finance costs. Corporate
expenses include directors’ remuneration paid or
payable by the Group, equity-settled share-based
payments and certain administrative expenses for
corporate function. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets
and liabilities by operating and reportable segment:

As at 31 December 2017

6. DEEHR (&)
THEERER
AT RAREEIREE N A HwE DS
DRBENBEDT

R-ZE—tH+=-A=+—H

Manufacturing
and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace elastic webbing Total
HEREE
BHEAY HEREE
ER R E# EHAR st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERx FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEHEE 3,079,139 783,098 3,862,237
Property, plant and equipment YIE R N ERE 3,817
Interest in a joint venture NE & ERER 32,413
Available-for-sale financial assets  FIftHELFIEE 27,512
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 774
Other receivables, deposits and ~ H b El3RIE -
prepayments & RENFIA 45,120
Pledged bank deposits EIKIRRITIER 54,623
Short term bank deposits KERIRITIF R 11,687
Bank balances and cash RITERRAS 176,715
Total assets BERE 4,214,898
LIABILITIES =1
Segment liabilities DEEE 424,754 225,507 650,261
Other payables and accrued HiERRIE R
charges JEstE A 6,918
Bank borrowings RITER 1,240,262
Obligations under finance leases & fH & dE 629
Tax payable FEFFIE 11,740
Derivative financial instrument ELRTIA 4,426
Total liabilities BEER 1,914,236
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DIER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016

THEERER (&)
R=-B-X"E+=-A=+—H

Manufacturing
and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace  elastic webbing Total
HEREE
B HEREE
R R E 4% 5B M A S FE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 1,979,458 517,937 2,497,395
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BB KA 52,088
Prepaid lease payments BRBEENK 43,978
Interest in a joint venture REatERER 15,300
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ At HEL BB E 28,434
Deferred tax assets EEMRBEE 867
Other receivables, deposits and ~ HAth i lirzE
prepayments we IERMNFIE 37,486
Derivative financial instrument THEepmIT A 12,811
Pledged bank deposits BIEMIRITER 61,610
Short term bank deposits KEERIRITIF 13,362
Bank balances and cash RITHREBREA S 424,540
Total assets BEMAE 3,187,871
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities HEBEE 446,825 193,562 640,387
Other payables and accrued HAEAHIE R
charges ExtEH 4,914
Bank borrowings RITER 593,502
Obligations under finance leases & & & &A1& 5,931
Tax payable JEZRIIE 36,592
Derivative financial instrument TESMTA 4,780
Total liabilities BELE 1,286,106
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZDEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) FHEENERE (&)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances BERSEEH D PERIBREERED
and allocating resources between segments: fid
o all assets are allocated to operating and B BEN SIS & KA H
o st o e poper E98 RRELERLGY
anments fofI ogrporate use p(inc?luding the ﬁi J?ﬁ/i&ﬁ/\ﬁ_{%l% Eiii:f_%_ &
prepaid lease payments and property and 3: EEIEE’] 47 4;\1 42 A
plant under construction in Vietham as at 31 . = . = R
December 2016 which were subsequently ,ﬁ‘ I:j\ E/j Ei‘_“z L _ = E}:
allocated to the respective segments upon RREE= Ef = H -
the completion of the construction during THIEFE i— TR
year ended 31 December 2017), interest EEE E0H) - REERR H/”‘E
in a joint venture, available-for-sale financial 1 | & = ﬁ% raﬂl BE BT
assets, deferred tax assets, derivative financial @:ﬂ HEAE - T£EE@MI A O
instrument, pledged bank deposits, short BERRTHER - EHRITHER
term bank deposits and bank balances and MRITEBEBRE U RETH
cash and certain corporate assets. FEERIN
. all liabilities are allocated to operating and FiE & ﬁi’J CEL R KA 8
reportable segments, other than bank %.: DR M ﬁE 17 {ﬁ o mEM
borrowings, obligations under finance leases, EAE . EHEHIE - STES
tax payable, derivative financial instrument TEREFLEAGBRKRAI -
and certain corporate liabilities.
Other segment information Hi o EER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_E—+tE+-_B=+—HItEE
Manufacturing
and trading of ~ Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
andlace elastic webbing  Unallocated Total
HEREE
BHSN REREE
ARREH BT RO o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR TR
Amounts included in the measure of ~ FHEATRFTH L
segment profit or segment assets: BERTANGE
Additions of property, plant and RENE  BFE k&
equipment 777,358 215,325 5 992,688
Additions of prepaid leased payments BRI E (TN 14,258 9,826 - 24,084
Depreciation of property, nE  RERXERE
plant and equipment 116,727 35,821 488 153,036
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ~ ZHBRAENK 1,867 628 - 2,495
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7
Other segment information (Continued) Hftt o #EH (ﬁg)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B=E —R"RFE+ZA=+—-BL
FE
Manufacturing
and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
and lace elastic webbing Unallocated Total
BEREE
kg HEREE
R REH BUAT AR 5t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TAT
Amounts included in the measure of STESBRNG T
segment profit or segment assets: BERTARSE :
Addttions of property, plant and RENE - BERXE
equipment 410,154 36,000 48,470 494,624
Additions of prepaid leased payments BRI E (I = = 43978 43,978
Depreciation of property, 0% BELRETE
plant and equipment 95,146 26,576 488 122,210
Amortisation of prepaid lease EHEBAEERR
payments 894 - - 894
Reversal of allowance for obsolete REGERERR
inventories (6,923 - - (6,923)
Other than the segment information disclosed B EXHERN DB TER-
above, there was no other information reviewed by REEMERERNEEENEMELR -

the CODM for both years.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Vietnam. The Group’s revenue
from external customers based on the location of

the customers are detailed below:

PEER (&)
ih & &

AEEXRBURTE - FERBE -
AEBEXBIIREENBATDRER
FrrEt@Esn  #FHT

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1T—HLHFE

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FHET

Hong Kong BB 946,480 879,865
The PRC ] 687,977 671,739
Sri Lanka BB+ 416,741 470,411
Vietnam B 125,268 50,444
Thailand =B 108,786 40,317
Europe and the United States of America BEONSES 96,018 88,821
Indonesia ENfE 77,240 60,755
Bangladesh ) 1ka 57,949 31,501
India ENfE 57,784 44170
Others Hith 220,568 131,083
2,794,811 2,469,106

Non-current assets (excluding financial assets and
deferred tax assets) by geographical location of

assets are detailed below:

HEEMEMREDONIERBDEE
(TEReREEMELEHAEE) &

=N

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—~H
2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TR
The PRC s 1,933,706 1,371,608
Hong Kong BE 8,751 10,484
Vietnam g 567,826 121,964
2,510,283 1,504,056

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7TEPER (&)
Information about major customers EREXEEFMNESR
Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of REBEE_E—tFR_FT—RF+=
the total revenue of the Group for the years ended A=+—HLEEE  AEAKBEEREA

31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

10% W AREHNZP AT

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1T—HLHFE

2017 2016
—E—+F BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT
Revenue from manufacturing and REREREBEEN
trading of elastic fabric and lace AL RIS ON
— customer A — ZFEH 265,659 210,601
— customer B =V 243,069 268,881
Revenue from manufacturing and KERENETEE
trading of elastic webbing EEESHU A
— customer A - KFH 96,926 106,778
- customer B =V 61,624 48,399
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+_A=+—HLFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HftlA
2017 2016
—E—tF VAN
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
Government grants (Note) BRmEhE () 24,105 9,962
Net proceeds from sales of scrap materials  $& BEFI PT1S F0B F 48 10,309 6,499
Bank interest income RITHIBULA 4,040 18,708
Dividend income from an available-for-sale KE—HEREHE

financial asset ERMEEIRBLA 1,316 =
Others =) 10,887 9,766
50,657 44,935

Note: BT

The amount includes HK$23,009,000 (2016: HK$8,666,000) FHeEERBEE-_SE— &+ =-A=
unconditional government grants received during the year +T—HLEFEMNE W ﬁ 1‘71< HBE/EE 2
ended 31 December 2017, which was granted to encourage 23,009,000 7T (=Z—754 : 8,666,000/
the Group’s research and development activities in the PRC. L) BB ABERAEER TR

MEEBMEL -

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group HE-_Z—X"F+-_A=+—HLFE"

also received government grants in relation to purchase REETKIEBEALERE BT ED 2
of equipments of HK$2,503,000. Such amount, together 2,503,000 7L - ZERBERNBAFE
with those government grant received in prior years of W AMABBRUMENBRTREE Y BE

similar nature are deferred and are released to other income
over the useful lives of the related equipment. Amounts of
HK$1,096,000 (2016: HK$1,296,000) were recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017. As
at 31 December 2017, amounts of HK$7,044,000 (2016:
HK$7,649,000) remained to be released and are included in
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

CREMRENERFERE M
udz)\ BHE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HLF
- BEREEEREE1,096,0008 T (=&

— 758 11,296,000 7T) c R-ZT—t&F+
ZA=+—H 7,044,000 T (ZF— X
F 17,649,000/ 7T) 0B FFEERR - WHERE
SRR EREWRA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Htthm=REE
2017 2016
—Z—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FET
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BEM (913) (2,244)
plant and equipment HIEHEE
Change in fair value of derivative MESmIARNTEE
financial instruments (Note 29) (MF5E29) 484 7,308
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain [N (BE) W58 (14,172) 19,661
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HE—EAHEE
financial asset BREbE ER W 250 -
(14,351) 04,725
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MERLK
2017 2016
—B—+tF ZEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Interests on: THEENFE
Bank borrowings |ITERK 39,143 28,171
Finance leases BEME 109 489
39,252 28,660
Less: amounts capitalised in the cost of B BBEREENRAZ
qualifying assets BERNbeE (4,033) -
35,219 28,660
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended BE_T—tFTHA=1T—BL*#F
31 December 2017 arose on the general borrowing ERE —MREREENERNEERK
pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation KM EEREENTHIRERNLE
rate of 3.34% (2016: nil) per annum to expenditure E3.34% (ZF—R"F:T)FHE-

on qualifying assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 10. ESRFETHAEME
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid or payable to the directors ENSENEAAREEREBITHRA
and chief executive of the Company was as follows: EXMEIT :
Executive Directors Independent non-executive Directors
#7182 BukgEE
Ms.Zheng Mr.Cheung Mr.Ding  Mr. Sai
Mr.Llu Mr.Zhang  MrWu Tingting YatMing Baoshan  Chun Yu Total
BfE  BEE REE BEEzt R-BAE THLRE fRRR4 gt
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$O000 HK$'000  HK$O00  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
Thr TExr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEx
For the year ended BECE-tF
31 December 2017 tZA=1-ALEE
Fes s - - - - 300 200 200 700
Salaries and allowances ZoREH 3931 3907 2728 2219 - - - 12,780
Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme RIVEREBIR 56 18 63 25 - - - 162
3,987 3,925 2,786 2,244 300 200 200 13642
For the year ended BEoE-AE
31 December 2016 tZA=t-HILEE
Fes s = - - - 300 200 200 700
Salaries and allowances HelhEH 2,087 3744 2,605 1902 - - - 11,28
Performance related incentive
payments ENRBAN 3800 - 2530 1269 - - - 1908
Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme RICERE I 6 18 72 111 - - - 266
6,862 3,762 5207 14,706 300 200 200 31,227

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10.

174

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’
remuneration shown above were mainly for their
services as director of the Company.

The performance related incentive payments to
Mr. Lu, Mr. Wu and Ms. Zheng are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and
approved by the board of directors of respective
group entities. Mr. Zhang is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Share options were granted to executive directors
of the Company in respect of their services to the
Group under the Pre-IPO share option scheme of
the Company (as defined in Note 33). Details of
the Group’s share option scheme and the amount
of the benefits in relation to directors are set out in
Note 33.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors or chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors or chief executive of the Company has
waived any remuneration during both years.

10.

EERFETHRAEME (&)

ERATRHATEFTHEEZ S REF
BRAARRRARESHERH R

ERFATBYIFNTESTHEERY
RRERERNRRAEZFRFAR -

MTERE REENBRINENR
RENRNEL2ERNEERRETE
VTEBEEEERNEESIE - K
FTERANRRITHARE, °

BRELRERNRRERAREER
BRES 8 (E& RMES3) siAR
ARTESHASERHEZ RS M X
THE - BRAAKREBRESNSINE
FAESNEMNEBFBHNHIESS -

REBEE_ZT—+tFR_T—RF+=
A=Z+—HLEFE AEEHMERAKX
NAEFH T BTHA B I HEREN
T EABEB MBS INE AL ER
BB IEABEREE KR EFE
Hiff  BIEAR AR EETHEZITHA
BRETAME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

During the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016, the five individuals with the highest
remuneration in the Group include four (2016: four)
directors of the Company. The remuneration of the
remaining one (2016: one) individual, which was
individually within the range of HK$1,500,001 to
HK$2,000,000 per annum (2016: HK$3,000,001 to
HK$3,500,000 per annum), was as follows:

11.

& & % N
RBE_T—tFR-_T—XREF+=
A=+—HLEFE AEERA%EES
FMATEREAQRRESE (ZF—X
F:OB)ESE- BT R (ZF—
NE D —F) ATWFHENN T &
1,500,001 T £2,000,0007% 7T
—F—RNF : 843,000,001 TE
3,500,000/ 7T) * #HFuF -

2017 2016

ZE—tF ZEAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TFERT TET

Salaries and allowances e KoERL 1,730 2,881

Contributions to retirement RIREFE B R 18 18
benefits scheme

Equity-settled share-based payments RRRE A E N D AEBAT R 103 364

1,851 3,263

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individual as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

REBEE_ZT—+FR TR F+=
A=+—HLEFE AEEHMERTR
AT MNA T EREG - EA
TR 18 AN B8 =k 14 0 B AN £ B B /Y 28 B 3
TERBERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. BRBIADZF
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at B AT R A EFHIER (BT A)
after charging (crediting): IESEE
Auditor’s remuneration = EREM BN & 2,172 2,102
Staff costs BITKA
Directors’ remuneration* E= =11 e 14,277 33,467
Other staff costs Hth8 TR
— salaries and other benefits - e REMER 491,265 393,134
— contributions to retirement — RIKERFHEI T 43,498 32,573
benefits schemes
— equity-settled share-based payments - REEER D A 1,068 3,775
BRI
550,108 462,949
Depreciation of property, Y R RREITE
plant and equipment 153,036 122,210
Depreciation capitalised in inventories BN FENTE (116,128) (96,505)
36,908 25,705
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  F&{I 78 &~ 5k i 2,495 894
Minimum lease payments in respect of ~ FAEWEMFEBEN K
rented premises 23,247 18,251
Cost of inventories recognised RERTHFERAR
as an expense 2,022,139 1,641,128
Including: reversal of allowance for B REFEBRERRD
obsolete inventories™™ - (6,923)
* Including the directors’ remuneration as disclosed in * BIEM 10T BENESH I &N
Note 10 and benefits to directors in relation to the M FES3FT % 25 Y A B8 AN &2 B B AR e
Group’s Share Option Scheme as disclosed in Note Bl 2EEREF -
33
o o HEGEREBRDRENEERE

The reversal of allowance for obsolete inventories
was due to sales of obsolete inventories during the
year for which allowance had been made in previous
years.

FEMSIZK  MEEFECHZER
EFgFELEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FiEBiR X

2017 2016
—Z—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current tax: BNEATIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EARNER 26,576 37,112
The PRC Enterprise Income RS 32,045 45,701
Tax (“EIT") ([EEFREH])
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFERETR
(FBRERHE) -

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEAFEH 669 -
The PRC EIT PR TS (3,182) (4,947)
56,108 77,866
Deferred taxation (Note 30) EIERIR (M17E30) 150 1,950
56,258 79,816

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for both
years, unless there is any preferential tax treatment

applicable.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

EBANEHR IR EREFE NG E
RFRAIR16.5%5TE

REBEFEARAMBEEEMEHE

(TEEREBIE])

K ERMERARN

Al BRIFBETMEMERES
MEFE - BAPBERRRMIESE

BT R 325% ©
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e M BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ2—ZT—+tF+_-_A=1+—HILFE

13.

178

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Dongguan Best Pacific Textile Company Limited
(‘“Dongguan BPT”), a subsidiary of the Company,
has obtained the qualification as a high and new
technology enterprise since 2010, which has been
renewed for an additional three years from the
financial year ended 31 December 2016. Hence,
Dongguan BPT is subject to the preferential tax
treatment and the applicable tax rate for both years
was 15%. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
Dongguan New Horizon Elastic Fabric Company
Limited (“Dongguan NHE”), a subsidiary of the
Company, was also qualified as a high and new
technology enterprise for three years from the financial
year ended 31 December 2016. Dongguan NHE is
therefore also subject to the preferential tax treatment
and the applicable tax rate for both years was 15%.

Pursuant to the relevant Vietnam Enterprises Income
Tax rules and regulations, the applicable tax rates
for the subsidiary operating in Vietnam is 20%. The
subsidiary in Vietnam is eligible for tax holidays for
two financial years since the first financial year of
taxable profit and tax concession at a tax rate of 10%
for the following four financial years. No provision for
Vietnam Enterprises Income Tax has been made as
the subsidiary in Vietnam has no assessable profit for
both years.

Taxation arising in any other jurisdiction is calculated
at the rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

13.

FrEsim > (&)

ARAMBRARREBANEAR D
Al ((REER]) ER T —ZF0FE
EHRMEERER  YEBHE-T—
NET-A=+—HIHRFEREE
ERFBEIN=F - @it - REBRFA
BERXFE MEFENERATE
B15% - BE-_FT—RFT-_A=1
—BHLEFE  ARARMMBARREHE
EEEBYWERAR ([REBE]) I
BEsHEmbEER BBE_F
—RNE+ZA=T—BULMRFEE
AARE=F - lit REBETER
BERXFE MEFENERATER
/315% o

18 48 47 B L 7 £ 22 T 19 LA B B A
B R B 4 R PR
R A20% - M HE A AR E @18
R EFN MR ERA RS
RES B E BB R - R 1
1B T 4 7 B R 1 0% 0 B 5 1B
B - R EEHE A AR REEEY
SRR R - AR A A O 2 A
1S AR el -

Huab el sx=E R RIE iR A B a5k
BRERIHEGTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FREFEX (&)
Income tax expense for the year can be AREEMEFBEYITHEGABRLEER
reconciled to the profit before taxation per the EEW SRR TS FIEEE - &
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BT

comprehensive income as follows:

Hong Kong The PRC Others Total

B4 hE At st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Z8-tE ZEAF ZR-tE R ZR-tE B RF ZR-tF R RF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Téx  TEr  TER  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn

Profit (oss) before taxation 4 7tT (&%)

Bl 158,101 230,015 211,508 307,309 (9,716) (1,257) 359,893 536,067

Taxation at the domestic HERAEHE

income tax rate HEMRE 6087 3192 58T T8 (1710) o0 TIs4 1145T
Taxeffect of expensesnot A AHIBERA

deductbl fortax pupose. BT 60 1713 905 85 1547 s 302 31%
Tax effect of income not BERHMAD

tavable for tax purpose Bkye 0 (1509 - - {19%) 6% 2088 (189
Taxeffect of share of results ~— HEABRELE

of a joint venture niikz 2 (521) (943) - - - - (527) (043)
Taxefectof estimated tax ~ AHERMEHHE

losses not recognised BRiK2 561 - - - 2153 - 2714 -
Taxeflect of utiisation oftax BB LAIARED

losses previously not bl =t

recognised finye (87) (101) - = - = (87) (101)
Under(over)provision BEERERIR

in prior years (BERE) 669 - (3,182 (4.947) - - (2,513) (4.947)
Effect of tax concession in HEHEEER

the PRC v - S pisen (006 - - pIgen  (B006)
Income tax expense for the year AFEFTERRS 21,245 37,12 29,013 42,704 - - 56,258 79,816
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14.

180

DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZT—KF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of £ AR A5 IR ZAA 7
the Company recognised as LRI R ZARE.
distribution during the year:
2017 Interim dividend — nil “EtFHHRE — &
(2016: 2016 interim dividend (ZZT—RF: —T—RF
HK7.3 cents) per share A ERAR SRR 7.3 IL) - 75,072
2016 Final dividend — HK9.5 cents TR RNFERHRE —
(2016: 2015 final dividend BARO.5HN (ZB—REF
HK8 cents) per share —E-RFREREEHK
87&11l) 97,845 81,829
97,845 156,901

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 of HK5.9 cents per ordinary share
(approximately HK$61.2 milion in aggregate) has
been proposed by the directors of the Company
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in
the forthcoming general meeting.

HBESHEERE  ARAFREREEE
BEE_T—tF+-_A=1t—HL
FEZARARE SR EBS.9781
(BHAW612AEET)  HEARERE
BORARE EBUSBCRHLAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. SRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per KRG HEBEAREERERAREER
share attributable to the owners of the Company is FTBEBIA T 8ETE -

based on the following data:

2017 2016
—EB—+tE —E—RF
Earnings BZF
Earnings for the purposes of basic and Bt IR E AN #8582 5 = &9
diluted earnings per share (profit for B (R a%EEa ARG
the year attributable to owners of FEmHM) (FAT)
the Company) (HK$’'000) 304,219 456,251
Number of shares BB E
Weighted average number of ordinary — FLERREARZ | S 8L B
shares for the purpose of basic i Bk
earnings per share 1,032,867,679 1,028,336,137
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: & 7F 3@k #EE S/ 28
Share options issued by the Company 7~ B2 241 TRE IR i 5,712,137 8,481,488
Weighted average number of ordinary — gtERE#EZ M = B
shares for the purpose of diluted B A NRE 15 8
earnings per share 1,038,579,816 1,036,817,625
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ - MERKE

Computer
and office Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  Machinery in progress Total
ElK
BT BOERB HE WE  HEERIE H)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TR THEL TEL THET

COST AR
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF

—H—H 412,592 25,765 46,552 1,123,379 29,325 1,637,613
Exchange adjustments E3aECES (26,967) (1,829) (2,950) (77,059) (13,428)  (122,227)
Additions NE 7,275 7,101 15,795 222,366 242,087 494,624
Transfer upon completion SO B 11,860 - - - (11,860) -
Disposals HE (288) (1,631) (1,162) (7,216) - (10,297)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF

+-A=+—H 404,472 29,412 58,235 1,261,470 246,124 1,999,713
Exchange adjustments P H AR 34,314 2,374 3,655 100,539 26,771 167,653
Additions e 20,696 10,816 10,110 663,849 297,217 992,688
Transfer upon completion SO B 212,616 - - - (212,616) -
Disposals sk - (957) (1,453) (9,009 - (11,419
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F

+-A=+—H 672,098 41,645 70,547 2,006,849 357,496 3,148,635
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION 2EE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF

—R—H 77,584 17,951 20,198 487,269 - 603,002
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A (5,756) (1,163) (1,146) (34,792) - (42,857)
Provided for the year FEEE 19,453 2,808 4,985 94,964 = 122,210
Eliminated on disposals B 4 (105) (1,355) (1,080) (4,836) - (7,346)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF

+-A=+—H 91,176 18,241 22,987 542,605 — 675,009
Exchange adjustments B 5 A 7,187 1,357 1,416 42,037 - 51,997
Provided for the year EEEE 23,918 4,358 6,040 118,720 - 153036
Eliminated on disposals HER (780) (905) (1,028) (5,697) - (8,410)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+4F

+-A=+—H 121,501 23,051 29,415 697,665 - 871,632
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"F

+-A=+-H 313,296 11,171 35,248 718,865 246,124 1,324,704
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+4F

+-A=+—H 550,597 18,594 41,132 1,309,184 357,496 2,277,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16. ¥I%¥ - BERRE (&)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, it MERFREEE (EFE2T
except for construction in progress, are depreciated BERIN) DIREKARBERERAER
on its cost less their residual values on a straight- FEIR AN ERITE -
line basis at the following rates per annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term BF M HEAk205F
of the lease or 20 years (LABRS2E B2%E)
Computer and office  20%-50% ) 20%-50%
equipment I NEI
Motor vehicles 10%-20% b 10%-20%
Machinery 6%-20% 22 6%-20%
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts NZE—+tEFEF+=—_A=+—8 - #z:
of machinery included amounts of approximately MNEEEEEREEEREHEREFE
HK$34,019,000 (2016: HK$37,105,000) in respect B #4934,019,0008 7 (=& — /X F -
of assets held under finance leases. 37,105,000 7T ) °
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. ANSHEENE
2017 2016
—2—+tF ZEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments ~ ANEBRFENHENKEIE :
comprise:
Leasehold land in the PRC MRS it 39,122 37,437
Leasehold land in Vietnam MEREE i 66,492 43,978
105,614 81,415
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLERSR AT ¢
Current asset TENEE 2,593 894
Non-current asset EMBEE 103,021 80,521
105,614 81,415

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZ =T —+F+=-_A=+—HILFE
18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. RE& L %E’J*E
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture AEER—HEERELREFEN
are as follows: N
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EB—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost of investment in a joint venture R —I& &2 2 IHERKA
Unlisted REM 22,369 9,357
Share of post-acquisition profits and DMEUEE1E % T R HA
other comprehensive income 2R 10,044 5,943
32,413 15,300
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the R EIEGERE  KREBEEDE
reporting period are as follows: ZEEEWNT
Proportion of
Place of Principal ownership
Form of incorporation/ place of class of Proportion of interest Voting rights Principal
Name of entity entity registration ~ operation  sharesheld  held by the Group (Note) held by the Group (Note)  activity
AL/ FEROER  AREREZERLA AEEREIREE
ERER - kobic RaiE S ITEEHY  FERLA (Hzt) (He3t) TTEE

2017 2016 2017 2016
el S e

Charming Elastic Fabric  Limited Liabilty HongKong ~ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary 51% 40% 60% 40%  Trading of elastic
Company Limited Company &3 & e webbing and
(‘Charming Elastic’) ~ AR investment

FEERTER holding
BRAT EEBHARR
([BERS]) RERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Note:

On 4 November 2015, the Group acquired 40% equity
interest in Charming Elastic from an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$10,000,000.
Charming Elastic also owns 100% equity interest
in Jiangxi Charming Elastic Mfg. Co. Ltd, which is
engaged in manufacturing of elastic webbing in the
PRC.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement entered into
among a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
the other shareholder of Charming Elastic who by
then held 60% equity interest in Charming Elastic and
Charming Elastic on the same date (the “Charming
Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement”), the shareholder
who holds more than 50% equity interest in Charming
Elastic (the “Majority Shareholder”) and the Group
were entitled to appoint or remove three and two
directors out of the five directors at the board of
directors of Charming Elastic respectively.

The shareholders of Charming Elastic has also
contractually agreed sharing control over Charming
Elastic, as certain decisions about the relevant
activities, including but not limited to business,
financial and operational matters of Charming Elastic,
require unanimous consents from at least two
directors appointed by the Majority Shareholder and
one director appointed by the other shareholder of
Charming Elastic. Accordingly, the Group has joint
control over Charming Elastic and the investment in
equity interest in Charming Elastic is accounted for as
an interest in a joint venture.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

18. REELENER (&)

G

R-Z—AF+—AMA - AEEMNU
I £ X 810,000,000 7T & B 3L 5
= H WA B IRIR T M40%A% #E -
BREZRB A A Jiangxi Charming
Elastic Mfg. Co. Ltd (AR EKE
BUE MRS ) 100%HRRAE ©

REARAN—FH2EMNBRE - &
BBREHFNS—UBRR (REFKFE
FEBIBHO0%MAAE) R AABR
RERRF BRI LR ([FE
BEBEFRRIGR])  SAEAEBZRRS
P #E50% A ER BRI (X ERR])
RAKEDRIEERRTURRFER
BREEFSRUEFTH =L LML
B

FEBEEFNRRTEITORERE
FEGRENEGE BB
(BRETRRFABBRIBRTEOES
MBRLESH) NETREEREA
KATERREZENELIMUEER
FEBESE S (R REEN—(IE
E2RAE - Bt - AEEYHFAER
RS A LR E RN ABERIRS
BRERIRE ARSI AN A EBENE

D)
Zs o
.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=—%

18.

186

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Note:  (Continued)

w C T T A= ElEEE

18. REE

CE

The Charming Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement also
involves terms that granted rights to the Group to
purchase additional equity interest in Charming Elastic
and rights to the other shareholder of Charming Elastic
to exercise to sell equity interest of Charming Elastic
to the Group, accordingly, the Group recognised
derivative financial assets and liabilities since the date
of acquisition of Charming Elastic at the consolidated
statement of financial position (details as set out in
Note 29).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Charming
Elastic had met the financial performance target
pursuant to the Charming Elastic Shareholders’
Agreement. Accordingly, the Group exercised the
Call Option (as defined in Note 29) and acquired an
additional 11% equity interest of Charming Elastic
through subscription of new ordinary shares allotted
and issued by Charming Elastic at a consideration of
HK$71,000, which represented the nominal value of
the new ordinary shares issued by Charming Elastic.
Such nominal value of new shares together with the
fair value of the Call Option (as disclosed in Note 29)
at exercise date of HK$12,941,000 is recognised as
part of the cost of investment in Charming Elastic.
Accordingly, the Group becomes the Majority
Shareholder and is now entitled to appoint or remove
three out of five directors at the board of directors
of Charming Elastic. The arrangement on sharing of
control over Charming Elastic between the Group and
the other shareholder of Charming Elastic remains
effective after the aforesaid acquisition of additional
interest in Charming Elastic by the Group.

EENER (@)

(%&)

FEBRBRHEBRMHE IS X T A%
EHEMEBEABGRERERE TR
BRERSS U RRENARAREE
HEBBRRTBAZNGSK - it
AEE B WEABZRIRT B ERER
AEMBIRARERTLEEREERE
& (FBEENHE29)

REBEE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—H81t
FE GEBRSERELSBEZRE
ERRBZEKPBRBEBEE - A
I AREETERERE (TEALKN
ﬁm)ﬁ%ﬂwﬁﬁﬁﬁmmm¥&
BT L BB FEBIRIREREIN
11% /) % - ﬁ1%ﬁow%n BN
PERBEERTHHERR 2EE -
BTN 2 EEERRESE (1
M sFooFT %) R{TER 2 AFE
12,941,000 L EEABILEFABEZIR
BB —ZD FLARER - Eiit » A
SEXRAEETERER  EERZARER
RGBS EEEAUESETMN=
BE RLElAEBKRESBZRS
RINRIETR - AEEHRFBRIRETS
— (IR L Z H BB IR AL b
2B EERN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 = —%F

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

19. ARHETHEE

—tFt+-A=1t—HLFE

ASSETS
2017 2016
—E—+E ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unit trusts denominated in USD, AETHMEEMNEFE
at fair value BATER - 2,736
Investment in a partnership, KEEGR AT
at cost (Note) LA A (FsE) 27,512 25,698
27,512 28,434

Note:

The Group invested in an unlisted partnership established in
the PRC. The assets are measured at cost less impairment

fas -

AEERERN—FRERBERIOIFELTAR
YNCIS ﬁ?b"*a&&iﬁﬁfﬁ & R 4% AN R OB

at the end of the reporting period because the range of B2 RAR AT EGBFHEEXR
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the AR /N $§737%H AT EEER] SR
directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value £
cannot be measured reliably.
20. INVENTORIES 20. #&
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Raw materials AR 208,883 148,898
Work in progress Fa Ul 273,887 233,468
Finished goods SIRK T 211,687 122,269
694,457 504,635

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z—

21.

188

(=)

e B R MY A

w C T T A= ElEEE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES ESRBURERBEREEUR
AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A ﬂﬁﬂ&%ﬁﬂﬁ*"\jw\lﬁ
RELATED COMPANY
Trade and bills receivables BEZRWFEREREZE
2017 2016
Y- 5 —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Trade receivables = e Qe 640,302 557,031
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts Jf : %i%ﬁﬁﬁé{% (1,213) (1,133)
Total trade receivables B 5 MR 639,089 555,898
Bills receivables eI 9,270 6,000
648,359 561,898

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality by
evaluating their historical credit records and defines
credit limits for each customer. Recoverability and
credit limit of the existing customers are reviewed
by the Group regularly.

Trade receivables from third parties mainly represent
receivables from customers in relation to the sales
of elastic fabric, elastic webbing and lace. The
credit period granted to the customers ranges
from 30 to 90 days from the date of issuance of a
monthly statement for sales delivered in that month.

REMEAFFLA - AEEE B
EREBENEELENFEEES
FPHEEERIEBEERRFPERNE
ER#E -AKEEHREHREELH
AU R EE R

RRFE=NESHRYGKATERHE
BIEBMER - BUHATREHROE
WEPHKE - BTEFPHNEEMNA L
HHE AR AAER L B HEFS30
£90H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. EFREWREREREEUR
AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A FEUR BB N R RIE ()
RELATED COMPANY (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued) EZREWFERERERE (£)
The following is an aged analysis of trade NTERERESHBERGE ZEK
receivables net of allowance for bad and doubtful FEMGRERBERALEER LA
debts presented based on the date of issuance of HIZF|MERR ST RN S mEHEE
monthly statements at the end of each reporting REEWEEIREE RS2 HNEER
period and aged analysis of bills receivables SHT o
presented based on the date of issuance of the bills
at the end of each reporting period.
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T AT
Trade receivables B 5 EWRE
0 - 90 days 0-90 H 563,614 493,297
91 - 180 days 91 -180 H 51,330 42,792
Over 180 days #BiE180 H 24,145 19,809
639,089 555,898
Bills receivables EYREE
0 - 90 days 0-90 H 9,270 5,887
91 — 180 days 91 -180 H - 113
9,270 6,000
648,359 561,898

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. ESZRWREREBERERUR
AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A FEUR BE B N BRI RIE (£)
RELATED COMPANY (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued) ESRWFERERERE (&Z)

Trade receivable balances with related companies FSTAREEE FEWHIAL A EE

included in the Group’s trade receivables balance N EI M E S R R IE P a0

are listed below: ™
2017 2016
—E—tF —FB—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHT

Related companies 22N

A joint venture —AeEhE - 5,506

A related company* a2 /N 3,480 1,225

Other related companies* H AR AR 19,314 N/A#

A E R
22,794 6,731

e A related company controlled by close family * AR BIESHIFRR K BIE 68
members of directors of the Company (these AR (REESRARANBER
directors are key management personnel of the EBAB) °
Company).

# The related companies are fellow subsidiaries of G ZEEB AR R AEE—RHTEA
the non-controlling shareholder who has significant RIABERTE ZIFERRFHRR
influence over a subsidiary of the Group. WEBAR] -

# As at 31 December 2016, such trade debtor had no i RZZE—R"F+=-A=+—1 ' %&
related party relationship with the Group. SEHANEREBNFEBETBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A
RELATED COMPANY (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

The above trade receivable balances with related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and with
a credit term of 30 days from the date of issuance
of a monthly statement for sales delivered in that
month. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables balances with related companies
presented based on the date of issuance of
monthly statements at the end of each reporting
period.

21.

BESBRWRFERERRERUR
fE UL B Bk A BIRRIR (8)

wt

ESRUREARERRE (&)

A b B2 BE R N R RO B 5 MR IR 45 R
EEW 2L FEEHAELAHEE
AH) AAAEZR N R BESS0R » A
TRERM R RN E 5 - WK IRER
REREAFEAERFIZAZBEELH
HIZ IR BRI DA ©

2017 2016

—EB—tF —FB—RF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FET FA&T

0 - 90 days 0—90H 20,731 6,621
91 — 180 days 91 —180H 1,900 110
Over 180 days HBiB180H 163 -
22,794 6,731

As at 31 December 2017, included in these trade
receivables balances with related companies
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$5,232,000 (2016: HK$1,068,000) which
are past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$108,997,000
(2016: HK$85,406,000) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The trade
receivables which are past due but not impaired
were either settled subsequently or due from
debtors which do not have historical default of
payments. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

R-_FE—+&E+-_A=+—8 " it A
BB A RN Z S E SR RGIE &6
A48 BRE 85,232,000 7T (ZZE—7X
F 5 1,068,000/ 7T) KYFRIE T E M (E
BARIA  ZERBECRHREHME
ERF AR EERE o

RZE—+tF+=_A=+—8" 5 A
AEBEFREWRIBLESGOERM
{8108,997,000/8 7t (= T — /N F ¢
85,406,000/ 7T) &) 5K I8 J) FE B 7%
ARFIE » ZERHEERREHEE
REFEE  MASEEIL SR UL EL R
EEERE aAPEERENEZE
WHREEBBEEMNSS REYBEEW
EHANROBEEANRE - AEHE
BERZE &SRB EAEEY -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZ =T —+F+=-_A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. ESZRWREREBERERUR
AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A FEUR BB B A BIFKIE (&)
RELATED COMPANY (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued) EZREWFERERERE (&)

Aged analysis of trade receivables which are BHERERENE S EWRIENRER
past due but not impaired i

The following aged analysis of trade receivables AR AmEBEEENE S ERKE
based on payment due dates which are past due LA FRE B B A BRER D AT o

but not impaired.

2017 2016
—Z—+t5 —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
1 - 30 days 1-30 H 47,626 42,078
31 - 60 days 31-60 H 19,581 18,922
61 — 90 days 61-90 H 14,437 6,184
Over 90 days #3190 H 27,353 18,222
108,997 85,406

Movement in the allowance for bad and RIERBESD

doubtful debts

2017 2016
—EB—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Balance at beginning of the year FHER 1,133 1,648
Amounts recovered during the year FRUEIEEE - (18)
Amounts written off as uncollectible B a] Y Bl i i S B 2 B8 - (392)
Exchange adjustments b H PR 80 (105)
Balance at end of the year AR EERR 1,213 1,133
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A
RELATED COMPANY (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for bad and
doubtful debts (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance
for bad and doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$1,213,000 (2016: HK$1,133,000) which are either
aged over one year or the customer was in severe
financial difficulty. In determining the recoverability of
a trade receivable, the Group considers any change
in credit quality of the trade receivables from the
date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period. Management of the Group believes
that no further provision is required in excess of the
allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Management
of the Group writes off the bad and doubtful debts
when the debtor is liquidated.

The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated
in currencies which are not the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

21.

BESBEWRREARERERSUR
FE R B B 1 B FRIE (48)

ESRUREARERRE (&)
REGBERY (&)

R-E—+&E+-_A=+—8 " A
RIZERBEEHENBIYCREE SRR
TE K 48 4585 731,213,000 7T (ZF—
N 1,133,000 7T) c 2 EE HE
WHRIBRERR BB —FREFAR
BV HBRAE  NETESEKFIED
AREER  AEEZEEBEERY
ROBRBREREPHEEREEZE F R
HERNEEFTRANEMNES - AEE
EIREMRRE  BAERZEREREMEMNUIN
EHBEINGER - XEBEBENRER
N B ERMERIZER o

ISR BRI ERNE ST
ENARER S RBGIAFETIIN T

Vietnam
Dong
usD (“VND”) HKD
HEE
Ezn ((HrEl) BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T FH&T
As at 31 December 2017 HRZZE—+HF+_-_A=+—H 284,989 1,497 1,492
As at 31 December 2016 R -_Z— X F+-A=+—H 251,019 - -

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE
21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. EZRWREREVRERUR
AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A FEUR BB A B FIE (£)
RELATED COMPANY (Continued)
Amount due from a related company FE KBRS A B =518
The related company is controlled by close family NPk EEI$ SEEHA SR
members of directors of the Company. The amount BB # i o 5% SIE 5 H A E YR R IE 4
represents other receivables of approximately 366,000 7T (—ZF — X £ : 698,000
HK$366,000 (2016: HK$698,000) which are non- /%75) EiF%’%ﬁE I . B,
trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable BimEskEEZE - R -—=—+F+
on demand.The maximum outstanding amount —B=+— El LEE BEBATY
such other receivables with the related company Hi ngy HEYRANAKTDSES
during the year ended 31 December 2017 is 698 0007 7T (:; — X £ : 698,000
HK$698,000 (2016: HK$698,000). > E) ’
22, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 22, ﬁi’ BURRE - RERAMAK
AND PREPAYMENTS
2017 2016
—E—tF —EB—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Deposit paid EffEE 9,010 6,806
Deposit paid for acquisition of property it ER @}%&%&ﬁﬁ’\]
plant and equipment EftiRe 95,326 81,586
Deposits in life insurance policy (Note) }\%1% ?”*/i\ (FF5E) 6,992 6,992
Prepayments TEfTRIE 13,305 9,608
Interest receivables JE U T B, 64 137
Other tax recoverables H{th A U B 55 18 34,310 39,733
Other receivables H b e W RIE 26,368 12,735
185,375 157,597
Analysed as: DR
Current TEh 80,537 67,074
Non-current ERD 104,838 90,523
185,375 157,597
Non-current deposits stated on the consolidated RENBIRARFANIERD LS D
statements of financial position include rental mHEEE  WENX - BFER&E
deposits, deposits paid for acquisition of property, MENZE RASRRIZS -
plant and equipment and deposits in life insurance
policy.

1 94 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



22.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=—

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Note:

The Group has entered into one life insurance policy with
HSBC Life (International) Limited (“HSBC”) to insure a
director of the Company. Under this policy, the Group is the
policy holder and a close family member of the director is the
beneficiary and the total insured sum is USD3,500,000. The
Group is required to pay a single premium of USD836,970
to HSBC. The Group can, at any time, receive cash back
based on the cash value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the gross premium paid
plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned and minus any
charges made in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the policy. In addition, if withdrawal is made between
the 1st to 15th policy year, there is a specified amount of
surrender charge. HSBC will pay the Group a guaranteed
interest rate of 4.8% per annum for the first year, followed by
minimum guaranteed interest rate of 3% per annum for the
following years.

At the inception date, the gross premium was separated into
deposit placed and prepayment of life insurance premium.
The prepayment of life insurance premium is amortised in
profit or loss over the insured period and the deposit placed
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The effective interest rate for the deposit placed on
initial recognition is 2.9% per annum, which was determined
by discounting the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the policy of 30 years, excluding the financial
effect of surrender charge.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the expected life of
the policy remained unchanged from the initial recognition
and the management of the Group considers that the
financial impact of the option to terminate the policies was
insignificant.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

22,

ﬁAW%ﬁ$W£
Lt AS - ALER

HitBEWHRE - BRERFAMNRK

E \//ffm'f’r/

B3 -

AEB/AR _—%§$WE%A%%@
(BF) BRAR (EEAR]) BEASR

uwm;%u%%a REBAIRREA MESE
H— (AR RBERNEAZEA &1% 158
3,500,0003 7T ° AN 5= @ A ) Aqszﬁ
—%R8836,970% L - NEBE AR IEZ D
ASRENEFREANREEERREES A&
BEAEREINOREAEMFTRERA KT
IREBEF) B R IBRIBIRR B K RARHFIE T
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

23.

196

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT
TERM BANK DEPOSITS, BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 December 2017, pledged bank deposits
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the
bills payables issued by the Group, carried at fixed
interest rate ranged from 0.30% to 1.30% (2016:
1.32% to 1.95%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, short term bank deposits
comprise bank deposits of fixed interest rates
ranging from 1.10% to 1.30% (2016: 1.65%) per
annum with an original maturity between three
months and twelve months.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and bank deposits carry at variable interest
rates with an original maturity of three months or
less. As at 31 December 2017, the variable interest
rates ranged from 0.001% to 0.30% (2016: 0.001%
to 0.95%) per annum.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short term
deposits and bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies which are not the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

HK$
BT
HK$'000

23.

CSHEARTER s EHRITHF
Mo RITEHRRRS

R-E—+&E+-_HA=+—8 B2
HIRITFERIEIEE FRITIEALREE
BHANENERBEERNGER  BEF
A TN F0.30%F1.30% (ZF — X
F 1 1.832%%1.95%) °

R-E—+&+_-_RA=+—8 548
ROTEReERCIHAA=EAZE
F+TZEAAMETEFEFENTF1.10%E
1.30% (ZZF—7R"F : 1.65%) WIRTT

RITERLBESEEIAEBFENE
S NETHHEA=EAKATHZ
BERTEXR - R_E—+&E+ A
=+—8 " FEFEHMENF0.001%
£0.830% (= T — X F:0.001%=
0.95%) °

NIFEEEEEERYEERNERET
ERNAEBERFRITER  EHF
R SRITRER MR 2 EHIT

Usb EUR RMB VND
E B AR HrE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000

FHET FHT FHIT FET FHET

As at 31 December 2017 R=-ZE—+t&
+=-—A=+—H 771 36,405 191 69 494

As at 31 December 2016 MNZE—RF
+=A=+—H 242 35,835 178 1,196 -
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e B SRR Y A

—tFt+-A=1t—HLFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. BFEMNRIE
The credit period granted by the Group’s creditors AEEBERAGTHEEHAN ?Z’j—
ranges from approximately 1 month to 3 months. BRAzE= Tlﬂ c AN REZENR
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables RERESHAERFRERA ,HﬂEW
presented based on the invoice date at the end of El'\]?'ﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁ :
each reporting period:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
0 - 90 days 0-90 H 156,373 118,727
Over 90 days im0 H 25,243 3,931
181,616 122,658
As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's 756\ — + i —f— — A=+ —
trade payables balance is an amount due to a joint ‘Jr ARNEEE S ENKIE
venture of HK$12,899,000 (2016: HK$8,505,000). mﬁ%ﬁﬁm 899, ooo/%rz (= 2 INEE
Such balance due to a joint venture is unsecured, 8,505,000/8 7T) Jh BT & & ¥ K
interest-free and with a credit term of 30 days from Ho ZERNEEDLES ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ :
the date of issuance of a monthly statement for %,%\ . %E,Hﬂz% BEEEBE AHMEA
purchases delivered in that month. These balances BEH AHAREFT30R - NikEHIME
are aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting ,\:&EHT ZEEHHERRIO0ANA -
period.
The Group’s trade payables that are denominated IEESE TR EENE ST
in currencies which are not the functional currencies ENAEEE S ENRBEESEOT -
of the relevant group entities are set out below:
USsD EUR VND RMB HKD
En ET HEE AR¥ BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAT FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 December 2017 R-B—+tE&
+-A=+—-H 22,340 17 9,927 94 60
As at 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+-A=t+—8H 28,434 108 - - -

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

25. BILLS PAYABLES 25. ENRE
The bills payables are secured by pledged bank ﬂ’%ﬁ%‘%ﬁfﬁ Th AP FES6 AT /) 2 H 1R 4R
deposits as set out in Note 36. The following is an THESEER U THBENEERE
aged analysis of bills payables presented based on WEPHAERBEREEELHEBET
the date of issuance of the bills at the end of each HIBRER AT -
reporting period:
2017 2016
—EB—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
0 — 90 days 0-90H 195,430 236,383
91 — 180 days 91 - 180H 89,745 77,630
285,175 314,013
The Group’s bills payables that are denominated in NIHEAEBRETEEEEENE LT
currencies which are not functional currencies of BRAEEEANZESIINT
the relevant group entities are set out below:
UsD EUR
E BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH&T
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF
+—-—A=+—H 47,630 1,270
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZZE—RF
+=-A=+—H 55,314 3,438
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 26. HttENRERETER
CHARGES
2017 2016
—E—tF —F—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Accrued staff costs JFE < B T 35 B 69,674 65,259
Other accruals HinEztE& R 25,634 30,739
Payables on acquisition of B - BB &
property, plant and equipment AR BT IR 35,441 39,340
Receipts in advance TR IR 19,411 32,130
Other payables H A IR 33,184 33,513
Total #Et 183,344 200,981
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—tFt+-A=1t—HLFE

27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. #RITEN
2017 2016
—E—+tfF TE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT FAT
Unsecured syndicated loan KRR EE N 965,257 585,693
Unsecured bank borrowings BRI TIE 275,005 7,809
1,240,262 593,502
Carrying amount repayable*: JEBEFIRREE"
Within one year —ER 262,291 117,587
More than one year, but not BB —FETEBME
exceeding two years 188,504 3,120
More than two vyears, but not BBREENBARE
more than five years 789,467 472,795
1,240,262 593,502
Less: Amounts due within one year or BB EMRRAR
contain a repayment on demand —FAEEXEE
clause shown under current liabilities REKBEETHR (262,486) (120,707)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBA B TRIE 977,776 472,795
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that /,ﬁ" FREER
are repayable within one year and contain SRERER IR
a repayment on demand clause fEfﬂﬁ FHEREE 274,810 4,689
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that HBiE—FRERE
are repayable more than one year but BERERERIETN
contain a repayment on demand clause RITERNEREE 195 3,120
275,005 7,809

* B BFOR IR B B K 5 5 P #k RO RT &)
EBEBMEE  WEEAHERAR
ERENRBUAZ REEHAD ©

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and included
the unamortised portion of the prepaid transaction
cost in relation to the unsecured syndicated loan.
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ERE R

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group entered into a facility agreement for an
unsecured syndicated loan (“2016 Syndicated
Loan”), which is to be repayable by installments
from 1 February 2017 to 1 February 2019 and with
an interest rate at 2.6% plus Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) per annum. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group further
entered into a new facility agreement for an
unsecured syndicated loan (“2017 Syndicated
Loan”), which is to be repayable by installments,
from 13 May 2019 to 13 May 2021 and with an
interest rate at HIBOR plus 2.2% for HK$ loan
tranche and London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus 2.2% for USD loan tranche. Certain
proceeds from the 2017 Syndicated Loan was
used to fully repay the 2016 Syndicated Loan. The
2016 Syndicated Loan and 2017 Syndicated Loan
are guaranteed by the Company.

The unsecured bank borrowings were guaranteed
by group companies as at 31 December 2017 and
2016.

The Group has floating-rate borrowings which carry
interest at HIBOR plus 1.75% to 3.50% (2016:
HIBOR plus 1.75% to 3.50%) per annum.

27.

w C T T A= ElEEE

IRITER (&
HE—-T ﬁ¢+—ﬂ—+ SHTa:S
B AEBRERBEBEERTL
—EHpiEHpz ((ZE-—<EHEE
=) BExgEe-_ZET—+tF-_A—
BE2_Z—AF_-_A—BoHEE
FFEABE2.6%IMN EBBRITRHR ERF
B ([EBRTREAERE] - HE-Z
—+F+_A=+—HLFE &
EpEKFRE B E — SR H A
Bz (ZBE—+tEHBEEF D
ExgE T hFRAT=ZHZE_
T —FHA+=BHOHEE BT
ERFENRAEFBRITRERENLE
2.2%  METLERFH R EBRBEET
FEFKE ((MBEBTRZEFE]) Nt
22% - RKE_Z—+FREEXNH
FHRERECHANEEE2H T —KX
FREER - — T FREEZK
—E—tFREEFRYBHARFIRME
R -

—EtERZE-RF+ZA=
T—H EERRTERTHEER
AR ISR -

KEBAEZBMER  BREBRITHE
FEIEFE1.75%23.50% (ZZF—
NE BARTAFERE M .7T5%E
3.50%) st & °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

27. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. SBITER (&)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

AEBERTEROERNE (FEE
RETAIFIR) sEET -

2017 2016
—EB—+tE —E—RF

Effective interest rate (per annum): B (F) FIX
Floating-rate borrowings FEER
Fixed-rate borrowings T B

2.01%-3.66% 2.48%-3.72%
6.50% N/AAN i A

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated
in currencies which are not the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

LA AR e 9 B T B 5 M DA S £
EOAEERTERRIIMT

HKD USD
BT ET
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHEIT FHET

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tF
+=-—HA=+—H 472,197 39,000

As at 31 December 2016 R-ZTE—RF
+=-—A=+—H - -

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 28. REMHSERIE
LEASES
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
RIEHEMNM REREAHRAE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F-tF ZERF ZE-tF ZF R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TAL TR THL
Amounts payable under BMEMERT
finance leases: FERFIE :
Within one year —FR 632 5,411 629 5,302
In the second to fifth year F-ERHF
inclusive (AEERME) - 632 - 629
632 6,043 629 5,931
Less: future finance charges B RRBERX 3 (112) - -
Present value of lease obligations ~ FAE&ERE 629 5,931 629 5,931
Less: Amounts due for settlement  J§ : —EREIHHEERD
within one year (shown as I (AR
current liabilities) AEMT) (629) (5,302)
Amounts due for settlement —F R BHERMTE
after one year - 629
The Group leased certain of its machineries and REERIE Eﬂ/é\f HEBRETHSE R
N= (= Nl — =
motor vehicles under finance leases. The lease E - HEH J_l FIFR4F o %\—g
terms ranged from 3 years to 4 years. Effective —tF+ZA=1+—8" 4ﬁ_ mEM
interest rates underlying all obligations under EAENHBERENERGRI3.75%
finance lease are 3.75% (2016: 3.75%) per annum :g_/_\ﬁ : 3:75%) ° Fﬁ?%ﬂ%ﬂg
as at 31 December 2017. All leases were on a fixed NEIRERBERE  RIEFNAM
repayment basis and no arrangement was entered ENRETSL Lk
into for contingent rental payments.
The Group’s obligations under finance leases were ZIN %@ E’\J s ;ﬁfﬁ ERET J//(ﬁ A E
secured by the lessors’ charge over the leased HEEEMMTIERM (MFE16) -

assets (Note 16).
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29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 290. fT&E€@mIA

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHET
Financial assets ERMEE

Call option TR A - 12,811
Financial liabilities SRaE

Put option R Bt (4,426) (4,780)

Call option of Charming Elastic

Pursuant to the Charming Elastic Shareholders’
Agreement (Note 18), the Group was granted the
right to acquire an additional 11% equity interest of
Charming Elastic from the Majority Shareholder should
Charming Elastic meet certain financial performance
target during the 18 months ending 30 June 2017
or 36 months ending 31 December 2018 (the
“Call Option”). The Call Option is recognised as a
derivative financial instrument at FVTPL by the Group.
The gain on fair value change of such call option of
HK$130,000 (2016: HK$11,765,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was recognised in profit or
loss as other gains or losses as set out in Note 8.

As set out in Note 18, the Call Option was
exercised during the year end 31 December 2017.
Upon the exercise date, the Group derecognised
the Call Option and the fair value of the Call Option
is recognised as part of the consideration of the
acquisition of additional 11% equity interest in
Charming Elastic.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

FESBRTNRBHE

BIEABEBRERE R (I:E18) -
AEBERENETERNERBFEE
BIRFEREINM1%EIRE - EREBR
BEREZ_ZT—+tFA=+THILE
18RAKREBEE_T—\F+_A=
+—HB1E36(E A EKRE FTHMBEKRIRE
2 (RBHE)  REHEARLEE
BRAEBBEREAFETENITE
IR REBEE-_ZT—+F+_7
=+—HBLEFE EEREHELF
EE B I2E130,0008 7T (ZF—7~
F 111,765,000 L) REERER A
H e sk &8 - i0pdsE8pTE o

FANKT 18P E - BB HRERNEE
E—+F+_A=+—HILFEET
£ - V1T A BIR - NEBBUSRER
R MABPENRTFEER
W 1 BB AR AR 5 B IM 1 % AR Y BD
DHRAE -
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29.

30.

204

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. fTEEMTI A (&)
(Continued)
Put option of Charming Elastic FEBRRTNRLERE
Pursuant to the Charming Elastic Shareholders’ BEGBGRTGR R H®E (MizE18)
Agreement (Note 18), subject to and conditional upon XBRREEFAREEKRFABERIBRT
the Group becoming the Majority Shareholder of MEBRRE  BEBRBRENS AL
Charming Elastic, the other shareholder of Charming IR EREITHEEENERANEB RS
Elastic is entitled the right to exercise its option BRI GEAESER W EN
to require the Group to buy out all or part of the E_TFLHA—BE_T-__FH
issued shares of Charming Elastic held by the other = THMERARNTMAEREBS K
shareholder at any time during the period of two years REENFEBRBEENZ RIS
from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2022 at a price set out in BITRMD - RN EIEEANEBER A
the Charming Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement. The put BRBREATEFAENTESHT
option is recognised as a derivative financial instrument B -REZ-_ZTE—+F+-_A=+—
at FVTPL by the Group. The gain on fair value change HIEFE  E@RLHAEATEEZS
of such put option of HK$354,000 (2016: loss on fair B 25354,0008 0 (Z&F—/RF : R
value change of put option of HK$4,457,000) for the ShERE N EE B R ETE 4,457,000
year ended 31 December 2017 was recognised in ) RERERAHM S ERE -
profit or loss as other gains or losses as set out in Note NHIEE8FTEY ©
8.
DEFERRED TAXATION 30. ELEBIE
The following is the major deferred tax assets NTAERAFERBAFENEZED
(liabilities) recognised and movements during the ERAELERIBEE (AE) hEH -
current and prior years.
Deferred Allowance  Allowance
government  Capitalised for  for doubtful
grants finance cost inventories debts Total
ELZRfN  BEAL
#whe  MERKA  BEBRE REREE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T AL ThL
At 1 January 2016 W-Z-~E-F—-H 1,670 (3,075) 4,300 424 3319
Credited (charged) to profit or loss (Note 13) ftiEsEr A (1B (F13) 290 173 2,310) (103) (1,950)
Exchange adjustments R (120) 188 (532) (38) (502)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"E+-A=+-H 1840 (2,714) 1458 283 867
(Charged) credited to proft or loss (Note 13) e85 (%) FTA (KEH3) (321) 1 - - (150)
Exchange adjustments 5 3 119 (185) 103 20 57
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tE+-A=1-H 1,638 (2,728) 1,561 303 174
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The above deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset for presentation purpose in the
consolidated statements of financial positions.

Withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Under the EIT Law,
deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$1,091,080,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$912,166,000), as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$16,485,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$2,854,000). No deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams of
respective group entities. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are tax losses of HK$10,763,000 (2016:
nil) that will be expired within five years, other tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

BIERAERAT « —T—LEFR

30.

IEAERLE (4)

MERMS - LAEERBREERE
BEEREE P BN KL -

BT N\F—F—HBi hEKHEB
A R PTR B s A =R A% B 78 25 4N
FEHNF - REBECEMAEFZE  ARA
SEAIEHBEOREEBEARRE
mA B EENT BRI
BE MW ERAGEMBRERSEF
BB AR —tF+=-A=
+—H®MEF & MNEGENERRFZERE
1,091,080,000/8 jt (=Z & — /X F ¢
912,166,000 7T) tELIEERIB A &
B o

R-_FE—+F+-_A=+—8 &~&
B &) A< Ep A 7 T8 B 18 49 516,485,000
B (Z & — /X F 12,854,000
TL) c AR B EBEERBARK ZFRA
AR MY EEREE RS H
HMEBENRELEHRIEEE - RERH
BHERTEESERAFAEHNTIE
E51810,763,0008 L (=& — N F -
) HibFTEEE A EIRABAESE -
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31.

206

SHARE CAPITAL 31.

The detailed movements of the Company’s share
capital are set out below.

g 25
AARRAGBHHERIIMT -

Number of
shares Amount
BB EE KXo}
HK$ HK$'000
oy FHL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01 BTz TR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December ~ RZZE—A~F—A—BR
2016 and 2017 “ERERZEHF
+-A=1t—H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 January 2016 RZE—~E—F—H 1,021,276,000 10,212,760 10,213
Issue of shares upon exercise of RITERRERRTRD
share options (Note a) (Fit5Ea) 7,505,000 75,050 75
At 31 December 2016 RZE—~E+-A=1+—H 1,028,781,000 10,287,810 10,288
Issue of shares upon exercise of RITEERER BTG
share options (Note b) (Ff5E0) 7,727,000 77,270 77
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tE+=-F=+-AR 1,036,508,000 10,365,080 10,365

All shares issued rank pari passu with other existing
shares in all aspects.

PREC BTN AEMA 7 EEE AR
BREINZEB RS
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 14 January 2016, 13 and 28 April 2016, 18, 23,
24 and 27 May 2016, 1, 2, 8, 21 and 28 June 2016,
5, 6 and 15 July 2016 and 28 and 29 December
2016, the Company issued 600,000, 66,000, 88,000,
134,000, 456,000, 240,000, 1,000,000, 900,000,
1,650,000, 110,000, 149,000, 282,000, 302,000,
962,000, 265,000, 201,000 and 200,000 shares
respectively upon the exercise of share options by
three Directors and certain employees.

On 12 and 13 January 2017, 30 March 2017, 22,
24 and 31 May 2017, 9, 15 and 29 June 2017, 14,
17, 19, 20, 21, 26 and 28 July 2017 and 14 and
18 September 2017, the Company issued 132,000,
215,000, 150,000, 650,000, 30,000, 1,010,000,
950,000, 400,000, 110,000, 745,000, 1,755,000,
120,000, 210,000, 280,000, 220,000, 480,000,
120,000 and 150,000 shares respectively upon the
exercise of share options by a Director and certain
employees.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

31.

e B SRR Y A

—tFt+-A=1t—HLFE

‘. \/5/

BT

(a)

F\\ = /\i H'HEE 7T_*\
E@ﬂ+_a&mﬂf+ﬂa =
*ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ‘ﬁﬂi+iﬂ~
AA-+WBEREA-t++tRH  =_Z
—RNFERNA—H -A<AZH - <AN
B -A~"AZ+—BFEXAZ+/\H: =
T—XNFE+tARB - tAXNBELA
FTHAUERZZE—R"F+ZA=+N
Bk+=-—A=-+hHB ARARR=M
BEERETRERETFEBERER S R
£7600,000/% - 66,0008% * 88,0004% -
134,0000% ~ 456,0000% * 240,000/% -
1,000,0004% + 900,000/% ~ 1,550,000
A% ~ 110,0000% * 149,000/ - 282,000
M ~ 302,000/% * 962,000/% * 265,000
f% ~ 201,000/% X 200,0008% A&7 °

RZBE—+F—A+=-Bk—A+=
H —Z—+F=A=+H  —T—
+FRAZ+ZB - AAZ-t+HB K
_:E B=+—HB  —_Z—+t%F,A jL

‘AH+£E&AH—+%E -
TZ—+F+A+WHE A +LRH-
+At+thB - HA=+H - tA=+
—B -+tA=-t+ X "BRtA=-+NB
Wk —_FE—+FAA+MHBERNAAT
NB ARER—NUEERETES
17 B8 IR #E 18 2 5l % 17132,0008%
215,000/% + 150,000/% * 650,0004% -
30,0004% * 1,010,0000% * 950,000
[% ~ 400,0000% + 110,000/% * 745,000
% ~1,755,000/% + 120,000f% *
210,000/% ~ 280,000/% * 220,0004% -
480,0000% * 120,000R% K2 150,000/4% s

1/'\ o

207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ2—ZT—+tF+_-_A=1+—HILFE

32.

208

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ salaries with a cap
of HK$1,500 per month per employee starting from
1 June 2014 and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
make contributions to the state-managed retirement
schemes operated by the local governments based
on certain percentage of the monthly salaries of
their current employees to fund the benefits.

Eligible employees in Vietnam currently participate
in State Social Insurance Fund, which is a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The calculation of
contributions is based on certain percentage of
employee’s payroll.

The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the above defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are to make the required contributions
under the respective schemes.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the total
costs charged to profit or loss are approximately
HK$43,660,000 (2016: HK$32,839,000),
representing contributions paid/payable to the
above defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes.

32.

RIRERIETE

KREBRIE R B MERBES T EIEH A
RAIRRG - BEFERBEEERE
B2HEBH A AEeTE ([RES
2 #HRNZEEFHHNETES
LhEFE AT —MWFEASA—BE
RAeESXEE®A15008 T B8
R KRB R B 5T 8138 IR & FE
AR BESAEEKE RN -
BESFEEENAAEEEED AR
F ABUITAETEESRE - B
TE+tFERZF-RFTHA=T
— B - WERL A B AR AR
RFER ST -

ARAWFENE AR AKRERAE
B AFONETBD LA BFEE
MBI R E B RRGTEEL 5 - (ES
w|IEE -

BEEEREEBMZEBRTLER
RET - W —EHMTBRAEEN
REHRFRERE - HFKTDBREREE
HEETEDLEE -

ARER Bph ot R OE HBUR E R A &l
MM — B ERRBESFTEIEL AN

e
oA °

Bz Z—+F+=-_A=+—H1
FE - -RESHBOKEARELY
#43,660,000 7T (= & — X F:
32,839,000/ 7t) + Bl kit R E R IK
BREEINES EAHER -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
were adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
8 May 2014 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
will expire at the end of five years and ten years
from the date of grant of respective share options
for Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme, respectively.

For the Share Option Scheme, no share option was
granted since its adoption.

At 31 December 2017, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Pre-IPO
Share Options Scheme was 3,300,000 shares
(31 December 2016: 11,027,000 shares). The
maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
30,000,000 shares.

BIERAERAT « —T—LEFR

33.

LARR 47 2 EL 1 BV 3 3K

BRER_Z—HWNFARN\RBEBAR
BERRAARRAERARBEENBK
BB ((BERAHBEANBRES
B |) MERERTE ([HBRERtE]) -
TEREFNAERERREMAE
I 2 B AF R B IR A5 % E A BB T
g MBRE SR D BB BRER
HIE A F R +FREH -

A AR Sl S -
RO BAE -

B H KRR R &

R-_E—+E+_-_HA=+—8 B
BEEAAHAEENBERENEERD
MEARITEOBERESANRHEE
#3,300,000 810 (ZE—REFE+=
A=+—H :11,027,000/& i 1) °
BEEAARAEENEREREIED
WA BREREITHERAREEITAX
ANEE ;A2 | % 9 £&30,000,000%
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 33. URHBABEBRNAR (&)

The table below discloses movement of the TREBEEHE-_ZT—XR"EFR-ZT—t

Company’s share options granted under the Pre- F+-_A=Z+—HULIEFESFRNRE

IPO Share Option Scheme during each of the years BARREBEERBRESEREOAR
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017: NEIERRE B E)

Exercised 31 Exercised 31

1 January during December during December

2016 the year 2016  the year 2017

—E-5F “E-RE ZE—tF

: t=A t=A

-B #REME =t-B FAEAE =1-H

Number of share options outstanding:  KE{TEERIESE -
 Directors of the Corpany - KATIEE 7,400,000 (3400,000) 4,000,000 (1,500,000 2,500,000
_ Employess -8 11,132,000 (4,105,000 7,027,000 (6,227,000 800,000

18,532,000 (7,505,000) 11,027,000 (7,727,000) 3,300,000

Number of share options ATk EE B
exercisable 1,708,000 512,000 3,300,000

Note: BiaE

The Group has recognised share-based payment expenses $%Eﬁ§%ﬁ§:;ﬁ—t¢+:ﬂ =+—H
of HK$238,000 (2016: HK$840,000), HK$238,000 (2016: JtEF‘ZTaE@ 2RIt E LA - %S‘EE&
HK$840,000) and HK$159,000 (2016: HK$560,000) in profit B2t 2 R RS B AR DARR 1) R ELRE RO 4 3K B
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017 in relation 238,000/ T (= F — X E 840,000/%8
to the share options of Mr. Lu, Mr. Wu and Ms. Zheng, JL) * 288,000 7T (= & — /< F : 840,000
respectively. B JT) &159,000% 7T (_ T — X F:

560,000/ 7T) °
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 = —%F

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date on which the share options were
exercised by a director (2016: three directors) was
HK$4.84 (2016: HK$4.90) per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares at the dates on which the share options
were exercised by employees of the Group was
HK$6.09 (2016: HK$5.30) per share.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are subject to the vesting period as
to 20%, 30% and 50% of the aggregate number of
shares underlying the option on the date of the first,
second and third anniversary of the date of grant
of such options respectively. The exercise period of
these share of options is from 19 May 2015 to 19
May 2019.

Share options were granted on 19 May 2014
with exercise price of HK$1.075 per share. The
fair value of the options determined at the date of
grant using the Binomial option pricing model was
HK$33,640,000.

BT AR AR « —T—LFFH

33.

el BRRWNE
Lt AS - ALER

UG BEBNSR (&)

BHE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HItF
B ARABOREREE—ZES
(ZE—REF =285 TFEHH
MEFHUTEAEFRL84E T (=
T—NF  4.9087T) °

HE-_FT—tF+ZHA=1T—HLF
B ARRARNHRBREERSEE
:fﬂi*ﬁzﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬂuﬁlmﬁﬁlﬂx
6.098 7T (ZZF—7"F : 5.3087T) °

*ETFE/X@E%?&%%%H%E?@U?ﬁ
Z B rE / %lJEATEﬁExiﬁ%HfoEEEI
Hﬁﬁ_.ﬁr “REZBFRRA
78 A% #@%{EE’DO% 30% % 50% 5%
B AEBRRENTENRS T —

FRAATABEZZ—AFRATA
E o
BREXR_Z-—NFAATILER

al ﬁﬁﬁ"fz%tﬂxmow%x FR=
HAPEETEREARELBHETEDN
BB A% HE 2 A F{E A33,640,000/8 TT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 33.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options at the date of grant
on 19 May 2014:

UGB HBERNSR (&)

ATMBREARAER-_FT—NFEA A
THARARHHBEEREZ XFE

Spot price per share on grant date R AN ESRIIAEE HK$2.150
2.1507%8 7T

Exercise price 1TEE HK$1.075

1.075%7T

Life to expiration (Note a) JEmEH (ffita) 5 years

5%

Expected volatility (Note b) TEERR R (Fiakb) 42.80%

Dividend vield i B as E 0.00%

Risk-free interest rate (Note c) maE R = (Miitc) 1.202%

Notes: B 5T -

(@) Life to expiration: Being the period of 5 years (a) [Em AR - BRI IRIE 2 & AR
commencing on the date of grant based on the i B BT 5F HAM o
contractual terms of the share options.

(b) Expected volatility: Estimated based on the daily (b) TEHIRIE - B4R A AR AR
stock prices of 4 comparable companies for a period HEERBREREMGERZERFH
equal to the life to expiration as of the valuation date. Rz Z B REEL A -

(© Risk-free interest rate: Being the yield of Hong Kong (© ERERAR - BIEBINER S FEN
Exchange Fund Notes with a maturity life equal to Eml (HERBREEE/RERZ

[EMER) 2= -

the life to expiration of the valuation date.

The Binomial option pricing model has been
used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value
of the options.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest ultimately. The impact of the
revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.

The share-based payments of HK$1,703,000
(2016: HK$6,015,000) for the year ended 31
December 2017 is recognised in profit or loss
(included in administrative expenses).

—IEAHEEBEELC ARG ER
BLZRTME - STHEBREDFEME
PR | &{E”*“Eﬁﬂ§$2ﬁ*&1ﬁ
&t e ﬁ%&{ﬁjmz FB A REE B X
BT ELREZS -

REREBHERS - AEEEITH
045 5 45 08 B 4 451 TR IR MERLED o
EEEHEAT MRS (0F) - RIARRE
2 WA AR -

BHE_ZT—+HE+-A=+—HItHF
& - AR BEER 1,708,000
7T (ZZF—75%F : 6,015,000 7T) »
BamPER GTATTHAX) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, REMEERIE
The Group as lessee AEBERAABA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RPEHREERE  ~"EEE A0
commitments for future minimum lease payments in B EHEBE N AELNRED
respect of office and factory premises, warehouse X EPENEIFESEAERKFKE
and staff quarters rented under non-cancellable EXIE - BHAAT
operating leases which fall due as follows:
2017 2016
—EB—tF —FB—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 14,959 7,116
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERF (PREEEMT) 10,422 3,927
25,381 11,043

Leases for office premises, warehouse and staff
quarters are negotiated for an average term of three
years and rentals are fixed for an average term
of three years. A lease for factory premises was
negotiated for a term of three years.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

RBENRRENE  REKRETITRE
SNHEOFHHMRA=F HeXF
R =FARETE - BEWENHE
HWHRBER=F °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

35.

214

CAPITAL AND OTHER

35. BEARHMARE

COMMITMENTS
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRARNEME  BE
addition of property, plant and equipment FEHEETHE
contracted but not provided for REBENERFAX 112,622 486,041
Capital expenditure in respect of the BAREMRE L
addition of leasehold land contracted DRI OERBESN
but not provided for BEARFE - 20,365
Capital contribution to a partnership (Note a) & EATEE (KitEa) 44,258 41,341
156,880 547,747

Notes:

The investment in a partnership is recognised as an
available-for-sale financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 (Note 19) In February 2018,
pursuant to a resolution at a partners’ meeting of
the partnership, the partners in the partnership
agree to reduce the total capital contribution to the
partnership and the partnership will distribute certain
portion of the paid up contributed capital up to
31 December 2017 to partners according to their
respective interest in the partnership. Accordingly,
the Group is no longer required to make further
capital contribution to the partnership and is entitled
a distribution from the partnership of RMB6.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$8.0 million).

o

REBRARNBEE_T—tER=
E-—RNE+A=+—BHELH
BHRAERAERATHLESME
E(M519) - RZE—NE_-A/
BRIE—BAEARAEATH AR
R ABLAFANAEARERER
AR AREIENTEEE  BAEA
ABRABARESARAEATN
BEEPEHBE—_ZE—t&+=-A=+
—HEREESENE TS - A
I AEBBTESEMZABE AR
EE - BEHAREARKBARE
6.7EE L (HENRAB0E BB L)
KD ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ2—_ZT—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

35. CAPITAL AND OTHER
COMMITMENTS (Continued)

o)

On 4 December 2017, () Best Pacific International
Sri Lanka (Thulhiriya) Limited (“BPSL (Thulhiriya)”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
(i) MAS Capital (Private) Limited (“MAS Capital”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of MAS Holdings (Pvt)
Ltd (“MAS”) and (iii) Trischel Fabric (Private) Limited
(“Trischel”) entered into a joint venture agreement
(the “MAS JV Agreement”) in relation to the
acquisition of 51% of the total issued share capital
of Trischel by BPSL (Thulhiriya) from MAS Capital
(the “Acquisition”), and regulating the ownership,
funding and management of Trischel on the terms
and conditions as set out in the MAS JV Agreement.

Pursuant to the MAS JV Agreement, the
consideration for the acquisition shall equal to
51% of the net asset value of Trischel as at the
completion date and, in any event, shall be no more
than US$50,000,000. Pursuant to the MAS JV
Agreement, the completion of the Acquisition shall
take place on or before 1 August 2018 or any other
date as BPSL (Thulhiriya) and MAS Capital may
agree in writing. After completion of the Acquisition,
Trischel will continue its existing businesses including,
among others, the manufacture of warp and weft
knitted fabric, and the importation of yarn and greige
fabric and complementary accessories for dyeing
and finishing for export. Prior to the completion of
the Acquisition, MAS Capital, MAS and Trischel are
independent third parties to the Group.

Up to the date of this report, completion of the
Acquisition has not yet taken place and Trischel is still
owned as to 100% by MAS Capital. Details of the
above transactions were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 4 December 2017.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
22 December 2016, Dongguan BPT and seven
independent third parties entered into an agreement
in relation to the formation of a company to be
established in the PRC (“the Investee”) to engage
in insurance business and related financial activities
in the PRC. Pursuant to such agreement, Dongguan
BPT has agreed to make a capital contribution
of RMB140,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$ HK$158,765,000) in return for approximately
7.022% equity interest in the Investee. As at the date
of this report, formation of the Investee is subject
to the approval from China Insurance Regulatory
Commission and no contribution was made by the
Group to the Investee.

BRERERARAT « —E—LFFR

35. EXRREMAE (&)

(o)

RZZE—-—t&+Z WA ()
Best Pacific International Sri
Lanka (Thulhiriya)Limited (4
AR —EHREBEZENEB A
7)) ([BPSL(Thulhiriya)]) - (ii)
MAS Capital (Private) Limited
(MAS Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
(IMAS]) &) —fH HE # 2 & Mt
& 72 7Al)([MAS Capital]) -
K (iii)Trischel Fabric (Private)
Limited ([Trischel|) & i & %
i & (IMASE & i &) A @
BPSL(Thulhiriya)[AIMAS Capital %
Trischel® ZE 1T AN A951% (4R
BEIE]|)  RIEMASE &1 TE
B 16 3R A&+ R B Trischel® FT &
- BMEREESEE -

RIBEMASE & % - WIS R (E 548
& M TrischelX T K H B 2 & E %
BE/51% BRI ETEHRA
50,000,000% T ° 1R EMASE & 1
EOUNBEEERA-Z—N\FNA
— H 8t 2 Al 3k ABPSL (Thulhiriya)
EAMAS Capital A = @ # F B9 £/ H
B HEBSERK - R BB A 1£ -
TrischeliG BB L LR B ER - BIF
(BB ) RS @Estimel - &
R AMmER RE R EITRE
LAYER B - RULHE EIEEART + Mas
Capital * Mas X Trischel & 7 & &
BNE=F o

HEAFHKAS WEFHEHEKRT
B » AMAS Capital{3# & Trischel
ZERRRAE c B LR FZHEBER
AAFBHA-Z—+F+_-_AMA
ZAEPHE -

BUARABBHA-_T—E+_A
“+_BMREEE  RxBAs
tR2BLE=ZFEL—HOHE RN
AREBETRMAZEL A ([HERELD
) NEFBEREREES MIEHE
MRS - RIEZ S REBARD
[ E & A R #140,500,0007T (18
Z£FA49158,765,000/8TT) © B
&N RH7.022%H AR HE o A A TR
S HEH - KSIRIRE D RBE R R
SEERETREZE A BASEY
AR E RN TEL MK -

v
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36.

37.

38.

216

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EHEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has R EHRAERE  AEEDEFR
pledged bank deposits and certain property, plant TEFUNRETOE  BE MRE
and equipment to secure the bills payables issued EEREERENENEZELEMR
by the Group and finance lease obligations. The EREMNEM - BB EENREES
carrying amounts of the assets pledged are as FEAT
follows:
2017 2016
LY 5 —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITER 54,623 61,610
Equipment B 34,019 37,105
88,642 98,715
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. AEE
The Group does not have any contingent liability so AEEMEREREEMAESASET
far as the management is aware that is pending or Al A RIRRS S B A B B R sk
threatened by or against companies of the Group. A=K
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXEKERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
debts, which mainly include bank borrowings as
disclosed in Note 27 and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital
disclosed in Note 31 and reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure
by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view
of this, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
shares issue as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debts.

REEEIEH &R ARERE % ae S
BRERLE RNZEAB(CEKER

BESTIRERED R - AEEE
RS E — S E AR BT -

AEBEERREREER (BRENH
AT B IRITHE ) UMK R T
BB AREEZ (BIEM 31 AINE
R B B i)

BEHEREEREERARBZRENR
HENERBTERNRE  BER
> AEEREBRMSBE - BITH
A B 31T $T1E 75 S [0 3R B (& 7% A
FHEREBENRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. EMTH
Categories of financial instruments cRMIAESE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHT
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables ERREWHIE (B1E
(including cash and cash equivalents) ReERREEEY) 931,665 1,086,947
AFS financial assets AEHEEREE 27,512 28,434
Financial assets at FVTPL FERBEEREATE
ATENEREE
— derivative financial instrument —TESmITA - 12,811
Financial liabilities A=
Financial liabilities measured at e SIS DW=
amortised cost SRAE 1,870,986 1,199,024
Financial liabilities at FVTPL FRBEREATE
AENERAE
— derivative financial instrument —{TESRTIA 4,426 4,780

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include AFS
financial assets, derivative financial instruments,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and
deposits, amount due from a related company,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade payables, bills
payables, other payables and accrued charges
and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR

BEEREERRERBE

AEENTIECHMTABSKEAIHLE
TREE TEEMIA BHEW
AR EWRE - E M EWGRIA R IR
& - BB AR - EEMRTT
Tk BEIRITER  RITERRE
T BHERMNFIA  BNRE  Hib
e SR R FEET B A RIRTTHE R ©
ZET R T AR BRI E R
e PXHIEZEZERTAEHEN
Rl M R EZERROBEK - §
BEEEENMEEZSZER  ABRE
BB R EREUE 2 15 1
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39.

218

ERE R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings
and bank balances, and fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits,
short term bank deposits, fixed-rate borrowings
and obligations under finance leases.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors its exposure to future cash flow risk as
a result of change on market interest rate and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HBOR or LIBOR
arising from the Group’s variable-rate borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rate risk on bank
borrowings. The sensitivity analysis is prepared
assuming the bank borrowings outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. No sensitivity analysis is presented
on bank balances as the management of the Group
considers that the interest rate fluctuation on bank
balances is minimal.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used in the
sensitivity analysis, which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. If the interest rate had been 50 basis
point higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2017 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$5,028,000 (2016: HK$2,478,000).

39.

w C T T A= ElEEE

TRIA (&)
MEEREEERERBER (&)

AR
TET)

ARSRE X 2T BIRTIE 5 RIR
THHBBENRSREMXRER - A
&ﬁi,ﬂﬁﬁﬁ T R HIERTT
TR EEERMBEHEAEARM
I/ $@ﬂfﬂh°

RNEE B AT &R SRR o

- ERERYEE m%ﬂTHQ

L/(ﬁﬁ;@ﬁlﬁkxiﬁiumgﬂﬁ -
TFERERMISMN XML EE -

$$@Miﬂﬁ{%ﬁﬂrﬂ 2 B 5F
EERR AT RBESRARE —8 - K
SENRERENERAREEEFR
KEREEEREBERZEBRITRIZE
I B M BERIT R ZE I S AUKIE o

SRNE DT

AN SR D AT TIRIB B IR 1T 18 5K E
HMEEBRMETE - BRI
ﬁ&%ﬁiﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
TERRBEEFEREEEMRER
EF$EIEEEWHEH &SR A
FREN RS - AL EIIRITERZ T
FRNEDHT

R D AT E A AT R501E
2 REREEBEEFHASE/
P REB) o i F K EF TS0
BEXEMAEEMEEHERTE KK
BREBEz_f—+tF+_A=1+—
HIEFERHBRMRE RN ERLD
h0 #95,028,000/%8 T (= &E — N F ¢
2,478,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. £MIA (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BREREEERERBEK (&)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEEK (&)
Currency risk B E e
Certain trade receivables, trade payables, bills %:F%f%@ﬂﬂl%f\lﬁ - B S EIE g
payables, bank balances and cash, and bank R R - RITESR MRS A KIRTT
borrowings are denominated in foreign currencies BREUNEEEEERBNINEEE A
other than the functional currency of the relevant SNEISNEEETE - BRAEEE EHIMNE
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign BB o AREE I MINEE P IE - R
currency risk. The Group does not have a foreign i BEEEEEIINERRE - WENE
currency hedging policy. However, the management BIFE R E P ERIMNERE ©
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AEENUIINETBENEBEERAR
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the R EHEERENREEDT
end of the reporting periods are as follows:
Assets
BE
2017 2016
—E2—tF —FTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Euro (‘EUR”) against HK$ BT( (BT ) 3BT 231 261
Renminbi (‘RMB”) against HK$ AR ([AR%]) AT 69 1,196
United States Dollar (‘USD”) against HK$ 27t ([Ex]) BT 328,714 295,656
VND against USD WEERET 3,112 117
HK$ against USD ETCHZETT 2,263 -
Liabilities
aE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FRT FHT
EUR against HK$ BT BT 1,287 3,546
RMB against HK$ AREBH BT - 41
USD against HK$ ETLABTT 109,064 83,748
VND against USD MG R T 14,490 1,815
HK$ against USD BTTHZETT 473,621 -

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €@TH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BHEEREEEERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) migEkE (&)
Currency risk (Continued) B (&)
The carrying amounts of foreign currency RIRE BRI R - UINBHENE
denominated intra-group balances which have been BARAIEEHRNBREESINGOT -
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements ERERTDRNEEEABARE B
of certain subsidiaries of which the functional TRETHE THEB ARG ES MK
currency are RMB, HK$ and USD at the end of the wE A
reporting period are as follows:
Amount due (to) from
group entities
() EWEEEERE
2017 2016
—EB—+tF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FHET
HK$ against RMB BTLHARE 110,215 423,427
USD against RMB ETLHARK (11,885) -
HK$ against USD BILHET 9,156 -
EUR against USD BT i ETT 10,738 =
EUR against HK$ BT BT (8,559) -

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with
USD, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.
Therefore, the following sensitivity analysis does not
include the effect between USD and HK$.

BUBIE S 17
BT R E TG - AR
T/ BRAERLFEAEARD ° B
B+ 5 BB 5 47 3 0 4 36
BIERTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 10% increase and decrease in the functional
currency of the respective group entity against
relevant foreign currencies and all other variables
were held constant. 10% is the sensitivity rate
used by management in the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary items and intragroup foreign currency
balances and adjusts its translation at the period
end for a 10% change in foreign currencies rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit for the year where foreign currencies
strengthen 10% against functional currency (HK$
or RMB or USD) of the respective group entity. For
a 10% weakening of foreign currencies against
functional currency (HK$ or RMB or USD) of the
respective group entity there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the result for the year.

39.

€@MIEA (&)
BEEREEEERBEK (&)

miSEE (&)

E¥mE (&)

UMD (B)
TRFALAEEHSREERNER
AR B SN T K1 0% 8 SRR -
PR EMEEER T - 10% R EE
EBrRIAERT S IEE SN GRIEL
o BURIEDHTE BRI R AT B 2 A
SNESIEMERIRE REBA QR E
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2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FHET

Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit REZRTERFIEM

for the year (R

Foreign currency against HK$ HNEE BT (797) (178)
Foreign currency against RMB HNEE 55 N R 8,358 34,197
Foreign currency against USD HNEEHLZETT (51) (136)

In - management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its available-for-sale financial assets (i.e. unit
trusts) and derivative financial instruments. The
management manages this exposure by reviewing
the investments performance regularly.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period. For
sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate is
10% for both years.

If the prices of the available-for-sale financial
assets (unit trusts) had been 10% higher and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
investment revaluation reserve would increase
approximately by HK$274,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 as a result of the changes in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets. If the
prices of the available-for-sale financial assets had
been 10% lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31
December 2016 would decrease approximately
by HK$539,000 (including the cumulative fair
value loss of HK$265,000 to be recycled from the
Group’s investment revaluation reserve) as a result
of the relevant impairment loss.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties as at
the end of reporting period are arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses or
allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk for pledged bank deposits,
short term bank deposits and bank balances is
considered as not material as such amounts are
placed in banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned
banks.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several reputable
banks, the Group had concentration of credit risk
on trade receivables as 18.8% (2016: 8.9%) of the
total trade receivables were due from the Group’s
largest customer based in Hong Kong and 38.7%
(2016: 31.8%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest five customers, which
were mainly based in the PRC, Sri Lanka and Hong
Kong, as at 31 December 2017.

BRIERERAGE « —T—+HFFHR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on bank
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the earliest time band regardless of the probability
of the banks or financial institutions choosing to
exercise their rights. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. £RITH (#)
Financial risk management objectives and H¥RREEEEREEK (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRR (Z)
Liquidity tables HEELFK
Carrying
Weighted ~ Repayable amount at
average  on demand Between Total  the end of
effective or within 3 months to Between undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 3 months Tyear 1to5years  cashflows date
REXS REEHE
METH AR =fiRz AERRS ERE
LYk RE -£ -£ERf  REEE HafE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAR A Thr T T
At 31 December 2017 R-F-tF+ZA=t-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ #74 2®EHE
Trade payables BARRTR - 181,616 - - 181,616 181,616
Bills payables 0ES - 185124 100,051 - 85175 285175
Other payables and accrued charges  EbERFUARE B R - 163,933 - - 163,933 163,933
Bank borrowings - variable rate Rirlest - B 3.25% 244,204 15534 1035534 1205272 1,204,377
Bank borrowings - fixed rate RATHR - B 6.50% 35,885 - - 35,885 35,885
Obligations under finance leases HEREAE 3.75% 632 - - 632 629
811,304 115,585 1,035,534 1,962,513 1,871,615
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RETZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ i+ $REE
Trade payables e - 122,658 = = 122,658 122,658
Bils payables ES - 186,877 127,13 - 314013 314013
Other payables and accrued charges  EERFUAR B ER - 168,851 - - 168,851 168,851
Bank borrowings - variable rate RiTles - FBAE 3.17% 64,704 56,985 505,825 627,604 593,502
Obligations under finance leases WEREAE 3.75% 2450 291 632 6,043 5931
545,630 187,082 506457 1239169 1,204,955
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amount of bank borrowings
with repayment on demand clause amounting
to HK$275,005,000 (2016: HK$7,809,000) are
included in “Repayment on demand or within 3
months” time band in the above maturity analysis.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the management of the Group does not believe that
it is probable that the banks or financial institutions
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The management of the
Group believes that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. ¢®TH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BEREBEERERBEK (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRR (Z)
Liquidity tables (Continued) THEBEL K (&)
For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the REBRBDESRREMNE BEER
management reviews the expected cash flow B EEt &l f‘éf%i% HE (AR AT
information of the Group’s bank borrowings based #) EHRAEERTERNEBELHARS
on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the MEER :
agreement as set out in the table below:
Carrying
amount at
Weighted Total  the end of
average Within 3 months to 1yearto undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 3 months 1 year 5years  cash flows period
AR NEEHE
e =fAZE RenE GRIH
i =Rk -£ -£ERF &5 BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
% Thr Thn Tén T T
Bank horrowings BITEH
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=1-H 3.03% 237,292 39,646 200 217,138 275,005
As at 31 December 2016 RZF-"E+-f=1-H 3.14% 1,735 3,131 3,263 8,129 7,809

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as
the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (Level 1 to
3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset, either directly or
indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Fair value measurement (Continued)

Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (Continued)

Fair value as at 31 December

RTZR=T-RHATE

39.

£RHTH (&)

DNFEFE ()

DIEEHEEZAFEAENSRME
ENREENAFE (&)

Fair value
2017 2016 hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs ~ Sensitivity
-t T AVEER RERGRIZAAHE gEE
(1) Avaiable-for-sale - Unittrust-  Level2  Based on fair value of underlying assets ~ N/A
financial assets HK$2,736,000 and liabilties which are subsequently
(see Note 19 derived from level 1 inputs.
() WthEeHAE - BfifR- £-8  REABAERGENATEEE X TER
(RHtH19) 2,736,007 REREE-RBAZE -
(2) Derivative financial - Calloption-  Level 3 Fair value derived by valuation model, ~ The fair value of the derivative financial asset as a whole
asset (see Note 29) HK$12,811,000 Monte Carlo Simulation Mode!. The key s negatively correlated with the WAGC and the discount
unobservable inputs used by the Group  for lack of marketability and positively correlated with
mainly included price to eamnings ratio  price to eaming ratio of comparable companies.
of comparable companies, weighted
average cost of capital (‘WACC) and
discount for lack of marketabilty.
(@ fTEEHEE - ABME-  £SR REEERFEFEREENGLNLN (HORAENLTEBREMETSERNARS
(RME2) 12,811,000%7 T FEEFRNFEFIRERA  DEEOTERRY - BAAURADNHRER

YT EOETARATHTES
EREERTE (PSR
) Rkt

Ete
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €I A (&)

Fair value measurement (Continued) AFREE (&)
Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities DREMBEERAFEFENEHE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring EREEBNATEHE (Z)

basis (Continued)

Fair value as at 31 December

WTZR=T-BHATE

Fair value
2017 2016 hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs ~ Sensitivity
-t TN AVEER RERGRIZBAHE §EE
(3) Derivative Put option- Putoption-  Level 3 Falr value derived by valuation model, ~ The fair value of the derivative financial liability as a whole
financial iabiity 4,426,000 HK$4,780,000 Monte Garlo Simulation Model. The key  is negatively correlated with the WACC and positively
(see Note 29) unobservable inputs used by the Group  correlated with the discount for lack of marketability and the

mainly included expected volatilty of expected volatiity of comparable companies.

comparable companies, WACC and

discount for lack of marketabilty. As at 31 December 2017, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease in:

- WACC by 3% would have decreased/increased
the fair value of the derivative financial liability by
HK$786,000/HK$ 1,047,000 (2016: HK$813,000/
HK$1,222,000);

- Discount for lack of marketability by 5% would have
increased/decreased the far value of the derivative
financial liabilty by HK$1,189,000/HK$962,000 (2016:
HK$1,667,000/HK$1,227,000);

- Expected volatility of comparable companies by
10% would have increased/decreased the fair value
of the derivative financial fiability by HK$1,073,000/
HK$1,059,000 (2016: HKS842,000/HK$752,000).

O fEeRAE  REEE  REBE- $2R REEREDSSSESRRUGIND  (EeRSEOATERBRENETHERRAKRY &
(RMzE29) 4426000 478000087 Ve ASEFRNIRATEEGA  ROGEEOTRRTALRARNBREALL -
YELZRBTANANANESR .
B METHERRARR @S AR Er- AR HEREEMREERT
e EHERT M

- METERHAEN /HO%%h  HERGTEERE
EEATEEM / 5:0786,00057T /1,047,000
(22775 - 813,00017T,/1,222,00087T) +

- QZEBLGTREN/B5% RERNEERE
RIATEIEM /91,180,000 L / 962,000
(ZZ—7vF + 16670007 /1,227 000%TL)

-~ WAHERANEERELN  HO10%  BERGS
BARNATEEN,/ H1, 0730005 /1,059,000
T 2BV - 9420007/ 75200078 7T ) ©

There is no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and PREFEFERN F—H  F_HXKE
Level 3 during both years. = REAREEAES -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

Fair value of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair
value of its financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the discounted
cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Valuation process

The finance manager of the Group is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses market-observable data
or information provided by counterparty financial
institutions to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available or counterparty financial
institutions cannot provide sufficient information in
relation to fair value, the management of the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The finance manager reports to
management of the Group semi-annually to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
financial instruments are disclosed above.

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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40.

232

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

40. BAEIRXS
BRGAMBREEMBAHRES

financial statements, the Group had the following N REBRERNET NYEEFR
related party transactions during the year: 2
@) 2017 2016
- —TRF
Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
REME FTERT FHET
Sales of raw materials to a joint venture nEEEMEERME 1,959 1,592
Purchase of goods from a joint venture HEE2NEEER 96,080 66,046
Sales of goods to a related company* R A RIEEEY” 13,778 1,117
Sales of goods to other related companies*  [A1E fth BABE 1 7] 356 5 1* 17,390 N/A
Rental expense to a related company* A — @R R
(Note 1) A H* (FEE) 7,103 7,158
Rental expense in respect of rented BRRELETNH
premises to Mr. Lu (Note 2) HEMEASTH
(PfzE2) 3,652 4,193
N/A:  not applicable N/A:  TEA
G A related company controlled by close family * AARRESMITFERENKEIEHH
members of directors of the Company. Bl /NI
g The other related companies are fellow subsidiaries t ZEEMEABR AR RENEE BB
of the non-controlling shareholder who has significant RRAIABEAFE 2 FERBRROF R

influence over a subsidiary of the Group. The related
party sales transaction amount disclosed for the year
ended 31 December 2017 represented the sales
transactions with these other related companies

MEBAR -BE-_ZT—tF+-A=+
—RALEFERBENBESHERZHEE
BREHMBABARN T —tF+—
HARBRRBASEBBT AR 8B7%%

since the date when they become related parties to BB A RIEER S ©

the Group on 6 November 2017.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BERS (#)

(Continued)

Notes: BT 5T -

1. At the end of each reporting period, the Group had 1. m%*&iﬂ‘%ﬁ RS REEDEE
commitments for future minimum payments under B AT N A S EHE
non-cancellable operating lease with a related gkﬁ*?fi?ﬁrﬁﬁm  BIEAEH AT ¢
company, which fall due as follows:

2017 2016

—ZE—t& =F-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —FR 3,531 4,398
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZhF (BREEMSF) - 3,299
3,531 7,697

2. At the end of each reporting period, the Group had 2. RE RS B R ZF%E*ETJ%
commitments for future minimum payments under B[ 5 A4 25 5T /91 A SR AS & 7 B
non-cancellable operating lease with Mr. Lu, which EARRSEMNR - BEBRMT
fall due as follows:

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fix FH&T

Within one year —FR 4,996 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive ZERF (PEEEMST) 6,246 -
11,242 -

(b) Compensation to key management
personnel of the Group which represents
directors of the Company is set out in Note
10.

Details of the balances with a joint venture and
related companies at the end of reporting period
are disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position and Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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41.
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. HBRAT S
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company RZE—+FR_FTE—RNFEF+_-_A=
has the following subsidiaries: +—B8  ARaBUTHEBAR :
Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December
Charter capital/ _ZM_E
- RT=R=t-H
Place of Paid up - 3
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ iR RRaLbl
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2017 2016  Principal activities
BRy/ 5Bk /
HEARER R Bewd BRRE/HMERX —B3-tf T~ FEER
% %
BPT Holdings BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$20,000 100 100 Investment holding
BROBAR ZERAHE & ERR20,000% T RERR
Best Pacific Textile Bl Haong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Internatonal Limited EERIES B LER100ET REMHR
BESGARERAT
BPT Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
BEGE 3 &b L3 10,000 BT and trading of lace
Best Pacific Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited 75 A LER1 AT RARK
BERE (BE) ARAA
Best Pacific Textile Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Trading of elastic
(Hong Kong) Limited ) i LAk BT fabric
BRGH (BE) BRAR EEBUEMEN
New Horizon Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
HERE B B £381R 10000 A7 RERR
New Horizon Elastic Fabric ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Trading of elastic
(Hong Kong) Limited ) i Lak1 BT webbing
EREER BEEEHAS
(&%) BRAA
Dongguan BPT The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Manufacture and
R G el capital trading of elastic
HK$1,190,460,000 fabric and lace
Note) REREERIERN
BREMER EHRES
1,190,460,000 7T
(FzE iv)
Dongguan NHE The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Manufacture and
s G i capital trading of elastic
HK$334,250,000 webbing
BREMER HEREEBUAT
334,250,000 7T
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December

M X Rl 2 F 18 ()

Charter capital/ _Zm_ﬂ
Place of Paid up H@:r: A :t_ A
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ iR R LA
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2017 2016  Principal activities
M/ ERELR/
KEARER RS feny BRkRE/HfMER  —B3-tF 2 IEER
% %

Dongguan Best Pacific The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 - Purchase of
International Traging i i capital (Note v) machinaries, parts
Company Limited HK$1,000,000 (Ftstv) and raw materials
(“Dongguan BPI”) BREMER e

RERRAREHERAT 1,000,007 R RRHH
([REREER )

New Horizon International ~ BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited EBRUES B LER100ET REER

BEARRERRAA

Best Pacific International BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
(Vietnam) Company Limted EBELES 30 EER100 F RERR

BRER (Hr) ARAR

Best Pacific (Vietnam) Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited % e LER1 AT RARK

B2 (88) BRAF

Best Pacific Vigtnam Vietnam Vietnam Charter capital 100 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited #m il VND1,538,700,000,000 trading of elastic

REHEERAR (Note i) fabric and elastic

SREAR welbing
1,538,700,000,000 HEREEBIEN
HEE EHREEES
(B33 i)

Best Pacific International BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 - Investment holding

SriLanka (Pannale) Limited  R@ELES & L@k 100 =1 (Note ) RERK
(Ffzkv)
Best Pacific Textiles Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Ordinary Sri Lankan 75 - Manufacturing and
Lanka (Pvi) Limited R RS RS rupee (‘LKR’) 450 (Note vi trading of elastic
LAk 450 iR fabric and elastic
HEHFEL webbing
([ E2MFEL)) BEREEEIAN
EHRENES
BPSL (Thulhiriya) BVI Hong Kong Ordlinary US$100 100 - Investment holding
RERES & LER100 £ (N?te ) AR
(Bttv)

BEBEERERAT « —T—tFFR
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41.
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, other than BPT
Holdings which is a directly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, all of the above subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

Dongguan BPT, Dongguan NHE and Dongguan
BPI were established in the PRC in form of wholly
foreign-owned enterprise.

The total investment capital of this subsidiary is
VND1,881,200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$84,000,000 or HK$655,200,000). Up to 31
December 2017, the Group has contributed VND
1,538,700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$69,000,000 or HK$538,000,000 (2016:
VND535,200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$24,000,000 or HK$187,200,000)) of such
investment capital to the subsidiary.

The Group injected additional capital of
HK$102,570,000 into Dongguan BPT during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

These companies were set up by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The company was set up by the Group and an
independent third party during the year ended 31
December 2017.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the reporting period.

= =

41.

T—HLEFE

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

AR ZHE (#)
B3

R-T—LFR—
+—HB - BREA %ﬁiﬁiﬁ BBARR
EREMBRRSN Fﬁﬁuiﬁﬁ%
AR RREERE

R=BR REBAEARTEBERER
TIAINEBE R ERAETBKT -

—NFt+= H*

ZHBRAAMBEEABREAR
1,881,200,000,000% F /& (18 & 1 4J
84,000,000% 7T 51655,200,0005% 7T) °
BHE - T—+F+-_A=+—H" ' K&K
% B 15 3% % & #91,538,700,000,000
M A (EE R 469,000,000% T
5(538,000,0007% JT) (= & — /X F :
535,200,000,000% /8 /& (M8 & K 4
24,000,000 7T 8¢187,200,000/8 JT))
EAZHMB AR

BE-_Z—+HF+-A=+—HI#FE
B AEBRREBETIABINES
102,570,000/ JC ©

ERPHAEEARBE T —
“H=1T—HIEFERIL

ARABHAEEE —RBILE=TR
(BT —tF+-A=1+—HILF

+&

B N

==
ERL

P8 2 A0 e o B A SR I R B AT
EAEHES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 42. BETHELEZEBENEHE
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRANEERMETHEL ZEEE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including BEE BEREESNIEIRSES - &
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising BEHELEEEDNABESREE RN
from financing activities are those for which cash FAREGTREERAETSSES
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in mEXRNDEAMETHRESREZA
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows & o
as cash flows from financing activities.
Obligations
under
Dividends Bank finance
payable  borrowings leases Total
FEfRE RITER MERERE #ct
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TEx TEr TER
At 1 January 2017 R-_Z—+F—A—H = 593,502 5,931 599,433
Financing cash flows RERLRE (97,845) 610,938 (5,411) 507,682
Declare of dividend (Note 14) REEIR (Fiz14) 97,845 - - 97,845
Finance cost BB A - 35,110 109 35,219
Increase in accrued interest RIS E M - (491) = (491)
Exchange realignment B 5 A% - 1,203 - 1,203
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
+-A=1t—H - 1,240,262 629 1,240,891
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43.

238

INFORMATION ABOUT THE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

43. FRAAXLRRFBARRKRER

2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries and REBARIAR EHRE
amounts due from subsidiaries A =YNGIE 610,757 =
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — E B EINTE - 1248 &
TBRIA 254 172
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURH B A B FRIA - 602,373
Bank balances and cash IRITEMEIRS 49 461
303 603,006
Current liabilities =R
Other payables H A e RIE 69 21
Net current assets REBEERE 234 602,985
Net assets EEEE 610,991 602,985
Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital (Note 31) BRA (B&E31) 10,365 10,288
Reserves ] 600,626 592,697
610,991 602,985
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—ZFT—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

43. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 43. EBA QA BRRARESR (&)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Composition of reserves (Note)

fEmAmR (FEE)

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FET T

Share premium R (B 585,302 568,963
Share options reserve RS 4,434 10,840
Retained profits REB 5 A 10,890 12,894
600,626 592,697

Note:

Movements of respective reserves, except for

retained profits which is disclosed below, are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Bt - HREREES (TXAAREREEN
BRON) DERERAEREHX -

Movement in retained profits of the Company D Bl R B8 i R 8 B
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HE
—B—tF AN
+=ZA=+—H8 +=—A=1+—H
IEEE LEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET AT
Balance at the beginning of year FY R 12,894 5,997
Profit and total comprehensive REEmF &
income for the year PHE R AREE 95,841 163,798
Dividends recognised as distribution R IRAIIRE
(Note 14) (PfF5E14) (97,845) (156,901)
Balance at the end of year FRER 10,890 12,894
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
hFEFHENRE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, prepared on
the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

AEEBEDEM B FREIZA RS EERE
REMETIERZRE BEMNAGBEREBWT

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—2-tf T —T-1F F0HF _—_FT-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx FAT T T FET
(Note i) (Note i)
(BT i) (B i)
Results ES
Revenue N 2,794,811 2,469,106 2,048,138 1,860,881 1,659,447
Profit for the year FREF 303,635 456,251 342,383 246,904 244,505
Earnings per share BRER
- Basic (HK cents) - EZR (B) 29.45 44.37 33.56 27.05 28.61
— Diluted (HK cents) - 58 (OBl 29.29 44.00 33.21 26.87 N/ATEA
Assets and liabilities BENERE
Current assets TEEE 1,669,337 1,647,522 1,776,416 1,630,997 983,065
Non-current assets IETRHEE 2,545,561 1,540,349 1,124,343 1,181,867 1,185,804
Total assets BmERE 4,214,898 3,187,871 2,900,759 2,812,864 2,168,869
Current liabilities REEE 924,990 800,253 1,148,583 912,243 852,894
Non-current liabilities JEREEE 989,246 485,853 13,232 283,843 483,776
Total liabilities mes 1,914,236 1,286,106 1,161,815 1,196,086 1,336,670
Equity attributable to YNNG ZEUN
owners of the FE(G R
Company 2,301,246 1,901,765 1,738,944 1,616,778 725,563
Non-controlling interests ~ FEFZEAR 5 (584) = - = 106,636
Total equity B 2,300,662 1,901,765 1,738,944 1,616,778 832,199
Note: BT -

M

240

Pursuant to the group reorganisation, the Company became
the holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group on 16 January 2014. The Company and its
subsidiaries have been under the common control of Mr. Lu
throughout the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.
The consolidated results, assets and liabilities for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 of the companies now
comprising the Group as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the respective periods (except
for the disposal of Deluxe Royal Limited in December 2013).
The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2013 has been prepared to present the
assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising the
Group, as if the current group structure has been in existence
at that date.

[0) BIEEBSEH  ARAAR_Z—NFE—F+
NERAREERBETAANIZERAR -
ARAFRRENBRARBE T =6r_F
—NE+-_A=+—HIFECHRELLEH
RZH - BE T —=ZFR_FT—NOF+=
B=1t—HBIFE AEERFETIAN
REHE BAERABE MUREEEEE
REHEERE  HER=E—=F+=-AH
EZMBRATIGRIN  REBR T —=4F
+ A=+ BMGREVBRRROERTD
AEVAEERBETARNEERAE
IR EEERERZBEERE -
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